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ABOUT CGN MINING AR ERTEE

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and listed on the AARFMeARASHS  A—REBR
main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 01164). The principal FrER L AR (RERSE : 01164) ©
activities of the Group are the development and trade of natural AEBFENESRAMERHRAZEE
uranium resources used by nuclear energy enterprises, with a view to 5 BEKRAZEIRAME RO EZH#
be one of the top suppliers of natural uranium resources for nuclear Bz

power plants.
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Financial Highlights
o HHRE

OPERATING RESULTS ¥7&

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12831HLLFEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

2022 20214 20204 2019 2018%F
HK$000  HK$000  HKE000 ~ HK$'000  HKE000
TR THET TAT TAT TAT

Continuing operations BEMER

Revenue ] 3,648,680 3,859,530 2,862,226 2,076,688 1,625,974
Operating profit Fedewiegil 628,842 246,247 220,855 196,638 172,623
Finance costs BERA (61,699) (49,683) (40,889) (20,466) (32,110)
Profit before taxation R AT A 567,143 196,564 179,966 176,172 140,513
Income tax expenses FTs Rz i (52,228) (18,066) (24,749) (16,163) (18,447)
Profit for the year REFHF 514,915 178,498 155,217 160,009 122,066
Profit attributable to: TEIATEERR

Owners of the Company RRREBA 514,915 178,498 155,217 160,009 122,066
Non-controlling interests s - - - - -

514,915 178,498 165,217 160,009 122,066

FINANCIAL POSITION B # k%

As at 31 December
M12H31H
2022 2021 2{020] 2019 2018

20225 20214 20205 20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER THAT FHET FAT FHET
Total assets EERE 6,865,707 6,349,575 4,187,787 3,095,366 2,674,507
Total liabilities BEBE (3,517,568) (4,194,352) (2,160,727) (1,151,125) (810,089

3,348,139 2,155,223 2,027,060 1,944,241 1,864,418

Equity attributable to owners AR EIHEAE A

of the Company FE(h i 3,348,139 2155223 2,027,060 1,944,241 1,864,418
Non-controlling interests S - - - - -

3,348,139 2,155,223 2,027,060 1,944,241 1,864,418




CGN Mining Company Limited Annual Report 2022

Chairman’s Statement

FEHE

Dear Shareholders,

The past 2022 was a remarkable and challenging year, with the
“January event” in Kazakhstan, the continuous escalation of the
Russia-Ukraine conflict, as well as seven consecutive interest rate
hikes of the US dollar. Nevertheless, we are pleased to see the
epidemic gloom has begun to lift, and as international flows gradually
return to the normal, the global economy is on the track of recovery.

Throughout the year, changes in the external environment have
brought a more severe challenges to the production and operation
of the Company. US dollar interest rates, global uranium prices and
currency exchange rates directly influenced our operations, which
were also heavily influenced by the world political economy. The
uncertainty of the Russia-Ukraine conflict will continue to have an
impact on the world’s nuclear fuel industry, while continued volatility
in commodity markets and rising raw material prices will push up
production costs at mines. The continued interest rate hikes by the
Federal Reserve and high-interest rates will have a direct impact
on the Company’s financial costs. In face of these challenges, the
Board of the Company will keep close track of the risk factors that
may affect the Company’s operation and discuss risk management
strategies promptly to ensure that the Company can timely identify
potential risks and deal with them effectively to safeguard the steady
development of the Company and achieve substantial growth in
profit.

The increasingly complicated external environment brings greater
uncertainty to the Company’s foreign investments, but our long-
term goal of becoming a world-class supplier of natural uranium
remained unchanged. We remain focused on the world’s premium
mine resources, exploring the best investment opportunities and
steadily controlling more uranium resources to form a reasonable
pipeline of in-production, in-construction, advanced and junior
exploration projects to satisfy the sustainable development needs
of the Company. In 2022, we are in the process of conducting an
assessment of potential objectives, to make substantial progress as
soon as possible.
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In 2022, we effectively addressed various significant risk challenges
by responding positively to the epidemic shock and the interest
rate hikes of the US dollar, focused on product improvement to
deepen cost reduction and efficiency enhancement, and successfully
achieved our operational targets. First of all, in terms of the operation
of inventory projects, the operation of natural uranium assets was
stable. Through the close monitoring and strict supervision of the
production and operation of Semizbay-U and Ortalyk by the despatch
team, we were able to resolve the impact of major events such as the
“January event” in Kazakhstan and the Russia-Ukraine conflict. The
plan was basically completed and the annual production of natural
uranium was among the highest in the world. Fission completed
a feasibility study in early 2023, providing scientific support for the
subsequent development of the PLS project, one of the largest high-
grade uranium raw material projects to be developed in the world.
Secondly, in terms of sales of natural uranium, CGN Global grasped
the market opportunity of a steady increase in natural uranium price
and achieved significant profit growth. Lastly, in terms of equity
financing, we completed equity subscriptions with 11 investors and
received equity financing totalling HK$800 million, an increased
proportion of institutional investors in the secondary market and a
better equity structure through enhanced market communication. The
market capitalization remained above HK$5 billion throughout the
year. We received several industry awards including the Growth Value
of the Year Award.

A scientific and reasonable long-term incentive mechanism can
provide a greater sense of participation and belonging to the
management, and the introduction of equity incentive measures is
an inevitable choice for the Company to make great achievements
together. We have been exploring realistic incentive measures for
the Company and formed our own experience summaries, which are
believed to have laid a good foundation for the formal launch of the
next long-term incentive program. This is also a practical testament
to the Company’s continuous improvement in corporate governance
over the decades of operation.
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Chairman’s Statement
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While dealing with external challenges, we have been practising our
internal strengths and the Board has been improving our governance
and management measures. We are pleased to see a more diverse
background of directors and a more rational board structure through
the restructuring of the board members. The establishment of a new
Environment, Social and Governance Committee by the Board will
make a tangible effect in improving the quality of the information
disclosure of the Company.

In 2022, the soaring prices of conventional fossil energy, nuclear
power is once again being relied upon globally as the clean source of
economic, safe, low-carbon and sustainable energy. As the impact
of the epidemic on mine exploration wanes, and as more and more
natural uranium developers and explorers enter the market, the
natural uranium market is poised for new growth. The year 2023
is both an opportunity and a challenge for us, and we have set
“stabilising operation, preserving production, promoting development”
as our annual business development targets. We will devote more
efforts to the production and operation as well as cost control of
Semizbay-U and Ortalyk, and strive for more investment income
to bring stable returns to all shareholders. We will also continue to
optimise the sales of natural uranium by improving market research
and judgmental capabilities and expanding sales channels to achieve
steady growth in international sales of natural uranium. We will strive
to increase the development effort in uranium resources, expand the
natural uranium industry and promote the locking of new overseas
uranium projects. We will also optimise the performance incentive
mechanism and the implementation of mid to long-term incentive
mechanisms.

Where there is a will, there is a way. The Board and all staff of the
Company are determined and focused on the goals, striving to
achieve the annual targets of the Company through hard work and
courage to create greater value for shareholders.

Chairman of the Board and chief executive officer
An Junjing

Hong Kong, 23 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in natural uranium investment and
trading. As at 31 December 2022, the Company (i) held 100% equity
interest in Beijing Sino-Kazakh, through which it held 49% of the
equity interest and off-take rights of products of Semizbay-U; (i) held
100% equity interest in CGNM UK, through which it held 49% of the
equity interest and off-take rights of products of Ortalyk. In addition,
the Group had a wholly-owned subsidiary, CGN Global and held
13.75% equity interest in Fission.

In 2022, the Group achieved revenue of HK$3,649 million and profits
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$515 million.

Analysis of business environment
The nuclear power market and its development

According to data released by International Atomic Energy Agency
(“IAEA”), as at the end of 2022, there were 423 nuclear power units in
operation worldwide, with a total installed capacity of 378,754MWe,
and 55 units under were construction, with a total installed capacity
of 58,418MWe, where the nuclear power units in operation and
under construction spanned across 32 countries and regions. In
2022, there were 6 new grid-connected units worldwide, with a total
installed capacity of 7,360MWe; 7 units with a total installed capacity
of 8,197MWe commenced construction; and 5 closed units with a
total installed capacity of 2,839MWe. In 2022, against the backdrop
of Russia-Ukraine conflict, the price of conventional fossil energy was
soaring. Energy security and energy independence have caught the
highest attention ever. As a conventional source of energy that is low-
carbon, safe, economical and can provide the base load, nuclear
power is receiving renewed attention from many countries around the
world. Various favourable policies in many countries were launched
one after the other which mainly included: the EU and Korea have
included nuclear energy as a sustainable energy investment; the US,
the UK, France and Japan are promoting the extension of the life of
existing nuclear power plants; Japan and France are encouraging the
recommissioning of currently defunct nuclear power plans; China,
Iran, India and the UK are approving new power units or announcing
new nuclear power plans. Meanwhile, major economies are actively
pursuing the development of fourth-generation nuclear power
technologies such as ultra-high temperature gas-cooled reactors and
advanced small reactor units. With renewed embracement of nuclear
power, the IAEA has also revised upwards its forecast for nuclear
power growth in the third quarter of 2022.
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ERENRRIF .

Key events in the global nuclear power industry in 2022 include: 2022 R ZB AN EFEEMHE

Industry forecast: TTHREN -

9H ' IAEAIRRS 2HZERERE
B - FEETEI20504F 3= EI873GWe
BREBAFRILINI0% o

° In September, IAEA increased the global nuclear power °
capacity forecast to 873GWe by 2050, representing a 10%
increase from the original high forecast.

In Asia: MR -

2022% - EERBREHECEZHAE
TMNZBEEEREXILE

In 2022, as the shadow over the Fukushima nuclear accident
gradually subsided, various Asian countries were returning to accept
nuclear power:

In March, India announced that it would build 10 new nuclear
power plants in a “fleet model” over the next three years, and
in November, the Union Minister announced that the country
would actively develop 300,000 kW small nuclear reactors.

In May, Korea announced the resumption of construction
of units 3 and 4 of Shin-Hanul Nuclear Power Plant, along
with plans to export 10 nuclear power units by 2030. In July,
the Korean new president, Yoon Suk-yeol, expressed the
intention to abolish his predecessor’s de-nuclearisation policy
and will quickly rebuild Korea’s nuclear industry, planning to
increase the share of nuclear power generation to over 30%
by 2030 (27.4% in 2021) and announcing the resumption
of construction of two nuclear reactors. In September, the
Ministry of Environment of Korea issued the draft revision
of the National Green Classification Guidelines to include
atomic power generation in the scope of green financing. In
November, unit 1 (the first AP1400 unit) of the Shin-Hanul
Nuclear Power Plant in Korea was connected to the grid.
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° In July and August, the Japanese government announced on
several occasions that it would restart more nuclear power
plants, with the objective of restarting 17 units that meet the
new safety inspection standards (to be in operation) after the
summer of 2023. In October, the Secretary-General of the
Nuclear Regulation Authority of Japan stated that the relevant
provision of “the period for a power reactor to operate shall
be 40 years with a maximum of 60 years” shall be removed
from the “Act on the Regulation of Nuclear Source Material,
Nuclear Fuel Material and Reactors” in order to reduce carbon
emission and provide stable electricity supply (the motion was
approved to take effect in February 2023). In November, the
Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry proposed a draft
action plan to build new generation nuclear power reactors at
the site of the nuclear power plant which was dismantled after
the Fukushima incident.

° In October, Iran stated that it had drawn up plans to build
new nuclear power plants to increase their annual capacity to
10GW and was building another 2GW nuclear power plant.

In Europe:

Due to concerns about the continued impact of the Russia-
Ukraine conflict on the energy market, many European countries
are increasingly relying on nuclear power, with officials in the UK,
Belgium, Germany and other countries indicating that they will adjust
their policies to increase the development of nuclear power, details
are as follows:

° In April, the UK announced that a Great British Nuclear
programme will be launched to promote nuclear energy
development, with plans to approve the construction of one
nuclear reactor each year from 2022 to 2030, for a total of
eight nuclear reactors, aiming to have 24GWe of installed
nuclear power capacity in operation by 2050, which is three
times of the existing capacity, in order to meet 25% of the
electricity demand of the UK (currently sharing 15% of power
generation).
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Following the announcement from EU for its proposal to
consider “to include nuclear power investment in the scope
of green investment” in February, the EU taxonomy set out in
the Sustainable Finance Action Plan officially included nuclear
power investment as a climate-friendly “green investment” in
July, clearing the obstacles for the introduction of significant
amount of low-cost green capital into the European nuclear
power sector, greatly accelerating the pace of nuclear power
construction in Europe.

In October, Germany passed a draft law to extend the
operation of the three operating nuclear power plants until
April 2023. In accordance with the previous plan of the
German Government, the three remaining nuclear power
stations in Germany were due to close by the end of this year,
while in Belgium, the life of two nuclear power plants has been
extended for 10 years to 2036.

In November, the Turkish and Romanian governments
announced that they would step up their nuclear power
development efforts and had submitted draft legislation to
Parliament for the construction of new nuclear power units.

In December, Bulgaria announced that unit 5 of the Kozloduy
nuclear power plant had signed a 10-year fuel supply
agreement with Westinghouse to replace the Russian supply.
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In North America:

o In September, the US announced the extension of the life
of the Diablo Canyon nuclear power plant from 40 years to
45 years, which will be decommissioned in 2030, while 11
other nuclear power units, including Comanche Peak and
Hatch, have submitted applications for the second time for
life extension and are still pending for approval. In October,
the US passed the Inflation Reduction Act, which includes the
granting of USD30 billion subsidy to the country’s operating
nuclear fleet over the next 10 years, while launching the USD6
billion Civilian Nuclear Credit Program for US operating nuclear
fleet over the next four years and initiating proposal to seek
USD4.3 billion in funding for the purchase of enriched uranium
to develop the US nuclear fuel industry.

° In November, the Canadian government recognized nuclear
power as a clean energy source and nuclear power will be
included in the tax credit program.

Other regions:

° In July, Egypt’s first nuclear power project was officially
launched, making it the second African country to own a large
commercial reactor, after South Africa.

° In December, Brazil announced that construction of unit 3 of
the Angra nuclear power plant had restarted after a seven-
year halt.

Mainland China:

According to the data released by the China Nuclear Energy
Association, there were 55 nuclear power units in operation in China
(excluding Taiwan Region of the PRC) with a rated installed capacity
of 56,993MWe as at 31 December 2022, and 22 power plants
were under construction, maintaining its top position in the world in
terms of scale of nuclear power plants under construction. In 2022,
2 nuclear power units were loaded for the first time, and the total
power generation from nuclear power units was 417.8 billion kWh,
accounted for 4.98% of the total power generation in the country.
Power generation by nuclear power units in 2022 recorded a year-on-
year increase of 2.52% as compared with 2021 and the cumulative
on-grid power generation was 319.8 billion kWh, representing a year-
on-year increase of 2.45% as compared with 2021.
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The importance of nuclear power in China’s energy system has
been further clarified after the Chinese government launched the
“Dual Carbon” goals in 2020 and Report on the Work of the Chinese
Government in 2021 proposed that “nuclear power will be developed
in an active and orderly manner while ensuring safety”. A total of 10
nuclear power units were approved in 2022, a new high in recent
years, of which: in April, the State Council announced the approval
of 6 nuclear power units for 3 new nuclear power projects (Sanmen
Phase Il in Zhejiang, Haiyang Phase Il in Shandong and Lufeng in
Guangdong); in October, the State Council announced the approval
of 4 nuclear power units for 2 nuclear power projects (Zhangzhou
Phase Il and Lianjiang Phase ). This reflects the positive and clear
attitude towards the development of nuclear power in Mainland
China, and also opens up room for growth in demand for natural
uranium.

In January 2023, CGN Guangxi Fangchenggang Nuclear Power Plant
Unit 3, the first “Hualong One” nuclear power unit in western China,
was successfully connected to the grid for the first time, marking
the unit’s ability to generate electricity and another key step towards
commercial operation.

According to the Fourteenth Five-year Plan, by 2025, China’s installed
nuclear power capacity will reach 70 million kW; and according to
the China Nuclear Energy Association, it is expected that during the
Fourteenth Five-year Plan, the growth of installed nuclear power
capacity in China will further accelerate and power generation will
increase significantly, and by 2035, nuclear power generation will
account for about 10% of China’s electricity mix.
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Growth of Installed Capacity of Nuclear Power in China from 2009 to 2022
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Global natural uranium market and industry development

Broadly speaking, the total global natural uranium production
increased marginally in 2022. According to the UxC report, global
natural uranium production in 2022 amounted to approximately
51,154tU, an increase of 5.8% compared to 2021. Of which, the main
producer, Kazatomprom, produced 11,813tU in 2022 (representing
23.1% of global primary supply), a decrease of 4% as compared
to 2021, and Cameco produced 4,000tU in 2022 (represent 7.8%
of global primary supply), increased 70% as compared to 2021.
Cameco’s McArthur River uranium mine restarted with plans to
produce 5,769tU annually from 2024; Paladin announced the restart
of its Langer Heinrich mine with initial production planned in the
first quarter of 2024; Denison’s Phoenix uranium mine successfully
conducted an in situ recovery feasibility field test with over 97%
uranium recovery.
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Spot natural uranium prices experienced short-term sharp fluctuations
in the first half of 2022, followed by a stable upward trend in the
second half. Driven by new long-term trade contracts signed by
the nuclear power owners, long-term trade prices rose by US$9.5/
IbUsOe in the first half of the year before stabilising. In January, due
to the doubling of liquefied natural gas prices in Kazakhstan, riots
broke out in many parts of the country, triggering market panic over
the supply of natural uranium, and uranium prices rose by US$3.25/
IbUsQOs; from late February to March, the energy crisis caused by
the conflict between Russia and Ukraine aroused much concern,
and uranium prices rose rapidly, which also drove up the stock
price of listed companies in the natural uranium industry. In April,
uranium price rose steadily in the early half of the month, breaking
a high of over US$63.0/IbUsQs, while at the end of the month, due
to the rejection by NYSE for Sprott physical uranium trust’s listing
application, the uranium price was affected to a certain extent and
traded at a lower price; in May, under the influence of continuous
interest rate hikes by the US Federal Reserve, the global capital
market as a whole went down, and the uranium price also dropped
sharply to US$46.0/IbUsQs; from July to August, with the winter
energy crisis approaching, which led the governments to pay more
attention to the development of nuclear power, the uranium price
rose up to US$52.75/IbUsOs. Meanwhile, the spot price fluctuated
around US$50.0/IbUsOs as physical uranium investors such as Sprott
physical uranium trust and YellowCake slowed down their purchases
of natural uranium. The long-term trade price rose from US$40.5/
IbUsOs in January to US$50.0/IbUsQs in May and remained at around
such level for several months, before surging to a full year high of
US$52.0/IbUsOs in December .o

In 2022, the global long-term trade volume of natural uranium
exceeded the spot trade volume: the annual long-term trade volume
was 43,846tU, an increase of 61.2% compared to the same period
last year, while the annual spot trade volume was 23,365tU, a
decrease of 14.1% compared to the same period last year, breaking
the 2020-2021 trend that the spot trade volume was much higher
than the long-term trade volume; major uranium producers started
to sign long-term trade contracts. At the same time, in 2022, many
natural uranium developers and explorers have also raised equity
financing and prepared funds for their uranium projects through
multiple exchange listings and issuance of AIM financial instruments,
while also targeting to procure on the market in light of the long-term
development opportunities for spot uranium.

Note:  Under usual international practice, the usual measuring unit of natural uranium in
international uranium product trade is pound (Ib), and the usual units of uranium
reserves/production are tonnes-of elemental uranium (tU) and million pounds of
natural uranium. 1tU~2,599.78 IbU,O.
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Natural uranium spot prices/long-term trading volume and monthly trading volume in 2022
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND ANALYSIS

During the Reporting Period, the total equity source of the Group was
40,860tU and equity production was 1,269tU.

Uranium mines under production - Semizbay Mine and Irkol
Mine

During the Reporting Period, the actual total volume of uranium
extracted from Semizbay-U was 959tU in accordance with the
arranged production of 80% of 1,200tU of designed production
capacity, completing its annual production tasks by 98.4%, including
385tU from Semizbay Mine with a production cost of 24.22US$/
IbU,O4 and 574tU from Irkol Mine with a production cost of
17.07US$/IbU,0,. After deduction of processing loss, the total annual
natural uranium production was 940tU. The failure to complete its
annual production tasks was mainly related to the limited availability
of production support materials at the Semizbay Mine in the third
quarter and delays in drilling and pipe connection work. In addition,
through stringent cost control measures, and benefiting from higher
uranium prices and the continued depreciation of the Tenge, the
sales profit from Semizbay-U increased during the Reporting Period
compared to 2021, creating the conditions for continued stable
growth of the company.
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As at 31 December 2022, the remaining geological reserves of
Semizbay Mine and Irkol Mine were as follows:

Average Grade
HE TR
tU

Note: ~ Semibay-U is currently progressing with the re-estimation of the Semizbay Mine
reserve and the data is subject to the final results of the estimation. As of the
date of this report, the remaining reserves of Semizbay Mine are 6,242tU after
re-estimation.

Uranium mines under production - Central Mynkuduk Deposit
and Zhalpak Deposit

During the Reporting Period, the actual total volume of uranium
extracted by Ortalyk was 1,639tU in accordance with the arranged
production of 80% of 2,750tU of designed production capacity,
which completed 100% of the annual production tasks, including
1,600tU from Central Mynkuduk Deposit with a production cost of
13.82US$/IbU,0O, and 39tU from Zhalpak Deposit (on site leach test
phase) with a production cost of 24.69US$/IbU,O,. After deduction
of processing loss, the total annual natural uranium production was
1,5686tU. Similarly, through the adoption of proactive and effective
cost control measures, Ortalyk natural uranium costs were kept
within budget, which, together with the increase in uranium prices
and the depreciation of the Tenge, Ortalyk’s economic benefit
recorded a significant increase in 2022 compared to the previous
year. In addition, the preparation for the mine expansion plan for the
Zhalpak Deposit was completed and approved by the Management
Committee of Kazatomprom on 19 January 2023 and submitted to
the board of directors of Kazatomprom for approval.

As at 31 December 2022, the remaining geological reserves of
Central Mynkuduk Deposit and Zhalpak Deposit were as follow:

Reserves Average Grade
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Uraninum mine project pending for development - operation
and project exploration by Fission

During the Reporting Period, based on information available to the
Board and other publicly available information, Fission focused on
preparing feasibility study for its PLS project. The winter exploration
in 2022 focused on collecting geotechnical samples from areas such
as the R840W section, tailings storage, hydrometallurgical plant and
ramp roads. The latest mineral resource estimates were released on
12 September 2022, showing a 21% increase in indicated resource
and a corresponding 12.3% increase in metals. Fission completed
the main feasibility study at the end of December 2022 and released
the results of the feasibility study on 17 January 2023 with the
expected lifetime production of approximately 35,000tU, showing a
10-year mine life for the PLS project and a mine construction cost of
CA$1,155 million, representing a slight decrease compared to the
pre-feasibility study. Based on the premises of a long-term uranium
price of US$65/IbU,0Og, an exchange rate of CA$1 = US$0.75 and a
discount rate of 8%, the PLS project would have a production cost
of approximately US$9.77/IbU,Qs, an after-tax NPV of approximately
CA$1,204 million, an IRR of approximately 27.2% and an investment
payback period of approximately 2.6 years. The results of the
feasibility study indicate that the PLS project is financially highly viable
and is one of the quality projects to be developed in the Athabasca
Basin.

In addition, Fission has entered into agreements with various local
indigenous communities, outlining the responsibilities and obligations
of both parties in mine development and will facilitate future
application of the mining permit.
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Natural uranium trading business

As at 31 December 2022, the Group achieved revenue of HK$3,645
million from natural uranium trading, decreased by 5% as compared
to 2021, among which, trading revenue from sales of off-take natural
uranium products from mines of Semizbay-U and Ortalyk was
HK$1,341 million, representing an increase of 120% as compared
to 2021 (2021: HK$611 million). In 2022, the Company contracted
the purchase of a total of 1,321tU of natural uranium products
from Semizbay-U and Otralyk, representing an increase of 73% as
compared to 762tU of uranium in 2021 and the average sales price
of 50.35US$/IbU,Og and an average sales cost of 48.35US$/IbU,Os.

In addition, the Company entered into a New Sales Framework
Agreement with CGNPC-URC on 16 June 2022 in relation to the sale
of natural uranium by the Group to CGNPC-URC and its subsidiaries
(other than members of the Group) from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2025, with a minimum purchase quantity of 1,200tU
per calendar year. The New Sales Framework Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder are subject to independent
shareholders’ approval. For details, please refer to the circular of the
Company dated 19 August 2022.

During the Reporting Period, CGN Global sold a total of 3,055tU
with an average sales price of 37.41US$/IbU,O, and an average
sales cost of 35.97US$/IbU,O, and realized trading revenue of
approximately US$297 million. In 2022, the Russia-Ukraine conflict
and the continuous interest rate hikes by the US Federal Reserve
caused severe fluctuations in spot market price and surging financing
costs. CGN Global studied the market trends carefully with its many
years of market experience, operated in strict accordance with the
risk control system, adopted new business models and expanded
financing channels, and met its performance indicators despite the
complex and changing market environment.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held 2,310tU of natural uranium
at a weighted average cost of US$43.98/IoU,O,, and had 4,849tU
contracted for sale but not yet delivered, at a weighted average
selling price of US$44.62/IoU,0,.
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Equity financing

During the Reporting Period, the Company completed the issuance
of a total of 1.0 billion new ordinary shares to 11 investors at the
price of HK$0.80 per share, with total proceeds of HK$800 million
and net proceeds of HK$776 million after deducting the relevant
expenses. The China State-owned Enterprise Mixed Ownership
Reform Fund Co., Ltd.* (FEIBIE ¥ BEEMEHINEESERAR)
(“Mixed-ownership Reform Fund”), the lead investor for the issuance
of new shares is a state-level fund approved by the State Council,
whose main investment direction covers key strategic fields and core
technical domains, etc. At present, the Mixed-ownership Reform
Fund has assigned a director to participate in corporate governance
and provide support in optimizing the Company’s brand image and
enhancing the Company’s value. The Company has introduced
investors which are state-level funds, internationally renowned natural
uranium funds and local investment institutions in Hong Kong,
further increasing the proportion of shareholding held by institutional
investors.

Maintenance of Investor Relationship

In 2022, against the backdrop of rapid global nuclear power
development and the revived interest of the capital market for natural
uranium investment, the Company achieved fruitful results in the
maintenance of investor relations. During the Reporting Period, the
Company overcame the obstacles of the epidemic and improved its
investor relationship management through online communication,
systematically optimised its information disclosure, market promotion
and industry research, and achieved satisfactory results.
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Vol

WMEHA  AREMREEATKRE
LA0.807 7T,/ PR (B H& 1 31 OB AR T 3B AY. -
BREBASEET  CMBABEMAXE
SFRME R RT.76BABTT o ARSI AW
BERHA—HPEEECERESHMEHINE
HEeARQR(DEMES]) - REERL
ERINBERAEES  ZEENTERE
F BB AD - RO ETEEE
BRRMEASEIRE —RESL2HEQAAAE
B WEEARREESR - RARQGEER
EHEHE TR - AELLRBESIARE
AFRBREES - BBRMERAMESD
RBEBRIGEHE - WBIREAGILE
— R o

REERAEEE

20224 - ERIZEBREEE - LRER
MHH RN MR ENREEERNERT -
RA ARG E & BR M TERUS 218K
R MEHA - AAFRRREIBER - B
AR RBIREIREERER - HEE
BE - MSEE  TERRZFHFEERRME
ST TR BUSHELR -

21



22 CGN Mining Company Limited Annual Report 2022

Management Discussion and Analysis

ERERBRRAN

Relative Performance of Stock Price of CGN Mining (01164.HK), HSI and the Spot Price of
Natural Uranium from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022
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During the Reporting Period, the Company made several attempts ~ REHIRA » AR BIEMEEREN EIEE

to broaden its channels of direct communication and liaison with
Shareholders. The Company considered the implementation of the
shareholder communication policy was effective during the Reporting
Period after the review of the following work and outcomes. The key
work and outcomes are as follows:
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Annual general meeting e Approved 7 ordinary resolutions on 16 June
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Channels Key points

RE E:d

Extraordinary general meeting e Approved 3 ordinary resolutions on 15 September
REASRIAS QA5 BHLASIE L mAER

Annual results presentation and interim e On 28 March, the annual results conference was held
results presentation through Futu and Gelonghui live broadcast under the
FEEBRHERTHERRHS chairmanship of BOC International

SH28AGEHHREEZESFEF TRATENEEER
BRI ORFERERME

e On 26 August, the interim results conference was held
through Futu and Gelonghui live broadcast under the
chairmanship of Haitong Securities
BH26RABBESFTH NEBERNMREEEREN
TR ARFEEEE S

Investor seminars and roadshows e 230 seminars and roadshows were held throughout
communication the year
REEMAERBEBE 2FHBITO0IGH T RKE

Introduction of strategic investors and increasein ¢ On 30 June, the Mixed-ownership Reform Fund was

the proportion of institutional investors introduced which held 9.99% of the Company’s equity
SIABRIREA  BEBREAGLREA interest

6A30RH © SIBMES © B R RIRELLH19.99%
e The proportion of equity interest held by institutional
investors increased from 7.09% to 11.44%

HEIBIEE AMRELIE7.09% EFH2E11.44%

Company awards e Received the “2022 Golden Unicorn Best New
YNGIE-35) Economy Hong Kong and the United States Listed
Companies Award” from SINA FINANCE
ORI [2022F S BB EREAFKE LM AR
%]
e Received the “Annual Small and Mid-Cap Growth
Value Award” and “Annual Outstanding Leader Award”
of Gelonghui Jinge Award
BEESKREIFER/ I TEXNREARIR[FELH
patiiped
e Received the “Best Energy and Resources Company
Award” from Zhitong Caijing
BB RIEREREERA T 4]
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Channels Key points
RE E:d

e Received the “Best Internal Governance Listed
Company Award” of Golden Phoenix Tree Award
S EMERERNTAIE LT AL

Regular reports and announcements ® Released 24 announcements, 2 circulars and 2 regular
EHRERAS reports throughout the year
SFEEMADRE - 2D BE K25 T BARE
e Including 2 positive profit alerts
BiE2) EEAFES

Company website Continuous maintenance:
(http://www.cgnmc.com) FHEMEE
NGIE D e Company news and industry information
ARIZBRITEES
* Announcements and circulars
NN

* Results, report and roadshow materials
RiE - WwEEBIEME
® Analysts’ reports
pax i e
e Daily stock price and natural uranium price index

FHRERRAMBEBIER

Official We Media channel e The official Wechat account, the corporate accounts

BN BEEERE on Futu, Zhihu, Flush and Xuegiu.com have been
established
EERBEAMER B8 BT AEIERZEHRE
R ERRTR

Official e-mail ® ir.cgnmc@cgnpc.com.cn

EAHBE

Receives investor enquiries and feedback
BRI EERANE RRE
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS
BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT OUTLOOK
Nuclear power market analysis

First, in terms of its own advantages and necessity for nuclear power,
nuclear energy is unaffected by global climate change, has high
capacity factor, is efficient and stable in power generation, and low
carbon emission, which can effectively complement the shortcomings
of current new energy sources such as wind and solar power as a
baseload energy source.

Second, in terms of global future estimated installed capacity, in
2022, the IAEA forecasted a 10% increase in the highest nuclear
power capacity growth prior to 2050 from the previous forecast, with
global nuclear power production capacity anticipated to increase
to 873GWe by 2050; meanwhile, according to the forecast of UxC,
global nuclear power capacity in operation will reach 543GWe by
2035, representing an increase of 37% as compared to the end of
2022. In addition, currently there are 57 reactors under construction
in 18 countries, which are expected to provide approximately 59GWe
additional capacity. These developments will generate significant new
nuclear fuel demand in globally.

Third, in terms of forecast on China’s development, under the
background of firmly promoting “Carbon Peaking and Carbon
Neutrality”, China’s nuclear power development will meet
unprecedented opportunities. Since 2013, the proportion of nuclear
power generation in China has steadily increased from 2.11% in
2013 to 4.22% before the approval of recommissioning of nuclear
power in 2018 and to the current 4.98%, while the average
proportion of nuclear power generation in emerging countries is
10%, which indicates that there is still huge room for improvement
in China. According to the China Nuclear Energy Association
and third party research institutions, it is expected that China will
approve new nuclear power generating units at a rate of 6-8 units
per year, reaching an installed capacity of 120GWe (0.12 billion kW)
in operation by 2030 and 150GWe (0.15 billion kW) in operation by
2035.

************* EEENRR DN

EBRE
RERRRE
BETBEZTH

B ERENEERLEMTE - &8
AEBETX2RRRENTE  EHET
= BRERWBTE - KRFEH - AJAME
REFERARHEEANRAE - KRS
FTREIRAVFEIR

HR AERRRERFEER @ -
20224 - IAEA¥I2050F Z I X BB
SRR SATERE 2B & A TERIE R
T10% ' FBEH B 2050 &F 2B AZ B EREAS
1T 873GWe : [ - B UxCTEA -
F2035 F 2B BERKAE K ESD
543GWe * B12022 F RIEK37% © AN -
mz &5 18 @B R A 57 8 FEH EfE 2
JH o BRI IREAS0GWe RN £ ¢
BT R - 2B IIEREXMEIEK -

BE EPRZERBEHIE TETHED
[HGEE - RPAINERT - REZER
BAGHRBI TR BN ERELS - 2013F
E5 RFEZEREGHLBE LA #
2013 F H2.11% B K = 2018 F X BEM
ERRIA4.22% F EEERIAI4.98% +
BERRNEEHSHETFIHE10% -
Blig B RAM EFZEM : RIEFBRIZAET
e hE=FIRKE  BEREBE
RR6-88 FHIREZEFIZEHAE -
20304 7£ i 5 i B i 120GWe (1.218 F
L) - 2035 4 1 & 2 # 2] 32 150GWe (1.5
BFR)-
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In addition, in terms of the attitude of the global major countries in
nuclear power deployment, many countries around the world have
been putting forward favorable policies for the nuclear power industry
this year in response to the energy insecurity caused by the Russia-
Ukraine conflict and the winter energy crisis, and mainly articulated
in the following aspects: delaying the decommissioning of nuclear
power plants, restarting more nuclear power plants, developing new
generation nuclear power technologies, incorporating into national
green financing scope, and providing capital channels. The above
measures will have a long lasting and far-reaching impact on the
global supply and demand for nuclear power.

Natural uranium market analysis

First, in terms of the trend of spot and long-term trade, the volume
of long-term trade rose rapidly in 2022 and is expected to maintain
growth in the future. Following the Fukushima Daiichi accident,
uranium prices were kept low for extended periods and no new long-
term contracts were signed for a long time, with power plant owners
procuring in the spot market to meet demand not covered by long-
term contracts, while most natural uranium producers supported their
sales with long-term contracts signed prior to the Fukushima Daiichi
accident. However, in 2022, the long-term contract volume started
to rebound, and the signing of new long-term contracts represents
that under the stimulation of rising spot uranium prices, the long-
term demand from nuclear power plant owners will gradually become
prominent, and the fundamentals of the natural uranium market will
improve, injecting real strength of recovery to the natural uranium
market. However, it should be noted that the volume of long-term
contracts has not yet returned to the level in 2010 and there is still
room for growth in the future.

Second, in terms of global energy security and supply landscape,
the price of conventional fossil fuels rose sharply and energy security
and energy independence have reached an unprecedented level
of importance since February 2022. As time passes, the conflict
between Russia and Ukraine has not abated, and the Zaporizhzhia
nuclear power plant has been bombarded, which further triggered
fears on energy crisis. North American and European countries have
adopted supply diversification strategies to reduce their dependence
on Russian nuclear fuel supply, and the global nuclear fuel supply
landscape will change accordingly.

BAN - ERRTEEREZELBENEE
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BEMSEBERBERAGHOREENS
Ko RED RAMAEEEARSEWAIE
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Third, in terms of multilateral cooperation on nuclear fuel, many
countries have started multilateral cooperation based on the
attitude of embracing nuclear energy and for ensuring the safety
and stability of their fuel supply, such as the in-depth cooperation
between China and Kazakhstan: In October 2022, President Xi
Jinping visited Kazakhstan, during which China and Kazakhstan
issued a joint statement clearly stating the two countries will deepen
their cooperation in the field of oil, gas and natural uranium. In
December, Kazakhstan’s Ulba-FA delivered the first batch of nuclear
fuel components to CGN, which is a typical example of successful
multilateral cooperation among leading enterprises in the world’s
nuclear industry.

In addition, as for natural uranium transportation and delivery routes,
due to the impact of the Russia-Ukraine conflict, some transportation
routes may face impediments to smooth passage and the stability of
the delivery time of uranium producers may be impaired, for example:
in October, Kazatomprom stated that in response to the blockage
of the “St. Petersburg route” and the lack of capacity on the “Trans-
Caspian Sea route”, it was looking for alternative routes to overcome
its inability to meet deliveries, and might consider to hold discussions
with Turkey to establish a rail line to the port of Mersin, or discuss
with China to establish a route from the China-Kazakhstan border to
Shanghai. Although this incident did not affect the production and
product delivery of the uranium mining enterprises of Kazatomprom,
the market is more strongly aware of the concentration on the supply
side of the natural uranium industry, and this feature will not change
significantly in the short to medium term.

Finally, the trend of financial institutions’ purchases for investment
was stable throughout the year, which may further increase the
pressure on the supply-demand gap. At the end of 2021, financial
institutions including Sprott and Yellow Cake Plc purchased large
volume of natural uranium in the spot market, and chose to hold for
long term instead of selling in the spot market in 2022, which may
further give pressure on the secondary supply formed by the spot
commercial inventory in the future.

In summary, the natural uranium market is expected to continue its
recovery in 2023.

************* EEENRR DN
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT OUTLOOK
Operation of Semizbay-U

In accordance with the production plan of Kazatomprom, Semizbay-U
will continue to operate in accordance with its production reduction
plan in 2023. The Company will continue to actively participate in the
governance of Semizbay-U through its board of directors to ensure
that Semizbay-U completes its annual production plan and product
sales tasks and achieves its annual profit target. The despatch team
will strengthen the supervision on the implementation of annual
production and operation plan and annual budget, especially the
completion of the mine preparation work and natural uranium
processing work on time with good quality to ensure the enterprise
can accomplish its operational goals with safe production. In 2023,
Semizbay-U will continue to promote re-estimation of the geological
reserves of its mines, and to explore increasing the reserve of
Semizbay-U to prepare for enhancing sustainability.

Operation of Ortalyk

In 2023, the Company will continue to participate in the governance
of Ortalyk through its board of directors to ensure Central Mynkuduk
Deposit and Zhalpak Deposit can complete their annual production
plans and product sales tasks and achieve their annual profit targets;
on the other hand, the mine construction work of Zhalpak Deposit
shall commence on time and the annual mine construction missions
are to be completed with high quality. The despatch team will actively
participate in the production and operation management of the mine,
inspect and supervise the implementation of the annual production
and operation plan and annual budget, to ensure the enterprise
complete the annual operation targets with safe production and
efficient operation. At the same time, the despatch team shall monitor
the progress and quality of the mine construction of Zhalpak Deposit
to ensure completion of the mine construction plan on time with good
quality.
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Management and Control on Fission

In respect of Fission, the Company mainly relies on participation in its
board of directors to involve in its major decision-making and exert
influence, while continuously deepening the technical support to the
PLS project and enhancing regular technical exchange. In 2023, the
Company will strengthen the communication and exchange with
Fission, especially for the discussion of technical solutions referred to
in the feasibility study report.

Active Expansion of Trading Business

The Group will strengthen its business dealings with end customers,
such as global nuclear power plants owners, actively participate
in international market bidding, develop new business models and
actively explore new trading opportunities under the premise of strict
control of operational risk to ensure the achievement of annual trade
targets.

Acquisition of New Uranium Resources Projects

The Group is optimistic about the continuous growing trend of natural
uranium demand brought by the stable development of global nuclear
power. The Company will continue to focus on the world’s high-
quality mining resources and seek for potential uranium resource
investment opportunities to build a sustainable pipeline of low-cost,
high-quality uranium resources to achieve continuity of production
capacity and provide nuclear power owners with a sustainable and
stable uranium resource.

Implementing equity incentive policy

In order to improve the medium and long-term incentive and binding
mechanism of the Company, to strengthen the benefit-sharing and
risk-taking among Shareholders, the Company and employees, to
enhance the sense of belonging and loyalty of the management
and core staff, to fully mobilize the enthusiasm of the Company’s
senior and middle management and core staff in achieving strategic
objectives, and to realize the joint development of the Company and
employees, the Company will continue to explore medium and long-
term incentive plans, such as share option scheme.

************* EEENRR DN
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RISK IDENTIFICATION AND MANAGEMENT

The comprehensive risk management system of the Company
functioned effectively in 2022 with all risks under monitor and there
were no significant risk incidents. The completed major work include:

Firstly, operating a risk management system in a solid manner. The
comprehensive risk management process is closely integrated with
the annual PBA work to form a closed loop management mechanism.
In terms of risk identification and assessment, organizing the
Company’s management and all units to identify risks and give scores
regularly, and departments involving risk management updates the
list of risks according to the business progress dynamics. In terms
of risk response, the risk responsibility department formulates and
implements response measures or contingency plans, which are
updated in a timely manner according to the business progress,
clearly specifies the person responsible for the response measures to
ensure that all measures are implemented, and information platform is
used to regularly collect the Company’s material risks.

Secondly, continuing to optimize the specific risk management.
Comprehensive management procedures and mechanisms for each
specific risk management area are established. In terms of operational
risks, the Company pays close attention to the impact of changes
in the international situation on the Company’s operation, studies
and judges the changes in the US-China relations and Russia-
Ukraine conflicts, and introduce quantitative analysis of the impact
of exchange and interest rates and natural uranium price fluctuations
on the Company’s operation, so as to provide timely warnings
and resolve risks. In terms of legal risks, the Company tracks and
identifies legal risks through annual reports, quarterly reports and
thematic meetings, and continuously pays attention to the changes
in laws and regulations and political situation in countries where our
overseas projects are located. The Company pays close attention to
changes in geopoalitical situation and amendments to the Investment
Canada Act. In terms of financial risk, the Company pays close
attention to the impact of exchange and interest rate fluctuations on
the Company’s operations and optimize the Company’s finance costs
and adopts refined loan management tools to reduce the debt ratio.
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Thirdly, benchmarking and exchange and improving the risk
management level. The Company systematically improves risk
management capabilities, conducts risk exchange and learning with
peer companies, communicates good practices in risk management,
develops risk management ideas, and enhances risk management
capabilities in a more targeted manner.

Upon systematic assessment and analysis, the Company is subject
to the following two main risks in 2023:

Production and operational risks of the projects in Kazakhstan.
Due to factors such as the pandemic and the Russia-Ukraine conflict,
the prices of raw materials such as sulfuric acid and casing pipes
required for mining production and transportation costs continued
to rise, at the same time, mine preparation costs and production
costs increased due to inflation. The Company is making progress in
the major purchase contract review and optimization plan, launches
special actions for cost control, implements refined cost management
and strictly controls mine production costs, and prepares reasonable
and economical mining plan and adopts refined management to
ensure the achievement of production target.

The risk of fluctuation of interest rate and exchange rate on
the Company’s operation. Starting from 2022, the US Federal
Reserve has adopted a more aggressive interest rate hike policy and
the increase in USD interest rates will adversely affect the Company’s
financial cost control and financial profit in 2023. The unstable
exchange rate of Tenge against USD may cause the dividends
for Shareholders to be adversely affected by the fluctuation of the
exchange rate on the Company’s operation. Debt structure has been
reviewed and risk management on debts has been completed as
planned. The Company continues to pay attention to the changes
in interest rates and exchange rates and plans in advance to control
finance costs. Based on the study of the exchange rate trend of
Tenge/USD, the Company has proposed on the dividend strategy for
Semizbay-U and Ortalyk for the year of 2022.

************* EEENRR DN
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND ANALYSIS BIERIBER D

Financial performance reflects the operation performance of the PHRRERBRAEE2FELEN A
Group throughout the year. By paying attention to changes in BT BIEREE - B2 EERAS
financial indicators, business development of the Group can be B EKERAMR

comprehensively understood.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS AND POSITION IS EBE RN TEE
Major Financial Indicators FEHHBIEE

Profitability indicators
ERgENERE
Profitability indicators BAENER
Gross profit margin (%)’ EHE (%) 4.06 2.29
EBITDA (HK$ million) EBITDA(& & ET)2 630.70 248.09
EBITDA/Revenue ratio (% EBITDA, /4 £ 28 1 3 (%)° 17.29 6.43
Net profit margin (%)* F o N2 (%) 14.11 4.62
Operation ability indicators EERIER
Trade receivables cycle — average FEN BR TR B — 35 (K)°

(Daysp 21 21
Inventory cycle — average (DayspP FEEE -8 195 168
Investment return indicators REBIHMIER
Return on equity (%) ez B (%) 18.71 8.54
Profit attributable to owners of the RAREE AEE BT 88 R K

Company to revenue ratio (%} (%)° 14.11 4.62
Return on assets (%) BEBIRE (%) 7.79 3.39
Repayment ability indicators EEREIER
Bank balances and cash (HK$ million) $RiT#EFRE € (FEET) 52.39 81.29
Net tangible assets (HK$ million)° BREEFRE(FEET)° 3,345.81 2,151.25
Gearing ratio (%)'" BRE ELL 2 (%) 105.06 194.61

Notes: Mz

1. Difference between revenue and cost of sales divided by revenue multiplied by 1. BRBEREEN A ZERNERERRU
100%. 100% ©

2. The sum of profit before tax, finance costs, depreciation of right-of-use assets 2. BRELATER] - BUEMA - EREEERER
and depreciation of property, plant and equipment, if any. Mm% - BB RREBITE @A) M -

3. The sum of profit before tax, finance costs, depreciation of right-of-use assets 3. BIRADES - BERA - RAEEENER
and depreciation of property, plant and equipment, if any, divided by revenue ME - BERREFENE) 2RISR
multiplied by 100%. FEHFELA100% ©

4, Profit for the year divided by revenue multiplied by 100%. 4 AN IR DA S BB R A 100% ©

5. Average receivables (i.e the arithmetic average of the beginning and the end of 5. 15 RS AR 3K (AN & BT E R AT F 35 (E)
the Reporting Period) divided by average daily sales (i.e revenue divided by 360 BRUASESS B IHE 3R (B & £ #ER ASB0K) °

days).
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6. Average inventories (i.e the arithmetic average of the beginning and the end of 6. F1FE (AN RS B ERE N F9E) Br A
the Reporting Period) divided by average daily costs of sales (i.e costs of sales 5 A SHEMK AR (BIEHE AR LAS60K) °
divided by 360 days).

7. Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company divided by total 7. AR BB AFERFE RS R B IAF =S
average equity (i.e the arithmetic average of the beginning and the end of the Bl VRS HPEREM TFHE) BRA
Reporting Period) multiplied by 100%. 100% °

8. Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company divided by revenue 8. RABIEEABIEFENENRIAL EBHE
multiplied by 100%. A100% ©

9. Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company divided by total 9. RABEB ABMRFERNERRATEHHEE
average assets (i.e the arithmetic average of the beginning and the end of the wE AR E RO REM THE) BRA
Reporting Period) multiplied by 100%. 100% -

10. Total equity less right-of-use assets, net. 10. ERBEREATRAEEERNFE -

11. Total debt divided by total equity multiplied by 100%. 11. BTG AR RARR A 2 ARE B R LA100% ©

Financial results

The profit of the Group was HK$515 million in 2022, representing
a year-on-year increase of 188% as compared to that of HK$178
million in 2021.

REVENUE

IR ES

REE2022F ) A51588BT ' &
2021FRI178 8 & /B TTA LIE NN188% o

For the year ended

31 December Movements
BZE12A31HLEE k)
Increase/ Increase/
2022 2021 (Decrease) (Decrease)
2022 2021 #tn/(RL) &/ (HD)
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 %
THET TAT FTHERT Bot
Natural uranium trading KARWHE S 3,645,362 3,856,085 (210,723) (5)
Property investment MERE 3,318 3,445 (127) (4)
Total revenue WA 3,648,680 3,859,530 (210,850) (5)

The revenue of the Group was HK$3,649 million in 2022, representing
a decrease of 5% as compared to that of HK$3,860 million in
2021, primarily due to CGN Global reducing its purchase and sales
during the year to avoid excessive increase in the average costs of
inventories.

REE20225F & H 5 R3,6498 BT
2021F M3,860E EB LR A5% « £E
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SHERA

For the year ended

Cost of sales

31 December Movements
HZ12A31HLEE 25

Increase/ Increase/
2022 2021 (Decrease) (Decrease)
20224 202148 #m/(R4) i/ (RD)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 %
FTHExT FHT THET Btk
Natural uranium trading cost ~ KAHE A A 3,500,648 3,771,251 (270,603) (7
Property investment MERE - - - N/A TER
Total cost of sales HERKETT 3,500,648 3,771,251 (270,603) (7)

The cost of sales of the Group was HK$3,501 million in 2022,
representing a decrease of 7% as compared to that of HK$3,771
million in 2021, mainly due to the corresponding decrease in cost of
sales as a result of the decrease of CGN Global’s purchase and sale
during the year to avoid excessive increase in the average costs of
inventories.

Gross profit and gross profit margin of natural uranium trading

Affected by the increase in sales in the off-take business and the
broadening of trade spreads of CGN Global, the Group recorded a
gross profit from natural uranium trading of HK$145 million in 2022,
representing an increase of 71% as compared to that of HK$85
million in 2021, and the gross profit margin of natural uranium trading
increased to 3.97%.

Other operating income

The other operating income of the Group was HK$22 million in
2022, representing an increase of 135% as compared to that of
HK$9 million in 2021, mainly due to CGN Global's inventories leasing
business, which was launched in response to market opportunities
and customer demand.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group was HK$13 million in
2022, substantially the same as compared to that of HK$14 million in
2021.

REBE2022F SHEM A R3,501 B EE
JC * BR2021F M3, 771 B BB TR 7% -
FERARPEZEREE AT ABET
BT AN LRBR - BRETFARER
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group was HK$49 million in 2022,
representing an increase of 17% as compared to that of HK$42
million in 2021, mainly due to the increase in UK interest withholding
tax.

Share of results of a joint venture

The joint venture of the Company is Semizbay-U. As at the end of
the Reporting Period, the Group held 49% of the equity interest of
Semizbay-U, which mainly owns and operates the Semizbay Mine
and the Irkol Mine in Kazakhstan. The remaining 51% equity interest
of Semizbay-U is held by Kazatomprom.

The Company indirectly acquired 49% interest in Semizbay-U in
2014 at the consideration of USD133.0 million and such 49% interest
in Semizbay-U is recognised as interest in a joint venture of the
Group which amounted to HK$434 million as at 31 December 2022,
representing 6% of the total assets of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group received a total of HK$113
million dividend from Semizbay-U and the addition of share of results
of Semizbay-U to the Group amounted to HK$209 million.

Share of results of associates

The Company’s associates include Ortalyk and Fission .

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Group held 49% of the
equity interest of Ortalyk which mainly owns and operates the Central
Mynkuduk Deposit and the Zhalpak Deposit in Kazakhstan. The
remaining 51% equity interest of Ortalyk is held by Kazatomprom.

The Group acquired 49% interest in Ortalyk in 30 July 2021 at the
consideration of USD435.1 million and such 49% interest in Ortalyk is
recognised as interest in an associate of the Group which amounted
to HK$3,389 million as at 31 December 2022, representing 49% of
the total assets of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group received a total of HK$315
million dividend from Ortalyk and the new share of results of Ortalyk
to the Group amounted to HK$286 million.
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As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Group held 13.75% of
the equity interest of Fission, which mainly engages in acquisition
and development of exploration and evaluation of uranium assets,
mainly the PLS project in the south west margin of Saskatchewan’s
Athabasca Basin in Canada.

The Company acquired 19.99% interest in Fission in 2016 at the
consideration of CAD82.2 million which has been subsequently
diluted to 13.75% as a result of issue of new shares by Fission to
investors as well as under the share option scheme of Fission. Such
13.75% interest in Fission is recognised as interest in an associate
of the Group which amounted to HK$547 million as at 31 December
2022, representing 8% of the total assets of the Group. The Group
had not received any dividend from Fission during the Reporting
Period.

During the Reporting Period, Fission issued 10,899,300 ordinary
shares under subscription of new shares by investors, 1,239,463
ordinary shares upon exercise of share options, 16,627,059 ordinary
shares upon exercise of warrants and 121,792 ordinary shares as
part of director remuneration, resulting the percentage of equity
interests in Fission held by the Company as at 31 December 2022
decreased to 13.75% (31 December 2021: 14.34%).

The Company’s share of results of Fission was a profit of HK$28
million, which includes share of loss for the Reporting Period of HK$8
million, loss on deemed disposal of HK$2 million and the reversal of
long-term investment impairment of HK$38 million.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have significant
investments save for its interests in Semizbay-U, Ortalyk and Fission
disclosed above.

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group was HK$62 million in 2022,
representing an increase of 24% as compared to that of HK$50
million in 2021, mainly due to the year-on-year increase in average
financial costs as a result of the year-on-year increase in annual
average interest-bearing debt scale in 2022 and the continuous high
USD interest rate in 2022.
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Income tax expenses

Income tax expense of the Group was HK$52 million in 2022,
representing an increase of 189% as compared to that of HK$18
million in 2021, mainly due to the increase in the amount of tax
payable as a result of the significant increase in gross profit from
natural uranium trading and the significant increase in share of results
of a joint venture and share of results of associates.

Profit for the year

The profit of the Group was HK$515 million in 2022, representing an
increase of 188% as compared to that of HK$178 million in 2021.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND ANALYSIS

Total assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total assets were HK$6,866
million, representing an increase of 8% as compared to HK$6,350
million as at 31 December 2021, mainly due to the increase in the
inventories as a result of the increase in natural uranium prices as
compared with the corresponding period of 2021. In addition, the
Group’s off-take trading to its immediate holding company, China
Uranium Development at the end of 2022, resulting in an increase
in trade and other receivables as compared with the corresponding
period in 2021.

Total liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total liabilities were HK$3,518
million, representing a decrease of 16% as compared to HK$4,194
million as at 31 December 2021, mainly due to the repayment of
shareholder loans to immediate holding company.

Net current assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s net current assets were
HK$383 million, representing an increase of 121% as compared
to HK$-1,821 million as at 31 December 2021, mainly due to the
repayment of shareholder loans to immediate holding company by
the Group during the Reporting Period, resulting in a significant year-
on-year decrease in current liabilities as compared to 2021.
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As at 31 December Movements
M2H31H 25
Increase/ Increase/
2022 2021 (Decrease) (Decrease)
20224 20214 #t/(R2) &/ (H)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 %
THET TET THET Bt
Inventories 53 2,048,471 1,743,152 305,319 18
Trade and other receivables ~ FEUER N K E b e W FIA 343,396 99,390 244,006 246
Amount due from an FEY — R BIER A BIFIE
intermediate holding
company 1,679 2,392 (713) (30)
Amount due from a fellow FEW —RR R KB A FFIE
subsidiary 18 20 (2) (10)
Income tax recoverable AU E TS TR 760 6,956 (6,196) (89)
Bank balances and cash BITHEGERRE 52,390 81,293 (28,903) (36)
Total current assets HRBEERE 2,446,714 1,933,203 513,511 27

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total current assets were
HK$2,447 million, representing an increase of 27% as compared
to HK$1,933 million as at 31 December 2021, mainly due to the
increase in the inventories as a result of the increase in natural
uranium prices as compared with the corresponding period of 2021.
In addition, the Group’s off-take trading to its immediate holding
company, China Uranium Development at the end of 2022, resulting
in an increase in trade and other receivables as compared with the
corresponding period in 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of bank balances
and cash of the Group was HK$52 million (31 December 2021:
HK$81 million), among which, approximately 43% (31 December
2021: 28%) was denominated in HKD, approximately 31% (31
December 2021: 47%) was denominated in USD, approximately 15%
(81 December 2021: 19%) was denominated in RMB.

20229 12A318 * AEBEREEER
BER2,447TEEEIT - 82021512 H31H
#91,933F BB ILEM27% - FERAX
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any bank deposits
and cash pledged to any banks (31 December 2021: Nil). The ratio of
current assets of the Group over total assets was 36% (31 December
2021: 30%), and the ratio of bank balances and cash over total assets
was 1% (31 December 2021: 1%).

Non-current assets

~~~~~~~~~ ERBHMR DA

2022912 A31H « REBRABTMR
T#F IR EIFLERTT (2021512 431
H: |\ AEERDEECEEENL
1 536% (2021412 531 H : 30%) * iR
THEFRESEBREENLLHA1% (2021
F12A318 1 1%) °

FRBEE

As at 31 December Movements
M12A31H e

Increase/ Increase/
2022 2021 (Decrease) (Decrease)
20224F 20214  #h0,/(RA) &/ (hD)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 %
THER TAT TET Bt
Property, plant and equipment  #1% « BiE Mk E 1,262 887 375 42
Right-of-use assets EREEE 2,327 3,970 (1,643) (41)
Investment properties BEME 45,785 53,082 (7,297) (14)
Interest in a joint venture R—Eeehx s 433,995 358,011 75,984 21
Interests in associates NN 3 3,935,248 3,994,804 (59,646) (1)
Other receivable Hofth FE U R IB 367 367 - -
Deferred tax assets BB E 9 5,161 (5,152) (100)
Total non-current assets ~ FREBEELE 4,418,993 4,416,372 2,621 -

As at 31 December 2022, the total non-current assets of the Group
were HK$4,419 million, substantially the same as compared to that of
HK$4,416 million as at 31 December 2021.

R2022F12A31H ' AEBEREEE
BEAL4198 BB #R2021F12 A 31
Hi4,416 B BB LERFF -

39



40

CGN Mining Company Limited Annual Report 2022

Management Discussion and Analysis

ERENWRASN

Current liabilities

RBRE

As at 31 December Movements
M2H31H 28
Increase/ Increase/
2022 2021 (Decrease) (Decrease)
20224 20214 8/ (A4) i/ (BD)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 %
THERT FHET THERT Bt
Trade and other payables FETBRN S HLA FE 5 3R 1,043,828 1,103,368 (59,540) (5)
Loans from a fellow subsidiary R 8 —EIF ZHTE AR 2 &R - 236,530 (236,530) (100)
Loan from immediate holding KRB EREIEMA R 2 B
company 47,694 2,400,197 (2,352,503) (98)
Bank borrowings RITIEK 957,752 - 957,752 100
Lease liabilities HERE 1,560 1,445 115 8
Amount due to an intermediate &1~ — R EIHEAR A B8
holding company 1,120 1,117 3 -
Amount due to fellow FERTR R KB A BFIE
subsidiaries 1,060 2,188 (1,128) (52)
Income tax payable e PRIE K 10,697 9,270 1,427 15
Total current liabilities BB ERE 2,063,711 3,754,115 (1,690,404) (45)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total current liabilities were
HK$2,064 million, representing a decrease of 45% as compared
to HK$3,754 million as at 31 December 2021, mainly due to the
repayment of shareholder loans to immediate holding company by
the Group during the Reporting Period.

M2022F 12 A31H - AEBERBAEE
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Non-current liabilities

~~~~~~~~~ ERBHMR DA

FRBEE

As at 31 December Movements
MW12A31H B
Increase/ Increase/
2022 2021 (Decrease) (Decrease)
20224 20214 i/ (B2) i/ (hd)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 %
THERT FHET THERT Bt
Deferred tax liabilities ERERIBAE 57,281 50,066 7,215 14
Loans from a fellow subsidiary RE—FERZEMEARZEHR 1,395,914 - 1,395,914 100
Bank borrowings RITIE - 387,754 (387,754) (100)
Lease liabilities HEBE 662 2,417 (1,755) (73)
Total non-current liabilities 3 REBEBEE 1,453,857 440,237 1,013,620 230

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total non-current liabilities
were HK$1,454 million, representing an increase of 230% as
compared to HK$440 million as at 31 December 2021, mainly due to
the drawdown of loans by CGNM UK during the Reporting Period.

M2022F12A31H - REBEERBAE
BER1,4548 8% T © 82021412 431
H&4408 878 T4 N230% » T2 RAR
CGNM UK IREBINIRER T EH ©

Total equity A
As at 31 December Movements
M12A31H BE

Increase/ Increase/
2022 2021 (Decrease) (Decrease)
20224 20214  #h0,/(R4) i/ (hD)
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 %
FTExT FEIT FEx Aokt
Share capital RN 76,007 66,007 10,000 15
Reserves G 3,272,132 2,089,216 1,182,916 57
Total equity EREE 3,348,139 2,165,223 1,192,916 55
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As at 31 December 2022, total equity of the Group amounted to
HK$3,348 million, representing an increase of 55% as compared to
HK$2,155 million as at 31 December 2021, mainly due to completion
of issuance of new shares and accumulation of profit during the
Reporting Period.

The Group’s gearing ratio (total debt divided by total equity multiplied
by 100%) was 105% (2021: 195%).

Assets and investments

Save as disclosed above, during the Reporting Period, the Group
did not conduct any significant equity investment, major acquisition
or disposal in relation to relevant subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures.

Investment direction

According to the business positioning and development strategy of
the Group, the main investment direction of the Group remains to be
acquiring competitive overseas uranium resource projects with low
cost. The Group will carry out relevant investment activities as and
when appropriate, to laid the foundation of further development of the
Group.

Financial capital

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had a total of 7,600,682,645
ordinary shares in issue (31 December 2021: 6,600,682,645 ordinary
shares) ordinary shares, and the market capitalization of the Company
was approximately HK$6,157 million (31 December 2021: HK$5,149
million).

On 26 November 2021, the Company entered into subscription
agreements with 11 subscribers for the subscription of an aggregate
of 1,000,000,000 new Shares at the subscription price of HK$0.80
per Share. For details, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities”
in the Directors’ Report of this annual report.
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3,348F & BT W2021F12H31HK
2,155 B & B LIEN55% « T B RE LR
HEANTRFTIREITREFER -

AEBEABBHL R (BEKEARE TS
BEHBFEIA100%) £105% (20214
195%) °

BEERRE

B EXIEEIN  ARBERHREMARE
TTERMBELRR  BEARREEDREN
BEARERE BEARERLE -

RERM
REAEEXKELMERYE - RED
GRS W ERANEI N ERIER
REERETR  IHERARBERE
AE) RAREHE-SERETER

MBER
BRAL

MR2022F 128318 » AR A HE#ITE
A% 7,600,682,6450% (2021412 A 31
H : 6,600,682,6450% L i@A%) - MELA
6,157 A &AL (2021F12A31H : 5,149
BEBT) °

R2021F11 A26H * A AR E11ZRE
AR RE R - IEER0.80/ TTHIR
BEEREE A £1,000,000,0008# A& 15 »
E@FE  #H2HAFRPESTSRE
[BA - PEXBERAARN TR —

B o



FEZEERRAR —TFFH

Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity risk and financial resources

The Company adheres to prudent capital and treasury policy and
goals. During the Reporting Period, the Company’s operating fund
was mainly from the cash generated from operating activities and
external borrowings. The capital requirements of the Company mainly
come from possible acquisition costs for acquiring natural uranium
resources and funds for operation.

The Group has sufficient financial resources for daily operation and
business and does not have seasonal borrowing demands. If any
suitable acquisition opportunity arises in the future, the Group will
raise funds from diverse financing channels.

The Company’s financing capacity is affected by multiple external
and internal factors. To obtain financing on more favourable terms,
the Company shall understand the external financing environment
and adopt a reasonable financing model and strategies based on its
structure of assets and liabilities.

The Company pays close attention to financial market trends, actively
considers its responses to internal and external financial risks,
formulates reasonable models and strategies to ensure the safety
and economic efficiency of financing, and takes strict management
measures on debt risks to prevent exposure to related risks and to
facilitate the financial health and development of the core business.

Financing model

Given the complex and ever-changing financial market, the Company
has been exploring diverse financing methods and strives to establish
a financing model with combination of short-, medium-and long-term
capital, merged direct and indirect financing and multiple financing
channels to secure stable funds. In the process of debt financing,
the Company has taken a balanced approach between cost and
safety. The Company aims to obtain competitive financing cost but
does not consider lowest financing cost as the only objective to avoid
compromising financial safety and the quality of services received.

For projects with large capital expenditures and sound expected
returns, the Company will prudently consider using equity financing to
balance risks and enhance Shareholder value.
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MANAGEMENT

The Group’s development comes with various financial risks, such as
debt risks and exchange rate risks.

Risk management of debt

As at 31 December 2022, the bank borrowings (drawdown in 2022)
were US$124 million, denominated in US$ with floating interest rate
and were unsecured with interest ranged from 5.01% to 5.41% per
annum. Loans from a fellow subsidiary (drawdown during the year
2022) were US$180 million, denominated in US$ with fixed interest
rate and were unsecured and interest bearing ranged from 4.59%
to 5.27% per annum. Loans from immediate holding company
(drawdown during the year 2022) were US$6 million, denominated
in US$ with floating interest rate and were unsecured and interest
bearing of 5.75% per annum.

To manage liquidity risk, the Company closely monitors the cash,
cash equivalents and unutilised credit to ensure sufficient liquidity
for operation and to reduce the effects of cash flow volatility. The
Company’s management also keeps an eye on external borrowing to
ensure sufficiency of available credit. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group has undrawn credit of US$1,048 million, which can be utilised
to provide sufficient cash for the Group’s operation and to reduce the
impact of cash flow volatility.

Exchange rate risk

The Company’s functional currency is US$. During the Reporting
Period, the Group’s sale and purchase of products were mainly
settled in US$ and RMB (2021: US$ and RMB), while its cash was
mainly denominated in US$ and HK$ (2021: US$ and HK$). Daily
expenses, including administrative expenses, sales and distribution
expenses, were mainly settled in US$, HK$ and RMB (2021: US$,
HK$ and RMB). The Group was not subject to any material exchange
rate risk during the Reporting Period.

For exchange rate risk management, the Company aims to control
cost rather than profitability. In 2022, the Group had no forward
foreign exchange contracts, interests or currency swaps or other
financial derivatives for hedging purposes, and experienced no
significant difficulty or impact on its operation or liquidity due to
exchange rate fluctuation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Contingency events
External guarantees

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not provide any guarantee
for external party (2021: Nil). The guarantee provided by the Company
to CGN Global, a wholly-owned subsidiary, was US$200 million
(2021: US$150 million) and US$123.5 million (2021: US$50 million)
was utilised. The Company does not allow subsidiaries to provide any
form of guarantee to any entity or individual without the approval of
the Company.

Pledge of assets

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not pledge any of its assets
(2021: Nil).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2021: Nil).

Legal proceedings

The Company confirms that there was no significant litigation, and
that it was nor aware of any pending or threatened litigation against it,
which had or could have a material and adverse effect on its financial
condition or operation during the Reporting Period.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Details of changes in accounting policies as required under the
applicable accounting standard are explained in notes 2 and 4 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The Company is committed to establishing and fulfilling a good
corporate governance practice and procedures, for ensuring a quality
Board, sound internal control, and transparency and accountability to
all Shareholders in order to enhance credibility and reputation of the
Company. We firmly believe that good corporate governance practice
can earn the trust of Shareholders as well as other stakeholders,
and most importantly, preserve the long-term interests of the
Shareholders.

In addition, a healthy corporate culture is critical to the achievement
of the Group’s vision and strategy. The Group is committed to
maintaining high standards of business ethics and corporate
governance in the Company’s business activities. Directors,
management and employees are all required to act in a lawful, ethical
and responsible manner.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

Executive director, chairman and chief executive officer

Mr. An Junjing (“Mr. An”), aged 49, joined the Group in January
2018 and is currently an ED, the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company and serving as the managing
director of the CGNPC-URC and the chairman of Swakop. Mr.
An joined Guangdong Nuclear Joint Venture in July 1996 and
successively served as the head of the general training division
and assistant to director of the training centre of Daya Bay Nuclear
Operation Management Co., Ltd.* (K% B ELERARETA
A]) and the deputy general manager of Fangchenggang branch from
March 2003 to December 2011. Mr. An served as the manager of
production department and subsequently as the assistant to general
manager of Guangxi Fangchenggang Nuclear Power Co., Ltd.* (&
TR B X E B R A 7)) from December 2011 to May 2014. Mr. An
served as the deputy director of the office of the board and director
of the research office of CGNPC from May 2014 to February 2016.
He served as the deputy general manager of the (presiding) system
management department of CGNPC from February 2016 to January
2018. Mr. An graduated with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering in
nuclear and thermal energy utilization from Tsinghua University in July
1996 and subsequently obtained a Master’s degree in engineering
in nuclear energy and nuclear technique engineering from Shanghai
Jiao Tong University in June 2009. Mr. An was accredited as a senior
engineer by CGNPC in 2009.

RRTRBANHE R BT RIFOEEER
FRLREF  NERSRENESTE - 2
EHAERELE - LA IR VB AR E A
Al MRAARRNRENRBE -
FRERFHNDREEERAMEBIRIA
NEMFBRENEE  IREENZ A
HEERRREN S -

I BENEEXCHERAEEAFE
ERRBREFEE - AREFNRER
ANEBARSTRESFRENAXBER
TXRER -BEF  BEEBERETHAMNSG
% HaERkARENTAITE -

EEfHN

BITES TEREEHTE
TEEFEE([ZEE]D @ 4958 - 20185
1TAMAREE BERRARRITES -
EEEXFRERNTE  AREETE
ZMERRESR  AEEBERIBAFE
ER o RRERI1996F7 AMAERIXE
A E W H2003F3AE2011F 12 A H1/A
EBETADEREELERARETA
AERAFIIEER - BIlROEEER
RABIIRERMWAED QAR AL
LTS o THRER2011F12 A E20145F5
ABRGEEEEEANHEZERR AR
EEEPACIE RABACIRENIR - WHN20144F5
RZE2016F2 A BEEEF EZEE AT
EEENAERTARMEETEMT - K H
201692 A E£2018F1 A AP EZEE
NABREERIREE (ERFIHE - %
FHEN1996F7 A ZENFERZLES
ZRERBREFIRER T EET B - W
%21 20094F 6 A S LG BABMIXAE
HZRIN IREETRELEN - L
FR2000F EH Bz & B A Flm R TIZATE
T8 o



FEZEERRAR —TFFH

Corporate Governance Report

Executive director

Ms. Xu Junmei (“Ms. Xu”), aged 44, appointed as an ED and the
chief financial officer of the Company in March 2022 and serving
as the director and the chief accountant of CGNPC-URC. Between
August 2002 and August 2013, Ms. Xu worked for KPMG Huazhen
LLP, including two years of secondment at the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council
between June 2011 and August 2013. Ms. Xu joined CGN Group
in August 2013 and has held various positions, including deputy
manager and manager of the finance department of CGNPC-URC
and the deputy director of the finance shared service center of CGN
Power Co., Ltd. (listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange with
stock code: 01816; and listed on the SZSE with stock code: 03816).
Ms. Xu graduated from the University of Science and Technology
Beijing with a Bachelor of Arts degree, specialised in English, in
July 2002 and obtained a Master of management in business
administration from Tsinghua University in July 2015. Ms. Xu is a
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
also a Certified Internal Auditor conferred by The Institute of Internal
Auditors.

Non-executive director

Mr. Sun Xu (“Mr. Sun”), aged 57, joined the Group in November
2018 and is currently a NED of the Company and serving as the
director of CGNPC-URC, and CGN Energy International Holdings Co.,
Limited* (Bl EZaelR B IZRR B R A R]), respectively. Mr. Sun
joined Guangdong Nuclear Power Joint Venture in June 1990 and
served in management positions at various group members of CGN
Group. Since January 2011, Mr. Sun served as a full-time director
of CGN Group and has been a full-time director and a member of
various professional committees to various group companies in
nuclear power, nuclear fuel, new energy and other industries. Mr. Sun
graduated from the Asia International Open University (Macau) in April
2001 with a Master’s degree in business administration. Mr. Sun was
accredited as a senior economist by CGNPC in September 2014. Mr.
Sun was appointed as a convener of external directors of members
of CGN by CGNPC in 28 February 2023.
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Non-executive director

Mr. Yin Xiong (“Mr. Yin”), aged 57, joined the Group in November
2018 and is currently a NED of the Company and the director of
CGNPC-URC, and has been serving as a full-time director of CGN
Group since April 2017. Mr. Yin joined CGN Group in September
2001, prior to which he held various management positions in China
National Nuclear Corporation* ({2 El1Z T %422 5]) and government
bureaux in Sanya, Hainan Province in the PRC. After joining CGN
Group, he successively served as the responsible person of some
important departments and/or senior management of CGNPC,
Daya Bay Nuclear Power Operation and Management Co., Ltd.*
(REEZEELEEAMREMTATR) and Yangjiang Nuclear Power
Co., Ltd.* ((BIZE BB A A). From January 2016 to April 2017,
Mr. Yin served as an executive director and general manager of
Shenzhen Nengzhihui Power Sales Co., Ltd.* (FIIT e~ [EE S84
EHREA7A]), Which is an electricity sales company of CGN Group.
Mr. Yin received a Bachelor’'s degree of science in nuclear physics
and nuclear technology from Lanzhou University in July 1986 and
a Master’s degree of science in July 1988. In May 2008, Mr. Yin
received his Ph.D. degree of management in business administration
from Grenoble School of Business in France. Mr. Yin was accredited
as a researcher-level senior engineer by CGNPC in December 2010.

Non-executive director

Mr. Liu Guanhua (“Mr. Liu”), aged 40, joined the Group in July
2022 and is currently a NED of the Company. Mr. Liu is also the
managing director of the investment department of Chengtong Mixed
Ownership Private Equity Fund Management Co., Ltd.* (s EN
AEHSEERBFR AR (“Chengtong Mixed Ownership”), mainly
responsible for investment in new energy. Mr. Liu has also been a
director of Shanghai Jie-Hydrogen Technology Co., Ltd.* (L/&# &
BHE R B R A R) since September 2021, and a director of Beijing
Micro-structure Workshop Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (1t R #iE Ti54E
YR AR A F)) and Zhejiang Hancheng Technology Co., Ltd.* (4
TTEREHL AR A R)) since December 2021. Mr. Liu graduated from
the Central South University with a bachelor of science degree in
applied chemistry in June 2005. Mr. Liu further obtained a Master of
Science degree in advanced chemical engineering with biotechnology
and a PhD degree from the Imperial College of Science, Technology
and Medicine in November 2006 and August 2010, respectively.
Mr. Liu was accredited as a senior engineer by Chinese Academy
of Sciences in 2013 and a chartered financial analyst by the CFA
Institute in 2017.
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Independent non-executive director

Mr. Qiu Xianhong (“Mr. Qiu”), aged 60, joined the Group in August
2011 and is currently an INED of the Company. Mr. Qiu possess the
qualification as a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC and a senior
accountant of the PRC. Mr. Qiu also served as an executive director
of Beijing Furun Tianming Financial Consultant Co., Ltd* (1t R & Ex
BREf 7 EE R AR A Al). Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Qiu was a
partner of Beijing QQCPA Accounting Firm, the deputy head of the
financial department and assets management department of China
Packaging Corporation* (B8 %4~ 7)), the finance controller
and the vice secretary general to China Institute of Strategy and
Management, independent non-executive director of Qinhuangdao
Tolilan Heavy Industry Co., Ltd., and the deputy director of finance
department of preceding National Patent Bureau* (BEIZX £7|/5). Mr.
Qiu graduated with a Bachelor’s degree in financial accounting from
Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics.
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Independent non-executive director

Mr. Gao Pei Ji (“Mr. Gao”), aged 76, joined the Group in August
2014 and is currently an INED of the Company. Mr. Gao also serves as
an independent non-executive director of CITIC Resources Holdings
Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange with stock
code 01205). Mr. Gao was a deputy director of C & C Law Office
in Beijing, a leading law firm in China, between 1984 and 1993. Mr.
Gao became a partner of Clifford Chance between 1993 and 2007.
Following his retirement in 2007, he became a PRC legal consultant
to Clifford Chance, Hong Kong office. Mr. Gao has extensive and
diversified experience in a broad area of legal practices, including
banking and finance, direct investment (both inbound and outbound
from the perspective of the PRC) in the areas of energy, natural
resource and petrochemical projects. Mr. Gao has been involved in
the development of nuclear power projects since 1985, including the
development of Daya Bay nuclear power project, the incorporation
of the operating company for Daya Bay and Lingao nuclear power
plants and the development of the Taishan nuclear power project
(applying third generation technology). Mr. Gao holds a LLM degree
from the Law School of University of California, Berkeley. He has been
admitted to practice law in the PRC since 1984.

Independent non-executive director

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis (“Mr. Lee”), aged 55, joined the Group in
August 2014 and is currently an INED of the Company. Mr. Lee was
admitted as a Certified Practising Accountant of the CPA Australia
in June 1996 and a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) in October 1999.
Mr. Lee is currently a Fellow Certified Practising Accountant of the
CPA Australia and a Fellow Certified Public Accountant of HKICPA.
Mr. Lee has accumulated and possessed extensive experience
with large groups, listed groups and professional firms in financial
management, accounting and auditing since 1993. Mr. Lee is
currently an independent non-executive director of Redsun Properties
Group Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange with
stock code 01996), Fusen Pharmaceutical Company Limited (listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange with stock code 01652),
Titan Invo Technology Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange with stock code 00872), ZONQING Environmental Limited
(listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange with stock code
01855) and Zhengwei Group Holdings Company Limited (listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange with stock code 02147). He
resigned as an independent non-executive director of Windmill Group
Ltd (listed on main board of Stock Exchange with Stock code 01850)
in November 2021. Mr. Lee graduated with a Bachelor of Economics
from Macquarie University in Australia in 1992.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ding Huaibo (“Mr. Ding”), aged 41, is currently the vice
president of the Company and serving as a vice general manager of
CGNPC-URC. Mr. Ding joined CGNPC-URC in 2009 and has served
as the deputy manager of the industry development department
and the nuclear fuel department and the manager of the nuclear
fuel department. Mr. Ding had also served as the nuclear fuel
management manager of CGNPC and CGN Power Co., Ltd. (listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange with stock code: 01816;
and listed on SZSE with stock code: 03816). Mr. Ding graduated
from Xi’an Jiaotong University with a bachelor of science degree in
applied physics in 2004 and from Tsinghua University in 2009 with
a doctor of science degree in physics. Mr. Ding possesses over 13
years of experience and knowledge in the nuclear fuel industry.

Mr. Shan Xuequn (“Mr. Shan”), aged 51, is currently the assistant
president of the Company and serving as the assistant general
manager of CGNPC-URC. Since January 1998, Mr. Shan has worked
in the Office of the State Economic and Trade Commission and the
Office of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council (the Party Committee Office),
successively serving as a cadre, chief section officer, deputy director
of the Secretariat Division 1 and researcher, etc. In May 2016, he
joined CGNPC and CGN Power Co., Ltd. (listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange with stock code: 01816; and listed on the SZSE
with stock code: 03816), successively serving as assistant to the
director, deputy director of the President’s Office and the assistant
general manager of the Investment and Development Department.
Mr. Shan graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology in July 1994
with a bachelor’s degree in engineering, majoring in aircraft structural
design and strength, and graduated from Renmin University of
China in July 1996 with a master’s degree in economics, majoring in
industrial economics.
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Mr. Zhou Rongsheng (“Mr. Zhou”), aged 52, is currently the
assistant president of the Company and serving as the assistant
general manager of CGNPC-URC. Prior to joining the CGN Group,
Mr. Zhou was previously lecturer and an associate professor of
school of nuclear science and engineer, an associate professor
and head of education and training centre of school of mechanical
engineering of Shanghai Jiao Tong University. Mr. Zhou joined CGN
Group in September 2010, and served as nuclear fuel manager of
technology and production management department, head of nuclear
fuel management division of technology research and development
department of CGNPC, and head of nuclear fuel management
division of asset operation department of CGN Power Co., Ltd.
Mr. Zhou joined CGNPC-URC in January 2016 and acted as the
assistant general manager since then. Mr. Zhou graduated from
Anhui Education College* (%1124 & 2B ) with a Bachelor’s degree of
chemistry in 1995 and obtained a Master’s degree of engineering in
nuclear fuel cycle and material from Nuclear Power Institute of China
in 1998 and obtained a Ph.D. degree of engineering in nuclear fuel
cycle from the same school in 2002.

Mr. She Dong (“Mr. She”), aged 53, joined CGNPC in 2011 and is
currently a joint company secretary and the general counsel of the
Company and serving as the secretary of board of directors and
general counsel of CGNPC-URC. Prior to joining the Company and
the CGNPC Group, Mr. She worked with the Accounting Centre of
China Aviation (FEIfZ=45E
including deputy manager and deputy head of the planning operation

I») and had held various positions,

department (FT&I4E £ &). Mr. She obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
law from the China University of Political Science and Law in July
1992 and graduated from the Université de Montréal with master’s
degree in law in Canada in December 2009. Mr. She acquired a
professional qualification in law in the PRC, has over 20 years of
experience in legal and compliance related areas.
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Mr. Tian Deqiang (“Mr. Tian”), aged 40, is currently the assistant
president of the Company and serving as the assistant general
manager of CGNPC-URC. Mr. Tian joined China Nuclear Power
Engineering Co., Ltd.* (FEZITEHBR A7) in September 2006
and successively worked in the Lingao Phase Il on-site project
department, Fangchenggang project department, Hongyanhe project
department and Construction Management Centre. Mr. Tian joined
China General Nuclear Power Corporation in March 2016, and
previously served as the systems business manager of the Policy and
Systems Division of the System Management Department. Mr. Tian
joined CGNPC-URC in September 2018 and previously served as the
general manager and chairman of CGNPC-URC Logistics (Beijing)
Co., Ltd.* (P EZEHZE DR (L) BR A7), a subsidiary of CGNPC-
URC. Mr. Tian graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University in July 2004
with a bachelor’s degree in engineering, majoring in equipment
engineering and management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Under code provision C.2.1 of part 2 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Mr. An Junjing has been both the chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board believes
that Mr. An Junjing has served as both the chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of the Company to ensure consistent
leadership and operation. The Nomination Committee will identify
suitable candidate(s) for making recommendations to the Board to be
appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had adopted and complied
with all the applicable code provisions of part 2 of the Corporate
Governance Code during the Reporting Period.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the standards of
securities transactions by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed,
following specific enquiries made, that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code regarding Directors’
securities transactions during the Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition and role

The Board of the Company currently comprises eight Directors,
including two EDs, three NEDs and three INEDs. The composition
of the Board is based on a comprehensive consideration of the
Directors’ professional skills, working background and qualification
and demonstrated differentiated and diversed arrangement. The
members of the Board during the Reporting Period and up to the
date of this report are as follows:

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ CEREARE
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Environmental,
Social and
Remuneration Audit Nomination Governance
Committee Committee Committee Committee
B HER
Directors yHzEg EVZEE REZEE ERZEE
EDs HTES
Mr. An Junjing (chairman and ZERLE
chief executive officer) (FRZERHTE) exi’ ¢
Ms. Xu Junmel (appointed on REBLT (202253 714R
14 March 2022) BZH) C
Mr. Chen Deshao (resigned on BRIEEDALAE (120223 A 14H
14 March 2022) BT)
NEDs FHTES
Mr. Sun Xu Bk M M
Mr. Yin Xiong RiExE
Mr. Liu Guanhua e
(appointed on 19 July 2022) (120227 F19REZR(T) M
INEDs BUFHTES
Mr. Qiu Xianhong BitEs G G M
Mr. Gao Pei Ji RIEERE M M M
Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis FEREA M M M
C — Chairman of the relevant Board committees ils ?:@E’Uiff
M — Member of the relevant Board committees M= ﬁﬁg§$§g%i@m% o=
exM — Former member of the relevant Board committees oM - AHEEZAWHHKR
Note: BT
) Ceased to be a member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 14 1. H2022F 314 B THBEATFHEESZ
March 2022, 8-
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The Board is responsible for formulating the overall strategy and
policy of the Group and ensures there are sufficient capital and
management resources for the implementation of relevant strategies
and the completeness of the financial and internal control systems,
and the compliance with relevant legal requirements in business
operation. All members of the Board have fulfilled their duties and act
in the best interest of the Group and Shareholders. Unless otherwise
disclosed in this annual report, to the knowledge of the Company,
there was no financial, business, family and other material/related
relationship among members of the Board.

All Directors should comply with Rule 3.08(d) of the Listing Rules at
all times to avoid actual and potential conflict of interest and duties. In
each meeting of the Board and special committees of the Board (the
“Meetings”), Directors are required to declare if they have any interest
in the matters being considered in the Meetings. If a Director or any of
his associates have material interests in the matters to be considered/
approved, the Director will not be counted as the quorum and will
not vote at the meeting. The Director may not be present during the
discussion on related matters.

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association of the Company
and the Corporate Governance Code, all Directors are required
to retire from office by rotation once every three years. The Board
complies with Rules 3.10 (1) & (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules in
relation to the appointment of at least three INEDs, which represents
at least one-third of the Board, and one of the INEDs has appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise. As of the Reporting Period, the qualifications,
number and proportion of independent non-executive directors were
in compliance with regulatory requirements.

The Company has established a mechanism to ensure independent
views and advice are available to the Board through seeking the
external independent professional advice from legal advisers and
auditor, as well as the full attendance of all INEDs at all the meetings
of the Board and its relevant committees. The Board reviews
the implementation and its effectiveness of the aforementioned
mechanisms on an annual basis.
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Responsibilities of the Board EFERE

As the decision-making body of the Company, the Board

takes charge of the corporate governance function. The major
responsibilities of the Board include the tasks stated below. The
Board may delegate the responsibilities to other committees as it
thinks fit:

@)

to review the Company’s policies, programs and procedures
and make recommendations as necessary from time to time;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices to
ensure compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements;

to oversee the implementation of any code of conduct and/
or business ethics of the Company to ensure the Company’s
compliance with the relevant rules and regulations, including
but not limited to the Listing Rules and the Takeovers Code;

to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report;

to form any committee(s) or panels, appoint members thereto,
delegate at any time and from time to time to any person
or committee(s) or panel(s), any of its powers and functions
conferred on it, review and approve the reports of the
committee(s) and panel(s), review their performance and revise
their composition and terms of reference as appropriate;
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(@ to oversee all matters and to formulate policies in relation to the (@  EEEAQARRANEIEE  EER
Company’s internal control, succession plans, remuneration and 2 ExHESHFHEME - B

compensation for Directors and employees, risk management,
corporate governance and corporate social responsibility, and
to supervise the implementation of such policies conducted by
the Company’s management;
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AREBARRANEEEEHZS
BURAVBIL ;

)
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(h) investigate any significant instances of non-compliance or
potential non-compliance of the Company; and

(i) to do any such things to enable the Board to discharge its
obligations and responsibilities.

Major work performed by the Board in relation to its corporate
governance function in 2022 includes:

1. reviewing and approving the Board’s major work plan of 2022
(including summary of the Board work of 2021);

2. reviewing and approving the report on the comprehensive risk
management of 2022 (including summary of risk management
situation of 2021);

S8 reviewing and approving the internal audit plan of 2022
(including summary of the internal audit work of 2021);

4. reviewing and approving the internal control evaluation report of
2021;

5} reviewing the interim report on the implementation of comprehensive
risk management of 2022;

0. reviewing the enhancement plan on CGN Mining’s Environmental,
Social and Governance reporting work;

7. reviewing and approving the establishment of an Environmental,
Social and Governance Committee;

8. reviewing and approving the amendment on the terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee; and

9.  reviewing and approving the adoption of the independence
evaluation and management regulations and whistle-blowing
and anti-corruption regulations of the Board.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

All Directors, including the chairman, are required to retire from office
by rotation once every three years and are subject to re-election by
Shareholders at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
Articles of Association and the Corporate Governance Code. The
Articles of Association of the Company provides details in relation to
the procedures of election and appointment of the Directors.

Besides, pursuant to article 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Directors appointed to fill casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the next general meeting after their appointment, and shall
be subject to re-election at general meetings.

All Directors will enter into a director service contract with the
Company immediately after their appointment for a term of two years
and subject to retirement and re-election at least once every three
years. The contract sets out the details of the duties and obligations
of Directors. All Directors understand that they have joint responsibility
towards all Shareholders in terms of the operation, business and
development of the Company. They are required to fulfill Directors’
duties according to the director service contract and relevant laws
and regulations. All Directors confirm that they provide sufficient time
and effort in company affairs, express their views cautiously and
diligently and fuffill their Directors’ duties.

Directors’ Interests

As recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of part XV of the SFO, none of the Directors held Shares of the
Company or associated companies as at 31 December 2022.

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ CEREARE
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Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional Development

Newly appointed Directors will receive an introduction package
related to the laws in relation to directors of a listed company and
their duties, which covers the statutory and regulatory obligations of a
director.

Pursuant to code provision C.1.4, directors should participate in
continuous professional development training to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company encourages all Directors to
participate in continuous professional development to ensure better
fulfillment of Directors’ duties and contribution to the Company’s
development. During the Reporting Period, all Directors participated
in continuous professional development by attending internal training,
seminar or forum. Furthermore, attending training seminars or reading
materials is also beneficial to continuous professional development.

A summary of training taken by the Directors in 2022 is set out as
follows:

Directors

EERIIRBEERRRE

BEENHESHUI BB LT RARES
RETESRHHAERERERE T
A AEREEFEENEEERE -

RIETAGRXECAAMERTE  EEEL
HPBEEXERIR NEREEHHE
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B’ o

2022 - ER2EBFIFRMAT -

Type of training

BIER

EDs HITES

Mr. An Junjing ZEIBRAE b

Ms. Xu Junmei REWZET b,c

NEDs FHITES

Mr. Sun Xu FBEAE b

Mr. Yin Xiong BRI S b

Mr. Liu Guanhua B ELE ab.c

(appointed on 19 July 2022) (1202257 B19B EELF)

INEDs BYFHTES

Mr. Qiu Xianhong Ef St A ab

Mr. Gao Pei Ji SEELE ab

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis RIS AE ab
a. Attending training seminars in person/via video: on 23 November 2022, the a. LRE AR INIE B - RARR20224F

Company held a training session for Directors, the topic was the continuing
disclosure obligations of the Company and Directors under the Listing Rules
and the latest revision to the Listing Rules.

b. Reading training materials.relevant to the Company’s business or the Directors’
duties and obligations.

@ Attending the pre-service training of Directors conducted by the legal counsel in
March and July 2022, respectively.

11A23RBRERHIFEY - TERAAR
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c. R2022F3AKRTA + H RIS AEERE
TEVE BEBATIE -
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision C.2.1 of part 2 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Mr. An Junjing has been both the chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board believes
that Mr. An Junjing has served as both the chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of the Company to ensure consistent
leadership and operation. The Nomination Committee will identify
suitable candidate(s) for making recommendations to the Board to be
appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company.

NEDS

NEDs, including INEDs, are experienced individuals from different
industries and backgrounds. At least one of them possesses
the appropriate accounting qualifications and related financial
management expertise as required by the Listing Rules. Based on
the expertise and experience of each of the Director, the Directors
assumes related responsibilities to provide independent judgment
and advise on the Company’s management. The number of NEDs
representing more than half of the Board members, which helps the
Company to make objective and independent judgment and decision.
The advice of NEDs shall be considered as major advice, in case
where there are potential conflicts of interest on the matter.

The initial term of appointment of each NED is two years and is
subject to retirement and re-election as required by the Articles of
Association, and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party to the
other.

The Company has received from each INED the annual confirmation
of independence in compliance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
After taking into consider of the factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, the Company is of the view that all the INEDs are
independent.

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ CEREARE
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. She Dong (“Mr. She”) and Ms. Lai Siu Kuen (“Ms. Lai”) have
been appointed as joint company secretaries of the Company on
27 September 2021. Mr. She is currently the general counsel of the
Company, and Ms. Lai is a director of Corporate Services of Tricor
Services Limited and works closely with Mr. She, who is also her
primary contact person at the Company.

The role of the company secretaries is to support the chairman
of the Board, the Board and relevant committees, and to ensure
smooth communications and timely transmission of information. At
the same time, the company secretary plays an important role in
ensuring the Board meetings are convened in accordance with laws
and regulations, and the Board’s decisions are executed correctly.
The company secretary is also an important communication bridge
between the Company and Shareholders, and assists the Board
to perform its responsibility to Shareholders in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

In accordance with the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. She and Ms.
Lai have received no less than 15 hours of professional training during
the Reporting Period.

BOARD PROCESS AND ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS

There are at least four regular Board meetings held every year, and
ad hoc Board meeting is convened when necessary. In addition to
written resolutions, Directors participated in the meetings either in
person, by proxy or through electronic means of communications.
Board members have full access to the business development of the
Company at the meetings at regular interval.

At least 14 days’ notices of all regular Board meetings were given
to all Directors, who were given an opportunity to add matters in
the agenda for discussion. The finalised agenda and accompanying
board papers were sent to all Directors at least 3 days prior to the
meetings.
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During the Reporting Period, there were four Board meetings held by RMEHA - ARFIHBRINESTE S
the Company in total. The attendance of each Director at the Board w BEFHRESgSRMEEEES
meetings and relevant committee meetings are as follows: EEMNERNT

Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held

HERY ERETRH

Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Position Meeting Committee Committee Committee

Bt Ex® BNZEE®  ¥MZEE 2 REZEe

Mr. An Junjing ED, chairman of the Board and chairman of the 3/4 N/A 11 11
Nomination Committee and member of the
Remuneration Committee
(resigned as a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 14 March 2022)

ZEBEE HITEE  ETEIR  RAZESLIRRFM 3/4 TEA il 1/1
REERE (M202F3A14RBTHMZES
Z8)
Ms. Xu Junmei ED (appointed on 14 March 2022) 4/4 N/A N/A N/A
BREFLL HITES (R2022F3F14REZ(T) 4/4 A TER TEA
Mr. Chen Deshao  ED (resigned on 14 March 2022) N/A N/A N/A N/A
BRiEmLE HITES (R2022F3 A 14BEHT) @R A TR TEA
Mr. Sun Xu NED and member of the Audit Committee 4/4 3/3 N/A N/A
49 FHTEERERZESEZE 4/4 3/3 N NEA
Mr. Yin Xiong NED 4/4 N/A N/A N/A
BRI E FHITEE 4/4 N N MNER
Mr. Liu Guanhua ~ NED and member of the Remuneration Committee 2/2 N/A N/A N/A

(appointed as the NED and a member of the
Remuneration Committee on 19 July 2022)

ABERLE FHITES FMEEEZER (R2022F7A19H 2/2 TER TEA TEA
BZERFHTESRENZEEEE)

Mr. Qiu Xianhong  INED, chairman of both the Audit Committee and 4/4 3/3 11 11
the Remuneration Committee and member of
the Nomination Committee

b BUFNTES BEGZEGIRE HWZES 4/4 3/3 1/1 11
IERREZERZE
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Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held

HERY, ERETRY

Board
Position Meeting
B Ezg
Mr. Gao Pei Ji INED, member of the Remuneration Committee 4/4
and the Nomination Committee
BEREAE BAUEWTES  FMEESZERREZES 4/4
%8
Mr. Lee Kwok INED, member of the Audit Committee, the 4/4
Tung Louis Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee
FEREE BUFHITES  BREZE2%8  FHZEES 4/4
ZELRAEERERE

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a controlling
Shareholder or a Director arise, the matter would be considered and
approved in a physical meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by
written resolution. Other Directors and INEDs with no material conflict
of interest would be present at the relevant meetings.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors and officers liability
insurance in respect of potential legal action against Directors.

DELEGATION AND WORK DONE BY THE BOARD

The Board provides leadership and oversees the Group’s business
management, strategic decisions, performance and affairs.

The Board has formulated a clear written policy that delineates
matters reserved for Board approval of the Group. The reserved
matters include, among other things:

1. business development and planning;
2. corporate policies;

S financial planning;

4. investment planning;

O annual budget;

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
ERERE FHEEE BERZEE
N/A 1/1 11

ek 1/1 11
3/3 11 11

3/3 1/1 11
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O CREABE

6. major disposals and acquisitions; 6. FEHERKEET

7. major connected transactions; 7 FEBERZS

8. appointment of Directors, company secretary and other senior 8. BF RawEREMSRER
management; and ZEE R

9. other significant operational and financial matters. 9. HihBAREERMEER °

In addition to work relating to corporate governance function, other
major work performed by the Board during the Reporting Period
includes:

1.

10.

11.

considering, reviewing and approving the annual results of
2021, annual report and matters relating to the annual general
meeting;

reviewing the implementation report of 2021 and approving
the business plan of 2022;

reviewing and approving the budget planning of 2022;

reviewing and approving organizational adjustment and staff
planning of 2022;

reviewing the (continuing) connected transactions execution
report of 2021;

considering the appointment of the auditor of 2022 and
determination of their remuneration;

considering the continuing connected transactions of the
Financial Services Framework Agreement (2023-2025)
entered into between CGN Mining, CGN Finance and CGNPC
Huasheng;

considering the continuing connected transactions of the
Natural Uranium Sales Framework Agreement (2023-2025)
entered into between CGN Mining and CGNPC-URC;

reviewing and approving the change of Directors;

reviewing and approving the investment strategy of Fission;
and

reviewing the 2023 business plan preparation ideas.

FREDREIATIEER B TIES -
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The day-to-day operation and management of the Group is
delegated to the senior management. Certain authorities are also
granted to relevant Board committees, the granted authorities and
responsibilities are reviewed by the Board from time to time.

BOARD COMMITTEES

There are four committees under the Board of the Company,
which are the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and Environmental, Social and Governance
Committee, with its terms of reference established. Each specific
committee performs on specific area, provides comments and
recommendations to the Board for consideration.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is delegated by the Board to exercise its
specific rights within the ambit of the terms of reference.

As at 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee comprised a NED,
namely Mr. Sun Xu, and two INEDs, namely Mr. Qiu Xianhong
(chairman) and Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis.

The function of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in
providing an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management systems
of the Group, and oversee the audit process. The Audit Committee
also serves as a focal point for communication, among Directors, the
external auditors, and the management as regards financial reporting,
internal control and the auditing.

Major work performed by the Audit Committee during the Reporting
Period includes:

1. hearing the report on 2021 audit works by the auditor;

2. considering the draft of annual report and the result

announcement of 2021;

3. considering the internal audit plan of 2022 (including the
summary of the internal audit work of 2021);

4. considering the internal control evaluation report of 2021;
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B¢ considering the report on the comprehensive risk management
of 2022 (including the summary of comprehensive risk
management of 2021);

6. reviewing the interim results and matters relating to interim
report of 2022;

7. considering the interim report on the implementation of
comprehensive risk management report of 2022; and

8. communicating on the audit plan of 2022.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had no disagreement with the
Audit Committee’s view on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditors.

Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for setting up and maintaining
effective internal control system and for reviewing its effectiveness,
to safeguard the Group’s assets and Shareholders’ interest. The
Board conducts annual reviews to ensure that the resources,
staff qualifications and experience in relation to the Company’s
accounting, internal audit, financial reporting and the Company’s
environmental, social and governance performance and reporting,
and training courses and related budgets received by staff are
adequate. The management of the Company at each level assesses
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system
by reviewing it. Internal control evaluation department reports to
the Audit Committee once a year on key findings regarding internal
controls. Audit Committee, in turn, communicates any material issues
regarding internal control system to the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee conducted a
review on the effectiveness of the internal control system (including
financial controls, operational controls and compliance controls),
and no significant control failings were identified. Therefore, the
Board considered that the internal control systems of the Group
are effective, and complied with the provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is delegated by the Board to exercise
its specific rights within the ambit of the terms of reference.

As at 31 December 2022, the Remuneration Committee comprised
one NED, namely Mr. Liu Guanhua (appointed on 19 July 2022) and
three INEDs, namely, Mr. Qiu Xianhong (chairman), Mr. Gao Pei Ji
and Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis.
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The function of the Remuneration Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure of all remuneration of EDs, NEDs and senior management
and suggest the remuneration packages of the EDs and senior
management to the Board with reference to the corporate goals and
objectives.

No Directors’ remuneration adjustment was made during the
Reporting Period. Mr. Sun Xu, Mr. Yin Xiong and Mr. Liu Guanhua,
NEDs, have waived their remuneration of Directors.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the annual remuneration of the members of the senior management
(excluding the Directors) by band during the year ended 31 December
2022 is as follows:

HriNsEE (8 )

Remuneration band (HK$)

Nil to 1,000,000

1,000,001 to 1,500,000
1,500,001 to 2,000,000
2,000,001 to 2,500,000
2,500,001 to 3,000,000
3,000,001 to 3,500,000

0-1,000,000

1,000,001-1,500,000
1,500,001-2,000,000
2,000,001-2,500,000
2,500,001-3,000,000
3,000,001-3,500,000

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5 highest
paid individuals are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board to exercise its
specific rights within the ambit of terms of reference.

As at 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee comprised one
ED, namely Mr. An Junjing (chairman) and three INEDs, namely Mr.
Qiu Xianhong, Mr. Gao Pei Ji and Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis.

The function of the Nomination Committee is to review and
formulate the nomination procedure as regards the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of Directors; review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and make recommendations or
any proposed changes to the Board to implement the corporate
strategy; and make recommendation to the Board on candidates
for appointment as Directors.- The Nomination Committee follows
rigorous selection procedure in choosing the right person as
a member of the Board. Various criteria such as appropriate
professional knowledge, experience, skills and possible contribution
of the candidate will be considered.
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During the Reporting Period, major work performed by the
Nomination Committee includes:

1. recommending the retirement and re-election of Directors at
the annual general meeting;

2. assessing the independence of INEDs;
38 considering the change of director; and
4. considering the establishment of an Environmental, Social and

Governance Committee.

Board Diversity policy

The Board adopted the “Board Diversity Policy” and review its
implementation and effectiveness annually. The Company recognises
the merits of Board diversity and sees the edge of Board diversity
in driving competitiveness. In making up the Board’s composition,
the Board considers various skills, regional and industry experience,
background, gender and other attributes of the members of the
Board. All appointments of the Board are based on the talent, skill
and experience of the individual, as well as gender diversity, so as to
meet the operational needs.

As at 31 December 2022, the Board composition can fulfill the
diversity requirements on skills, background, regional, gender and
industry experience, therefore, the Board has not set any measurable
objectives.

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND WHISTLE-BLOWING POLICY

The Group does not tolerate any corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud
or money laundering during the course of its business activities. As
such, it has formulated an anti-corruption and whistle-blowing policy
(the “Anti-Corruption and Whistle-blowing”) which prohibits all forms
of corruption practice by making reference to the relevant laws and
regulations. The Anti-Corruption and Whistle-blowing Policy forms an
integral part of the Group’s corporate governance framework, which
sets out the specific behavioural guidelines that the employees of the
Group must follow to combat corruption. The Anti-Corruption and
Whistle-blowing policy is designed to provide the employees and any
external parties with confidential whistleblowing channels to report to
the Group the actual or suspected illegal activities and misconducts in
corporate financial reporting, internal control or other areas. The Anti-
Corruption and Whistle-blowing Policy is reviewed and updated on a
regular basis to align with the applicable laws and regulations as well
as the industry best practices.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements, the HKFRSs have been adopted, appropriate accounting
policies have been used and applied consistently, and reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates have been made. The Board is
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

The Company’s auditor, BDO Limited, acknowledged its reporting
responsibilities pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code. The
auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the independent auditor’s
report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration paid by the Company
to the auditor, BDO Limited and its affiliate company, is set out as
follows:

FriR RV AR 3%

Services rendered

BRI

Audit services

Non-audit services IEEIZ AR

The significant amount of fee incurred for non-audit services arose
from review of interim results, consultation service on continuing
connected transactions and consultation service on acquisition
projects.
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SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

In order to ensure that all Shareholders of the Company enjoy equal
status and effective exercise of their own rights, the Company
convenes general meetings every year in accordance with the Articles
of Association. During the Reporting Period, two general meetings
were held, namely the annual general meeting on 16 June 2022
and the extraordinary general meeting on 15 September 2022. The
attendance of each Director is as follows:

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ CEREARE
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Number of
general meetings
attended/

Number of general

meetings held

HERE

SRBITRE

Mr. An Junjing REIELE 1/2
Ms. Xu Junmei(appointed on 14 March 2022) BEWLZE (FR2022F3 A14B AR T) 2/2
Mr. Chen Deshao (resigned on 14 March 2022) PRIEAR S A (520223 A 14 H BHE) N/A T iE A
Mr. Sun Xu o9t 2/2
Mr. Yin Xiong BRI A 2/2
Mr. Liu Guanhua (appointed on 19 July 2022) BB EEL A (R2022%7 A19BEZT) 11
Mr. Qiu Xianhong ERSEdt e 2/2
Mr. Gao Pei Ji EIEELE 2/2
Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis RIS AE 2/2

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of Association, on the requisition
of one or more Shareholders at the date of deposit of the requisition
holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up share capital of the
Company having the right to vote at general meetings, the Board is
obliged to proceed to convene an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company.

Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the
company secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting and deposited at the registered office of the
Company in Cayman Islands and/or the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong. The requisitionists must state the
purposes of the meeting and sign the requisition letter.
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If the Directors do not convene a meeting within 21 days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may convene a meeting, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
may be made in writing and sent to the attention of the joint company
secretary, Mr. She Dong, in one of the following ways:

1. By post: CGN Mining Company Limited
Room 1903
19/F, China Resources Building
No. 26 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

2. By facsimile: (852) 2116 4031

3. By email: ir.cgnmc@cgnpc.com.cn

Voting by poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39 of the Listing Rules and article 72 of the
Articles of Association of the Company, any votes of the Shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll, except where the
chairman decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted by a show of hands.

Procedures to put forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders who would like to put forward proposals at a general
meeting shall follow the procedures below:

On the requisition in writing of either: i) any number of Shareholder
of the Company representing not less than one-fortieth of the
total voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition
relates; or ii) not less than 50 Shareholders, the Company shall, at the
expense of the requisitionists:
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a) circulate to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next
annual general meeting notice of any resolution which may
properly be proposed and is intended to be proposed at that
meeting;

b) circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general

meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one
thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited
at the registered office of the Company in Cayman Islands and/or
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong for
the attention of the company secretary not less than 6 weeks before
the general meeting, in case of a requisition requires notice of a
resolution, or not less than 1 week before the general meeting for any
other requisition.

Change in Constitutional Documents

During the Reporting Period, there was no change in the constitutional
documents of the Company.

Risk management and internal control
Comprehensive risk management

The Company has basically established a relatively comprehensive
risk management system. With reference to relevant risk management
requirements of the “Risk Management Guidelines” of ISO31000:2018
standard and the Corporate Governance Code, the Company
effectively identified, evaluated and managed the significant risks.
It also strictly implemented the Comprehensive Risk Management
Policy. Meanwhile, the Company classified and managed the overall
risk business, namely significant risk, specific risk, project investment
risk and general risk, and established corresponding risk management
process. The Board, management, the risk management department
and business departments were responsible for their relevant duties
within risk management, and the Board was responsible for the
risk management, the internal control system and the review of the
effectiveness of such systems to ensure the efficient operation of the
system.

Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failing to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.
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Internal audit

During the Reporting Period, the Company conducted audit work
such as risk management assessment, internal control assessment
and the audit work on economic responsibilities of the general
manager of CGN Global. By implementing specialized audit and
risk management reviews and internal control assessment, regular
management advices were provided to the Board to effectively
prevent and monitor the risks inherent in the operation and
management of the Company in the relevant areas, which has played
an active role in the internal audit in risk prevention and control and in
ensuring the legal and compliance of the Company.

At the same time, the audit department of the Company, as the lead
department for investigation responsibility for violations of business
operations, has regularly confirmed with various departments and
affiliated companies whether there is any non-compliance, and
established a complete notification and monitoring mechanism.
During the Reporting Period, no clues or problems were found for
investigating responsibility for illegal operations and investments. The
establishment of a sound system of investment accountability for
non-compliance provides further protection to the Company’s asset
safety and legal compliance operations.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the information disclosure policy which
contains the detailed procedures to ensure that inside information
could be identified timely and remain confidential until the disclosure
of such information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination
of such information is effectively and consistently made.

Human Capital

We have built up an excellent team of management and professional
talents, with the guidance and value of treasuring, caring for and
optimizing talents to support the sustainable development of the
Company.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 22 employees, among
which 5 in Hong Kong, 1 in Beijing (to be expatriated to Kazakhstan),
9 in Kazakhstan and 7 in UK. For further information about staff
remuneration, please refer to the relevant contents in notes 14 and
15 of the consolidated financial statements.
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Professional qualifications

Among the existing workforce, employees holding professional
qualifications of middle-level and above represented 50%.

Employment Mechanism
Path of development

The Company cares growth and career development of each
employee, and has set two paths of career development, namely
the management and the professional technical path, and has
established the switch mechanism between the two paths. Staff can
freely choose from the two career development paths and show their
talents. Meanwhile, the Company provides guidance to staff to set up
their personal career development plan, so as to help them to make
rapid career growth.

Internal talent market

For better use of the ability and expertise of each employee, the
Company established the internal talent market. Vacancies will first
be filled by internal talents, through which the aspiration of individual
employees can be better realized and optimized the allocation of
internal human resources, thus to accomplish the development of
both the Company and employees.

Evaluation System

In order to ensure the Company’s objectives can be effectively
implemented, we have established both incentive and restraint
mechanisms, and tends to guide employees’ conducts by way
of continuous communication, feedback and improvement. The
Company established a complete performance management
system by following the steps of communication, coaching, tracking
and assessment during the formulation and implementation of the
performance plan, so as to reach the expected performance results,
and promotes the co-development of the Company and employees.
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Cultivating talents

The Company always adheres to the concept of “cultivating prioritizes
training” and implements the basic requirements of “training,
assessment, authorization and employment” for the training for
all employees, authorized employment and lifelong education by
absorbing the experience and good practice of international talent
training, and establish an effective independent talent training system
and a standardized training management system by combining with
its own development characteristics.

The Company formulates a detailed graded training plan every year
to improve the quality and skills of managers and employees at all
levels through face-to-face training, online training, and face-to-face
and online mixed training, so as to effectively meets the demand for
talents for the stable development of the Company.

Remuneration system

Combined with the characteristics of the industry, the Company
constructed a competitive remuneration system which appeals to
quality talents and motivates employees effectively. The remuneration
system reflects the value of positions and individual contribution
and encourages long-term service of employees, jointly striving for
continuous growth and sustainable development of the Company and
sharing the results of corporate development. Remuneration is mainly
composed of monthly salary, performance bonus, over-time pay,
allowance and subsidy and benefits.
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The Board is pleased to present the Directors’ report and audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 as follows.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The Company is mainly engaged in trading of natural uranium ,
properties investment and other trading. The principal businesses of
our subsidiaries include trading of natural uranium and investment of
natural uranium resources. An analysis of the Group’s business for
the year is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

The head office and principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong is located in Room 1903,19/F, China Resources Building,
No. 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

EARNINGS AND DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

The earnings of the Group for the year of 2022 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 106 and 107 of the annual report.

Since the Group intends to retain sufficient capital for business
expansion, the Board did not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year of 2022 (2021: nil).

During the Reporting Period, none of the shareholders has waived or
agreed to waive any dividend arrangement.

ANNUAL RESULTS

Details of the Group’s business performance for the year of 2022
and its analysis are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” to this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which
allowing Shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits whilst
to retain adequate reserves for future growth. The declaration
and payment of dividends by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the laws of the Cayman Islands, the Articles of
Association and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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The Board may from time to time determine and pay to the
Shareholders such interim dividends as it considers appropriate. The
Board may also recommend the payment of final dividends which are
required to be approved by Shareholders in general meetings.

The ratio of final dividend distribution for the end of the year is
based on the various factors such as business performance of the
Company, including future cash commitments and investment needs
to sustain long-term business growth. In case of distributing a final
dividend, it is expected to be not less than 20% of distributable profits
of continuing business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group during the period, the Group’s
exposure to potential risks and uncertainties, business prospects,
financial performance and relevant analysis, together with compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” to this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group are set out in notes 16 and 18 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the major subsidiaries held by the Company are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period and as at the date of this report,
Directors of the Company are as follows:

EDs

Mr. An Junjing (chairman of the Board and chief executive officer)
Ms. Xu Junmei (appointed on 14 March 2022)
Mr. Chen Deshao (resigned on 14 March 2022)

NEDs

Mr. Sun Xu
Mr. Yin Xiong
Mr. Liu Guanhua (appointed on 19 July 2022)

INEDs

Mr. Qiu Xianhong
Mr. Gao Pei Ji
Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis

Pursuant to article 112 of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director shall
hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting
but shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors or
the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at such general
meeting.

Pursuant to articles 108 and 112 of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Qiu Xianhong, Mr. Gao Pei Ji and Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis will retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting, but
are eligible for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

There is no service contract, which is not terminable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation), in respect of the Directors who are
proposed and offered for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save for the transactions set out under “Connected Transactions”,
there were no any other transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance of the Group in which a Director or an entity connected
with a director is or was materially interested, either directly or
indirectly, subsisting during or at the end of Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of
the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company
has arranged appropriate liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and senior management.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 46 to
50 of this report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2022
amounted to approximately HK$733 million.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company completed its acquisition of 49% interest in Ortalyk at
the consideration of approximately US$435 million on 30 July 2021 to
increase the amount of uranium assets held as well as expanding its
natural uranium trading business. In order to replenish its capital for
its natural uranium trading business as well as for future acquisition
of competitive overseas uranium resource projects as part of the
Group’s development strategy, the Company entered into share
subscription agreements with eleven investors on 26 November 2021
for the subscription of an aggregate of 1 billion new ordinary Shares
(nominal value: HK$10,000,000) at the subscription price of HK$0.80
per Share.
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As at the date of the subscription agreements, being 26 November
2021, the closing price of the Shares as quoted on the Stock
Exchange was HK$0.98 per Share. In addition to the largest
subscriber, the China State-Owned Enterprise Mixed Ownership
Reform Fund Co., Ltd.* (FEIE B B EEE B HINERES AR LR,
eight of the remaining subscribers are investment funds that invest in
different equity securities and other investments, while the remaining
two subscribers are individual professional investors.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has allotted and issued
240,700,000 Shares and 759,300,000 new shares on 28 March
2022 and 30 June 2022. The subscription has been completed.

Upon completion of the subscription, the net proceeds after
deducting the relevant expenses of the subscription amounted to
approximately HK$776 million (i.e. net proceed of HK$0.776 per
Share). As at 31 December 2022, all amounts have been used as
general working capital.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the Reporting Period.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS AND OTHER SIMILAR RIGHTS

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no convertible
securities, options, warrants and other similar rights.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the Reporting Period, the Company does not have any share
option scheme or outstanding share option.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in notes 14 and
15 of the consolidated financial statements.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(@)

(b)

Name of Substantial Shareholder

The Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors, the chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (as defined in the
part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to divisions 7 and
8 of part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein, or which were required pursuant to the Model Code
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ interests and short positions
in the shares, underlying shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2022, according to the register kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO and so far
as is known to, or can be ascertained after reasonable enquiry
by the Directors, the following persons/entities, other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company, had an interest
or short position in the Shares and underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO:

Capacity

FERRER gt

Substantial shareholders

FERE

CGNPC Motes2.3,485)

Interest in controlled corporation

PR EE N R M2 450 RS

CGNPC-URC Motes2,426)
PR FRR Vi 0

Interest in controlled corporation
XA R

(b)

Number of Shares Mete
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BT R KA R (B IEREFE
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SRIEHER MR RKRE) IR
BEH KA E P 5E35218 8 €A
BRI AR FTIE B AL M A S Bk
B SRBEESFRIFEMEAQT
KB AP 2 W e BOK B ©

FERRRAEQXR R RERARSD
HHERRAR

R2022F12A318 © LR ARER
BEH KB GHI 23361 EE
FHELM  RESTELEEE
AEFT MR - TIATEEE
(TEEARARFRESFHESITHRA
B)RARAIRD - BN RE
5B REBIREES KEATEE
XVEE2 &35 B G SUBMA R A
BEREMERIOAE

Approximate percentage
of Shareholding Mt
BAER

Eﬁtb(ﬁﬁﬁﬂ

&ﬁg& B (1)

4,389,102,558 (L) 57.75% (1)

4,288,695,652 (L) 56.43% (L)
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Name of Substantial Shareholder Capacity Approximate percentage
Number of Shares Mt of Shareholding Mt
TERRER 5 BAER
BpE g HE B2t
China Uranium Development Beneficial owner 4,278,695,652 (L) 56.43% (L)
FEBEER EREAA
Person having a security interest 10,000,000 (L)
in shares
FARBORERROA
Other shareholders
AMRE
China Chengtong Holdings Group Limited.* M7 Interest in controlled corporation 759,300,000 (L) 9.99% (L)
B BIERE B AR AR R EEER
The China State-owned Enterprise Mixed Ownership  Interest in controlled corporation 759,300,000 (L) 9.99% (L)
Reform Fund Co., Ltd.* Nete?
HEEENEREMENEESBR AR R EEER
Chengda Holding Limited Mete? Beneficial owner 759,300,000 (L) 9.99% (L)
HEAERAR AR ERBEAA
Notes: PfEE -
1. The letter “L” denotes long position. 1. LREFE
2, CGNPC held the entire equity interest in CGNPC-URC, and CGNPC-URC held 2. FEZERERRFE T ERERERN

PR - P R E R RSB PR
BROZEEA - Bt - FEZEEAFTR
TEZMEFREAWEREETEMEDR

the entire share capital of China Uranium Development. Accordingly, each of
CGNPC and CGNPC-URC was deemed to be interested in the interest held by
China Uranium Development.

AT AR
3. CGNPC was also interested in 100,406,906 Shares in other wholly-owned 3. FREEEEDRTREMEANB ARG
subsidiaries. #9100,406,906f% B 17+ A e ©
4. The long position included (i) 4,278,695,652 Shares held by China Uranium 4. ZERRE(INWHEBMEZERFAN
Development; and (i) the interests in 10,000,000 Shares pledged by a third 4,278,695,652[ 17 ¢ K (i) —H 5 =77 K47
party. #910,000,000/% i {7 & $5 FR g 2 o
5. Mr. Yin Xiong and Mr. Sun Xu, NEDs, are also employees of CGNPC. 5. FEMITE BRI ERIRBRE T2 ER

EEARMIES -
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6. Mr. Yin Xiong and Mr. Sun Xu, NEDs, and Mr. An Junjing and Ms. Xu Junmei
(appointed on 14 March 2022), EDs, are also directors of CGNPC-URC. Mr.
An Junjing, Ms. Xu Junmei and Mr. Chen Deshao (resigned on 14 March 2022)
EDs, are also employees of CGNPC-URC.

7. According to information provided by China Chengtong Holdings Group

Limited*, Chengda Holding Limited is wholly-owned by The China State-owned
Enterprise Mixed Ownership Reform Fund Co., Ltd. (the “Mixed-ownership
Reform Fund”), which is owned as to 34.23% by China Chengtong Holdings
Group Limited. Accordingly, each of China Chengtong Holdings Group Limited
and the Mixed-ownership Reform Fund is deemed to be interested in the
interest held by Chengda Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any person
as at 31 December 2022 who had an interest or short position in the
Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES

None of the Company, or any of its holding companies or
subsidiaries, or any fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement
enables the Directors or chief executives of the Company or their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) to have any
right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BREXS

Continuing connected transactions BEBRERS

The Company entered into the following continuing connected AARHE ETRAEENEEA TR
transactions with the connected persons as defined in the Listing ~ FAFREBER S E - WL G
Rules, and transactions have been conducted in accordance with BR5 -  EHANFEBERZHNNTIE
the agreed terms. Details of the continuing connected transactions N

conducted during the Reporting Period are set out as below:

Name of agreement, ~ Transaction
date and existing party of the Nature of transaction and Annual cap, actual
term Group Counterparty ~ description Pricing basis transaction amount

| EELE EELR:
ABRAEHR FRERAR  BERRHE  RAMERER EEER L]

1 The Sales Framework ~ The Company ~ CGNPC-URG~ The sale of natural uranium  The price per pound of natural uranium shall be determined by arm’s HK$2,035,000,000/

Agreement entered on (Controling to CGNPC-URC Group by length negotiation between the Group and relevant members of HK$1,341,01,000
14 June 2019, with a Shareholder of  the Group CGNPC-URC Group on normal commercial terms, with reference

term from 1 January the Company) to the arithmetic average prices of the long-term price inalcators

202010 31 December published by UxC and TradeTech in the second month prior to the

2022 delivery month, subject o a floor price and a caling price.

I (BEERGRIROY A0F PREIAREE ASERERMATIRN AMHSEEARIEEREN2ZUCKTadTechNRR AR 2,035,000,0007 7/

FORU4ATIL (AATERR  AFEREE- HE_ERNREERERNENTHE  LEASRENRYS 1,341,081,0007C
B8 00F1A1 8 ) SEERERE AT ANATRELER  EREREERITE
ZE00212R318 e

2 The Financial Senvices ~ The Company OGN Finance ~ The Group shall setupand  Deposit services: The interest payable by GGN Finance to the Group Depost cap:
Framework Agreement andCGNPC ~ maintain RMB and foreign~ shallnot be lower than () the interest rates for the same type and 18$500,000,000
entered on 14 June Huasheng currency deposit accounts  term of depostt offered by China’s big four commercial banks to the Highest dally depostts:
2019, with a term from (subsicliaries with CGN Finance and place  Group and (i) the interest rates for the same type and term of deposit ~ RMB1,378,380,514 and
1 January 2020 to 31 oftheultimate ~ depostt. The Group shall -~ provided by CGN Finance to the other PRC subsidiaries of the CGN  charged setflement senvice
December 2022 Controling also authorise the Group's  Group. The interest payable by CGNPC Huasheng to the Group cap of RMB100

Shareholderof  accounts at third party shall be equal to or higher than () the interest rate for similar type of
the Company)  commercial banks outside  deposit offered by CGNPC Huasheng to other members of the CGN
the PRCtobelinkedasa  Group; and (i the interest rate for similar type of deposit as quoted
participant account to a cash by other independent commercial banks in Hong Kong (such as
pooling master settlement  Industrial and Gommercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited and Bank of
account maintained by China (Hong Kong) Limited) from time to time.
CGNPC Huasheng, which
allows auto-transfer of cash
balance in the Group’s
participating accounts to the
cash pooling master account.
The sums transferred to the
cash pooling master account
constitute money deposited
by the Group with CGNPG
Huasheng.
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Name of agreement,  Transaction

date and existing party of the Nature of transaction and Annual cap, actual
No.  term Group Counterparty ~ description Pricing basis transaction amount
R EELR
fi¥  RERAEER K5ERG  BERZHE  REMERER EEER BRx5%
CGN Finance and CGNPC  Settlement services: The fees charged by CGN Finance for the Settlement service cap:
Huasheng may provide provision of settlement senvices shall be in accordance with the US$300,000
settlement and similar fees standards prescribed by the People’s Bank of China or China
senvices to the Group from  Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission in respect of stch Settlement service fee
time to time. senvices. Ifno such fees standard is available, the service fees shal charged: RMB100

be determined on normal commercial terms and not higher than ()
the fees charged by China's Big-Four Commercial Banks in the PRC
for the same type of financial services; and (i) the fees charged by
CGN Finance for the provision of similar type of financial services to
the other PRC subsidiaries within the CGN Group. The fees charged
by CGNPC Huasheng shal be () equal to or lower than the settement
and similar services fees charged by CGNPC Huasheng to other
members of the CGN Group in settlement services amangements;
and {i) equal to or lower than the settlement and similer services fees
charged by other commercial banks in Hong Kong (such as Indlustria
and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited and Bank of China
(Hong Kong) Limited) rom time to time for settlement and similar

services provided.
From time to time, CGN Loans and other facilities: OGN Finance and OGNPC Huasheng NA
Finance and CGNPC may grant loans and other facilties, inclucing but not limited to

Huasheng may grant loans  loan financing, credit line, bill acceptance, and note discounting

and other faclies to the ~ senvices, to the Group from time to time subject to compliance

Group, including but not with the applicable laws and reguiatory requirements. The terms

limited to loan facilties, credtt — and conditions of suich deposits shall be determined after arm’s

lmits, notes commitments  length negotiations between () the Group and (i) CGN Finance

and discounted bills. or CGNPC Huasheng, as the case may be, including the amount
to be depostted, term of the depostt, the applicable interest rate,
interest payment method and time of payment, etc, which shall be
determined upon each deposts.
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EERHE

Name of agreement,  Transaction

date and existing party of the

term Group

R

RHRREER ARERAH
2 (EBRBERERIN AR

019F6 A 14RFT T

B - 2000F1 A1

AZ20020512A31H

Counterparty

BERFHS

PRAEBRT
EhEE (AL
ARKERER
ZHEAF)

Nature of transaction and
description

RAMLERER

FEENRISHRLL
RIEARERABERP
T3 - REEFRER
RS A RER
RP(ER2EERFHRE
PRAZENANAL LS
EEEF  ERHAZES
SRPHALHEEYER
EREHELERF B2
TREHEREEFNEE
RRARERENGRYE
Bi2E-

PRIEBRT ROELT
TEASERAEERL
HAEDR °

RRIEH R EIEET
THRASER AR
o8 - AR TRAER
RE FRER REAE
REEHTRE -

Pricing basis

EEER

FERH : PRIGBRNNASE NERAEN P EEAS
FEMHRAREE AR ERIANT  RiRRIEHHR
BRBAE RIS EE T AT ENE D DRENHE - 2R
HERRNAREZHER SNSRI RIS
PEUEEETARELMRIELHE : ROERAATAR
B BIEREN ARAAR AR (B ARAA)
HRRINER R LH A% -

BERE  DROYBRHSERBNENARRIRAARE T
PR AR SRR RR S ENABREAAROEERRAT -
WERBRERR  ARBERAL-RAXARNER BTG
NPEDABRRTRARRBRABARR  RiPREH
ARABUR AT RSB E bR AN DAIRNER -
REER NN BRASIAER R R R RIS
BMARKELARMBNSERHHIN B RIEAAY
BB A TAR EH AR ARFESTER)ARD
A) M GE RBUBHER -

ERRANRE PRSP RIZEINERNARRLE
RERREAIRT - MARERUEHRECHE - BEETR
NEFBE  GEER - REAERRERARE - A5ETR

RpRE MEZREIRERAET | ATERNPELAR
% B ABERA AR ERBNEGHE : RibRIE
?%ﬁ%%ﬁ@%ﬁﬁ¢Eﬁ%@ﬁ?ﬁ@&§ﬂﬂ%ﬂ%%ﬁﬂ

=

Annual cap, actual
transaction amount

EELR:
ERRAE

3 LR - 500,000,000

e

SRERE:
1378, 300514 AR
BUEI00ARE

EEREE

ERRRRLR:

300000%7

£ERBE:

100ARH

i
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Name of agreement,
date and existing
term

AR
RERAEHR

Tenancy Agreement
entered on 31
December 2021, with
atermfrom 1 January
202210 31 December
2024

RERE  RoE
12R31RET - &
6 002F1A1RE
NAE2A31A

Of-take Agreement
entered on 17 June
2021 which come into
force from the date
CGNM UK becomes a
participant of Ortalyk
untl the earlier of () the
date CGNM UK exits
from participation in
Ortalyk or (i) the end of
the commitment period
of the fuel assembly
purchase obligation
under the cooperation
agreement!

BiEEE  R01E
FATRETL > BOGNM
UK BRAFNAE

EZBRER BE|)
CONM UKERBAT

2B FAEREE
THRARREEE
AEBER

Transaction
party of the

Group Counterparty

KREREL  BERGHL

Beiing CGNPC-URC

Sino-Kazakh ~ (Controling
Shareholder of
the Company)

trwkd  PERBEER
(RRRERR
Y

The Company  Kazatomprom?

and CGNM UK

KRTECONM  KRET?
K

Nature of transaction and

EEEWE

Annual cap, actual

description Pricing basis transaction amount
EELR

RAMERER EEER BRx5%

Bejjng Sino-Kazakh leases  The annual rent of RMB3,000,000 (tax inclusive) as stipulated in RMB3,000,000/

29/F, Block A, Shi'ao the Tenancy Agreement, which in tum was determined after taking RMB3,000,000

International Center, 101 into account: () the prevaling market rent and management fees

Shaoyaoyu North Lane, for similar properties; and i) the supply and demand for similar

Chaoyang District, Bejing ~~ properties in the market.

fo CGNPC-URC. The total

gross area of leased property

i51,035.14 sq.m..

PRERASRIA RS  BERRRENEFREAN0ETARY (3T ARRLAZR 3000000ARE/

BEABELRIORER (RINZERTARERERE : RBHAZRTS LafRE 3,000,000 AR

ERROAENENERY  ER-

BRTREARER 8

REBARLH10%.14F

fike

The parties shall have the ~ Price per pound of natural uranium to be paid by the Group: Spot 9ty

obligation to acquire the price x 0.98 849U

natural uranium concentrates

produced by Ortalyk in Price per pound of natural uranium to be paid by Kazatomprom: Spot

proportion to their respective  price x 0.98 - Transportation cost

participation interests, as

follows: () Kazatomprom shall

acquire 51% of Ortalyk's total

annual production; and (i) the

Company or CGNM UK shall

acquire 49% of Ortalyk's fotal

annual production, subject o

the quaranteed entitlement of

20,000tV in aggregate.

LinEERREANS  AEERRANEERMINER  REEx098 Ui/

BEGHABERAFEE 849U

MERSAER 22
T : (REIEEERA
AEBEENS% RiE
AFZHOGNM UKEEER
RAFEESMG%  HA
TR L0 000U R AR
gg o

RRIRXNHEERAMNER - REE x098- BHAA

89
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EEREE

Notes:

1. For details, please refer to the circular of the Company dated 25 May 2021.

2. The acquisition of Ortalyk is inter-conditional with the fuel project, a project
between a subsidiary of Kazatomprom and CGNPC-URC (Controlling
Shareholder of the Company), Kazatomprom has been deemed as a connected
person of the Company. For details, please refer to the circular of the Company
dated 25 May 2021.

] The Company has applied and the Stock Exchange has granted a waiver from

strict compliance with Rule 14A.53(1) of the Listing Rules such that annual caps
expressed in monetary terms for the Off-take Arrangement is not required on
the condition that, among other conditions, an annual cap expressed in fixed
quantum is proposed. For details, please refer to the circular of the Company
dated 25 May 2021.

Annual review of continuing connected transactions

The INEDs of the Company have reviewed and confirmed the
continuing connected transactions set out above are:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
2. on normal commercial terms or better; and
3. entered into relevant agreements on terms that are fair and

reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

The external auditor of the Company has also reviewed these
continuing connected transactions and confirmed to the Board that
these transactions:

1. have been approved by the Board;

2. have been initiated in transactions in accordance with the
relevant agreement;

S are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group (if
the transactions involve provision of goods or services by the
Group); and

4. have not exceeded the relevant annual caps disclosed in

previous announcements.

The Board acknowledged the receipt of the auditors’ confirmation
letter dated 23 March 2023 which confirms the matters as required
by Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

1. BREAFE - B2HARAR2021F582588
BEY

2. WERAREREIEE (BRIMNBARHE
RARERBREFEZBHEZREASIENE
B)EAKYE  BWEIREARQTZEE
At - BRI - ELEAAR AHA2021
F5A25E HYEEK °

3. ANRFC EHE - B FTE BT R RIS E
FETRAIE14A.53(1) 16 - RETE B LHE
BENBERARTFEFELR - BEPRIE
WiEFREE —ENEEFRETINEE L
R BRAFHS - B2MARAR2021F5A25
HEGREK ©

FEBERZNFEEHN

ARARBELIFNITESCERHN LA
MERS  WHERZEREMEIIR

1. BRAEE—REAEXFERE

2. RILESEENRRRTOET R

8. BEXSHEBHERATAENY
BT - REARARRRER
Ri2% -

ARABSNEZBEMERMZSHERER
5 UYMEFSEIZERS

1. CEEESHE

2. ERBEERERRERS

3. NAEARENTEEBR (WMZFR

5% RAG B mEARTS)

&

4. ABELZ AN AEHRENEEF
BLER -

EE SRR ZERIR2023F3 A23H
BH AR E R E TR AIFE14A.560%
FIREMEE -
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Continuing connected transaction entered during the
Reporting Period which will take effect after the Reporting
Period

During the Reporting Period, the Group entered into two continuing
connected transaction contracts which became effective after the

Reporting Period, details of which are as follows:

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ EERHE

REBEHART LI AR RERREMBEF
BRERS

WEBRA - AEEFI MO BmEREAS £
M BERERSER - AEABEEN
T

Transaction
Name of agreement,  party of the Nature of transaction and
date and existing term ~ Group Counterparty  description Pricing basis Annual cap
hEsR RERAR ARERES  BERANR  RGMEREL EEEH EELR
1 The New Sales TheCompany ~ CGNPC-URC ~ The sale of natural uranium to The price per pound of natural uranium shal be cetermingd on noml 2023: HK$4,092,000,000
Framework Agreement (Controling CGNPC-URC Groupbythe  commercialterms, with reference to the intemational price incicators 2024: HK$4.402,000,000
entered on 16 June Shareholder of the ~ Group. published by TradeTech and UxC by incorporating ) the forecasted natural — 2025: HK$4,541,000,000
2022, vith a term from Company) uranium price for the first quarter of 2022 and () the latest spot price
1 January 202310 31 avalable on date of delivery.
December 2025
1 (REEERGZIR AA7 REUMEER  AEEMERRUTYENA  RRMSEERBRISHEAR SZTndeTechRUCHEMERER  2028: 409200000087
202E6R16RIT - A (FATERRR) 3URER- KE BRI E-SERAMENRRRINRABENEIE 2004 440200000057

W 2023E1 1B EEEE
25E12831R

2005 : 4,541 0000008 T
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Transaction

Name of agreement,  party of the

date and existing term ~ Group

528 AERER  ARERAR
2 The New Financia The Company

Senvices Framewark

Agreement entered on 16

June 2022, with a term

from 1 January 2023 to

31 December 2025

Counterparty
BERRUA

OGN Finance
and CGNPG
Huasheng
(subsiciaries
ofthe Controling
Shareholder of
the Company)

Nature of transaction and
description
RAHERA

The Group shall st up and
maintain RMB and foreign
currency deposit accounts

with OGN Finance and place
depost. The Group shal also
authorise the Group's accounts
at hird party commercial banks
outside the PRC to be inked
as a parficipant account fo a
¢ash pooling master setlement
account maintaingd by CGNPG
Huasheng, which allows auto-
fransfer of cash balance in the
Group’s participating accounts
o the cash pooling master
account. The sums transferred
fothe cash poolng master
account consfitute money
deposited by the Group with
CGNPC Huasheng.

CGN Finance and GGNPC
Huasheng may provide
sefflement and similr senvices,
and grant loans and other
facilties to the Group from time
fofime.

Pricing basis Annual cap
ERER EELR
Depostt senvices: The interest payable by CGN Finance to the Group Depost cap: 2023;
shallnot be lower than () the interest rates for the same type and term of US5700,000,000
depost offered by China's big four commercial banks to the Group and (i) 2024: US$700,000,000
the nterest rates for the same type and term of depostt provided by OGN 2025: US$700,000,000
Finance to the other PRC subsiciares of the CGN Group. The nterest Setflement service cap:
payable by OGNPC Huasheng to the Group shallnot b lower than () the 1JS5300,000.

interest rate for smilar type of depost offered by CGNPC Huasheng to
other members of the OGN Group; and () the interest rate for simiar type of
depost as quoted by other independent commercial banks in Hong Kong
(such as Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asla) Limited and Bank
0f China (Hong Kong) Limited) from time to time.

Settlement senvices: The fees charged by OGN Finance for the provision

of settlement services shall be in accordance with the fees standards
prescribed by the People’s Bank of China or China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission in respect of stch semvices. fno such fees standard
is avalalle, the service fees shall be determingd on nomal commercial
terms and not higher than () the fees charged by China's Big-Four
Commercial Banks In the PRC for the same type of financial senvices; and (i
the fees charged by CGN Finance for the provision of simiar type of financial
senvices to the other PRC subsiciaries within the CGN Group. The fees
charged by CGNPG Huasheng shall not be higher than () th settiement
and similr services fees charged by CGNPC Huasheng to other members
ofthe CGN Group in setflement services amangements; and (i) the fees
charged by other commercial banks in Hong Kong (such as Industril and
Commercial Bank of China (Asla) Limited and Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited) from time to time.

Loans and other faciltes sevices: The terms and conaitions of such loans,
inclucing the loan amount, term, interest payment method and time of
payment, shall be determined after am's length negofiations befween ()
the Group and i) CGN Finance or CGNPC Huasheng, as the case may be.
Such loans and other faciltes shall be: conducted on normal commercial
terms and shall not be secured by any asset of the Group. In respect of
the loans and other facities granted by CGN Finance, the interest rate
shallnot be higher than () the loan interest rates quoted by China's big four
Commercial Banks to the Group for the same type and term of loan; and {)
the loan interest rates charged by CGN Finance to other members of OGN
Group in the PRC for simiar type of oan.
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Transaction

Name of agreement,  party of the

date and existing term ~ Group

fE4E RARER  AREREA

(FERBERGR A0F
AN2F6E168TL A

N& 202351 51HE
255127318

Counterparty
BERRUA

PREHHRR
HER(RDFR
Bl HED
)

Nature of transaction and
description
RAHERA

BEENPRABBRLLR
RARRRRRRER LR
e REENRRANTER
EBNTEES G
BRERFERTTRIEE
RENBEHELERF B
TISEAEEFNALHE
HERRERLHELTE
P ERTREMELERR
HERRNASEREINGR
fiEgneg.

PREGHRARIEER
AT ERLEE AR
DS Rt SRR

0

Pricing basis
ERER

RERR: PRGNSR ZNEA AN ERABRE
RERRFRASEREONE  Ri R BRASRE R
ARVSEHET RGP ENBLAARRANE - PRUZERRTEEL
NERTEN REEEARN E I ERE B T RIAD AR
2% : RIERERETERRG (WA TR G ARATR
RER @R ARLT RN R M A

AR - DRI RI SR ERARR EARRIHER
fiRBEEERE R ERAERBHLARNRERRAND  NEARRE
BN ARBERAR-RERARER ATGIRERARRES
HAERERIBOER : RmREHRRIRIRR A ARYE

BRERPENBATHIANER  DRIEEAIANERENR
(P RAEEA ERVEEE T AT RARRER BRI E

R RIEEEMERR (WA TR G ARATRIERA(E
BV BRAR)MERELER

EFRALRARY : ASET AR SR AR X
e 73 RS R DA SRR RIS B BIER (RTBRR
T ATERKET A5 RAMRARRISERAGE  BT5
HARSEERAERER - ARRUSHR L ERRAMRERR 1
R ERNECARR RO RERR R AR AR R &5
Rl R RS RUS B BN AL AN &
S

EEEWE

Annual cap

EELR

Ttk

2023+ 700,000,000 T
2024 700,000 000% T
2025 : 7000000005
EERBERLR:
A0000ET °
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Subsisting connected transaction entered in previous year
Sale and purchase agreement of Husab uranium concentrates

CGN Global, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the sale and purchase agreement of Husab uranium concentrates
with Swakop, a fellow subsidiary of Controlling Shareholder of
the Company, on 14 June 2019, pursuant to which CGN Global
shall buy and Swakop shall sell 1.55 million lbs of Husab Uranium
Concentrates, which shall be delivered in batches over a period of
seven years from 2019 in accordance with the stipulated delivery
schedule.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with “related parties” as
defined under the applicable accounting standards. A summary of the
related party transactions entered into by the Group during Reporting
Period is contained in note 34 to consolidated financial statements.

Save for (i) purchases of natural uranium resources from Semizbay-U
and (i) dividend income received from Semizbay-U, which do not
constitute connected transaction of the Company, all the other
related party transactions constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Company, among which
all such transactions are fully exempted connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions, as the case may be, save for (i)
sales of natural uranium resources to China Uranium Development
(a subsidiary of CGNPC-URQ), (ii) purchases of natural uranium
resources from Ortalyk, (i) interest income from CGNPC Huasheng,
(iv) interest income from CGN Finance, (v) rental income from
CGNPC-URC, and (vi) purchases of natural uranium resources from
Swakop.

The disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules have been complied in respect of the non-fully exempted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under
the announcements of the Company dated 14 June 2019 and 22
April 2021 and the circulars of the Company dated 9 September
2019 and 25 May 2021.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers and customers for the Reporting Period are as
follows:
Purchases Sales
- the largest supplier: 17% - the largest customer: 37%
—five largest suppliers: 69% —five largest customers: 81%

China Uranium Development, the controlling shareholder, is the
largest customer of the Group for the Reporting Period. Mr. An
Junjing, an ED, the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company, Ms. Xu Junmei, an ED and the chief financial officer of the
Company, Mr. Sun Xu, a NED, Mr. Yin Xiong, a NED, and Mr. Chen
Deshao, a former ED of the Company were the directors and/or
the senior management of CGNPC-URC, the holding Company of
China Uranium Development, at different times during 2022. Save
as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or any
Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the above
major suppliers or customers of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, the Company (as service receiver)
and CGNPC-URC entered into “Shared Administrative Services
Agreement” for provision of shared administrative services to the
Company by CGNPC-URC.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE WITH
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS OR ITS
SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no contracts of
significance or material contracts on provision of services between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Company’s Controlling
Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the Reporting Period.
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FREFRHE
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—BAEEE 17% —FAEP :37%
- BAMER 69% —HAAEF:81%
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OTHERS

Environmental Protection

The Company, as a green energy related corporation, pays high
attention to environmental protection. We vigorously promotes
environmental protection by promoting green, energy saving and
environmental protection concept, such as advocating the green
office, encouraging the replacement of paper document with
electronic document, the use of double-sided printing and eco-
friendly appliances, etc. At the same time, the Company also
organizes irregular tree planting activities for employees and promote
the use of public transportation or walking instead of driving by
publicity activities, etc.

For details of environmental protection and social responsibility,
please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
published on the Company’s website (www.cgnmc.com) on 24 April,
2023.

Relationship with Suppliers and Customers

During the Report Period, the Company maintained a good
relationship with its suppliers and customers.

Social Participation

The Company actively participates in social charity, encourages and
organizes employees to participate in the “Love” activities such as
helping and visiting people in need.

Equal Opportunity and Diversity

The Company respects and treats every employee the same, and
promotes equal opportunity and policy of diversification regardless of
age, gender or marital status.

Compliance with laws and regulations

As at 31 December 2022 and thereafter up to the date of this report,
to the knowledge of the Directors, the Group complied in all material
aspects with applicable laws, rules and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had an interest in a
business which competes or likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the Reporting Period, the Company has not entered into any
equity-linked agreement.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not make charitable
donations.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s issued
shares has been held by the public throughout the Reporting Period
and thereafter up to the date of this report, in compliance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

In the annual general meeting of the Company on 18 June 2020,
the then auditors of the Company SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
did not stand for re-appointment upon retirement as the auditors of
the Company at the conclusion of the annual general meeting, and
BDO Limited has been appointed as the auditors of the Company
on the same annual general meeting. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 14 May 2020 and 18 June
2020.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 have been audited by BDO Limited who will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 3 January 20283, the Board of the Company established the
Environmental, Social and Governance Committee. For details, please
refer to the announcement on 3 January 2023.

The Company proposes to amend and adopt the new Memorandum
and Articles of Association, and is subject to approval by way of
special resolution at the forthcoming annual general meeting, For
details, please refer to the announcement on 23 March 2023.

Save as disclosed above, there is no material event affecting the
Group need to be reported to the Shareholders that has occurred
after the end of the Reporting Period.

By Order of the Board
An Junjing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

BB R &S

25" Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{&H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF CGN MINING COMPANY LIMITED
(FRZEEARDTF)

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CGN Mining
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 106 to 241, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated

financial statements of the current period. These matters were

addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON THE
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies in notes 4(c), 4(0) and 5(b)(v).

The key audit matter

The Group has 13.75% interest in an
associate, Fission Uranium Corp. (‘Fission”)
which is a listed company in Canada. As at 31
December 2022, the interest in Fission held by
the Group is approximately HK$546,731,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
Fission has incurred loss in operation.
Following a review of the business, the outiook
for the industry and the market conditions,
as the uranium price and the Canadian
dollar were in fluctuation, there is a risk of
impairment in respect of the interest in Fission;
management has carried out the impairment
assessment on the interest in Fission.

We considered this is a key audit matter
because this involves a significant degree of
management judgement in respect of the
valuation methods and assumptions for the
estimation of the recoverable amount of the
interest in Fission.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our procedures were designed to review the
management’s assessment of the indicators
of impairment/reversal of impairment and
understand and assess the reasonableness of the
methods and assumptions used in the valuation
model to estimate the recoverable amounts of the
associate.

We have discussed and assessed the indicators
of possible impairment with the management
and the component auditor and, where such
indicators were identified, assessed the
management’s impairment testing.

We have assessed the valuation methodology
and compared significant inputs to third party
sources. We have also understood and assessed
the key assumptions and critical judgement used
by the management based on our knowledge of
the business and industry.
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IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON THE
INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies in notes 4(d), 4(o) and 5(b)(iv).

The key audit matter

The Group has 49% interest in a joint
venture, Semizbay-U Limited Liability
Partnership (“Semibay-U"). As at 31
December 2022, the interest in a joint
venture held by the Group is approximately
HK$433,995,000.

Following a review of the business, the
outlook for the industry and the market
conditions, as the uranium price and
Kazakhstani Tenge were in fluctuation, there
is a risk of impairment in respect of the
interest in a joint venture; management has
carried out the impairment assessment on
the interest in a joint venture.

We considered this is a key audit matter
because this involves a significant degree
of management judgement in respect of the
valuation methods and assumptions for the
estimation of the recoverable amount of the
interest in the joint venture.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our procedures were designed to review the
management’s assessment of the indicators
of impairment and understand and assess the
reasonableness of the methods and assumptions
used in the valuation model to estimate the
recoverable amount of the joint venture.

We have discussed and assessed the indicators
of possible impairment with the management
and the component auditors and, where
such indicators were identified, assessed the
management’s impairment testing.

We have assessed the valuation methodology
and compared significant inputs to third party
sources. We have also understood and assessed
the key assumptions and critical judgement used
by the management based on our knowledge of
the business and industry.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ng Wai Man

Practising Certificate no. PO5309

Hong Kong, 23 March 2023
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHxT FiBT
Revenue EERE 7 3,648,680 3,859,530
Cost of sales SHE AR (3,500,648) (3,771,251)
Gross profit EF 148,032 88,279
Other operating income E g A 8 22,305 9,479
Selling and distribution expenses SHE MO HAX (13,244) (13,793)
Administrative expenses THAX (48,707) 41,711)
Changes in fair value of investment WEWERN R EES
properties 18 (2,903) (1,073)
Share of results of a joint venture BlE—EaEhEXEE 209,412 138,311
Share of results of associates JE(LBEE N A EAE 313,947 66,755
Finance costs B RS 9 (61,699) (49,683)
Profit before taxation BRELATRF 567,143 196,564
Income tax expenses FriSfisz i 10 (52,228) (18,066)
Profit for the year attributable to RATEE AEL
owners of the Company F A 11 514,915 178,498
Earnings per share BRAR 13
- Basic —HAK HK 7.18 cents HK 2.70 cents
7.187% 4l 2,707l
— Diluted —EE HK 7.18 cents HK 2.70 cents
7187l 2,704
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
Profit for the year REEER 514,915 178,498
Other comprehensive (expenses)/ Hib2m BI) I -
income:
Items that may be subsequently reclassified Ei&2L A EF B2 18
to profit or loss: HIHEE -
Exchange differences on translation of REWB AR EwE
financial statements of subsidiaries EEZERZR (780) 3,872
Exchange differences on translation of BRE—HEEEMBEmE
financial statements of a joint venture EECEREZSR (38,906) (9,205)
Exchange differences on translation of BREBS N RMISHRE
financial statements of associates EECERER (62,696) (17,030)
(102,382) (22,363)
Total comprehensive income AEEEHEINREALEE

for the year 412,533 156,135
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As at 31 December 2022 7 2022F12 A31H

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I ER S 16 1,262 887
Right-of-use assets REEE 17(a) 2,327 3,970
Investment properties REME 18 45,785 53,082
Interest in a joint venture R—TRE X #R 19 433,995 358,011
Interests in associates i YN T 20 3,935,248 3,994,894
Other receivables HAb e zIa 22 367 367
Deferred tax assets RETIREE 31 9 5,161
4,418,993 4,416,372
Current assets REEE
Inventories 753 21 2,048,471 1,743,152
Trade and other receivables AR T R EMERRIE 22 343,396 99,390
Amount due from an intermediate holding B4R — s BHER A A)
company I8 23 1,679 2,392
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary Y —HRZRRE AR
T 24 18 20
Income tax recoverable AU E AT FE R 760 6,956
Bank balances and cash RITREELRS 25 52,390 81,293
2,446,714 1,933,203
Total assets EEHE 6,865,707 6,349,575
Current liabilities )=
Trade and other payables ERBRTREMENTIE 26 1,043,828 1,103,368
Loans from a fellow subsidiary KB —ERZHNBRR]
ZER 27 - 236,530
Loan from immediate holding company REEEERAGCER 28 47,694 2,400,197
Bank borrowings RITIEFR 29 957,752 =
Lease liabilities HERE 17(b) 1,560 1,445
Amount due to an intermediate holding FEf— R TR A A
company RO 23 1,120 1,117
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENRRE R FZ0E 24 1,060 2,188
Income tax payable APIIEE TN 10,697 9,270
2,063,711 3,754,115
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE /(AR FE 383,003 (1,820,912)

Total assets less current liabilities BEABERRBEE 4,801,996 2,595,460
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As at 31 December 2022 7202212 A31H

2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET THET
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Loans from a fellow subsidiary *E—RRZRNEAT]
ZERK 27 1,395,914 =
Bank borrowings RITHER 29 - 387,754
Lease liabilities HEAE 17(b) 662 2,417
Deferred tax liabilities ERRIEAE 31 57,281 50,066
1,453,857 440,237
Net assets EEFE 3,348,139 2,155,223
Capital and reserves BERR A
Share capital A 30 76,007 66,007
Reserves G 3,272,132 2,089,216
Total equity ERAE 3,348,139 2,155,223
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors KESSIERRERE
An Junjing ZEF Xu Junmei REH

Director 2% Director 2%
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

RATERARGRE

Properties  Exchange Share
Share Share revaluation translation  options  Reserve  Retained Other
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  resenve fund  eamings reserve

LS
Br  ROEE EHEE  EXGR BERRE  BRES  REBW  H4ER it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$000
S7 /B v/ A v/ A v/ S v/ S v/ A v 7 A v 7 A v 7

(Note a) (Note b)
(H3ka) (LR
At1 January 2022 H2022E1418 66,007 1,681,112 4059 (632,80) 164 583 112064 (111847) 2155223
Proftfor the year Emigi - - - - - - 514915 - 514915
Other comprehensive income forthe year, ~ FREM2ENE :
Share of other reserve of associates BT GE = - - - - - - 4,041 404
Exchang iferences on angaton of BENBLTR AR
fiancil statements of subsidares EEEREE - - - (780) - - - - (780)
Exchang diferences on angation of BE-Aeetsunng
financial statements of  oint venture EE7EREE - - - (38,906 - - - - (38906)
Exchange diferences on transiaton of HERRNANERR
financial statements of associates ELZRNER - - - (6269) - - - - (62,69)
Totd comprehensieincome/fopenses)  FARENE /(B8
for the year - - - (102382 - - 514915 404 416574
Isue ofshares Note 30) EGLUIGRR)) 10000 790,000 - - - - - - 800000
Shares issus expenses RAEARS - (2365 - - - - - - (23659

At 31 December 2022 H2E12831R 16007 2447454 4059 (135,191) 54 27583 1635679  (107,806) 3,348,139
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ReEnBER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,Z22022F 12 A31 B L FE

Equty attributable to owners of the Company
Properties  Exchange Share
Share Share  revaluation  tranation options Resenve  Retained Other
captdl premium T6SeVe TeSeve eamings resene
Eish faet
HKS000  HKS000 HKS! 000 HK$ 000
TRt Thn Tk Thn
(Note )
(Kitb)
At1 January 2021 RNAE1A1R 66,007 1,681,112 4069 (610,446) 164 583 975469 (116,878 2,027,060
Proft for t year EmEH = - - - - - 1784% - 1784%
Other comprehensive incomeflexpenses) M R2ENE/ (%) -
forthe year:
Exchange iferences on iangaton of ALl EYNG e
financial statements of subsicaries EE/EREE - - - 3472 - - - - 38n
Exchang ciferences on angaton of BE-Heetsuhng
financialstatements of a joint venture EE/ERER - - - (9209) - - - - (9,205)
Exchange diferences on iangaton of LN
financial satements of associates ERENEE - - - (7080 - - - - (7090
Totdl comprehensiie comellexpenses) ~ ERRENE/ (HR) 48
for the year - - - (22,363) - - 178498 - 156,13
Divdend recognised as cisrbution note 12~ BEERAARAVRS (3H2) - - - - - - (3009 - (300
Share of ofher eserve of associies BERELINENER - - - - - - - 5,081 5,031
At 31 December 2021 RA1E12R31A 66,007 1,681,112 4069 (632,809 164 983 112094 (111847) 219,228
Note a: Subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") have appropriated Mizka: RAREARKEMB([FER]DKIZZHBAR
10% of the profit to reserve fund. The reserve fund is required to be retained in ’Eﬂmﬁnﬂ21 0%BAFEES - ﬁfﬁ%A’
the accounts of the subsidiaries for specific purposes. BRMBARZERE NMERERR
Note b: The other reserve represents (i) the difference between the consideration Mistb « EbEEIE)RBLRES T 2 EK5 0K

of United States dollars (“USD”) 133,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,030,899,000) and the aggregate paid-in capital of 1t RIS & RIEE
BRAA] (for identification purpose, in English, Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium
Resources Investment Company Limited, referred to as “Beijing Sino-Kazakh”)
of Renminbi 823,770,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$944,534,000)
acquired under business combinations under common control, (i) the difference
between the consideration of USD8,553,800 (equivalent to approximately
HK$66,335,000) and the aggregate paid-in capital of CGN Global Uranium
Limited (the “CGN Global”) of USD3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$23,265,000) acquired under business combinations under common control
and (iii) share of other reserve of associates.

B AR 18 133,000,0003 T ([FEL]) (WER
1,030,899,000/7T) £k R e §H & JRIEE
BRAR (MtRPRH)BEHERAEEAR
#823,770,0007T (455 72944,534,00078 7T.)
ZRIMESE - ()RIBEERZEEI T EBEA G
fEMYR(E8,553,800% It (K15 7°66,335,000
7 7C) EBCGN Global Uranium Limited ([CGN
Globall) 4 & A #8%583,000,000% 7T (115
723,265,00078 7T) 2 5 89 2= 58 K (jii) FE {1k Bk
EATMEMEEE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

—PAN e~ — I
2 =] Eﬁﬁ)}lb%%‘% ¢
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

2022 2021
20225 20216
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RG]

Profit before taxation BRI A& A 567,143 196,564

Adjustments for: PUATERELAR -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment nE - BEREERE 210 128

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRELENE 1,643 1715
Loss on disposal of tangible assets HEBVEERR 5 -
Changes in fair value of investment properties RENELER 2,903 1,073
Interest income MBHA (5,947) (1,654)
Interest expenses on loan from an intermediate RE—HERAERFIEX L

holding company 327 -
Interest expenses on loan from immediate REERRRAAERZFEX N

holding company 38,511 18,679
Interest expenses on loans from a fellow subsidiary RE—ARAZHBARERZMEL T 9,018 21,821
Interest expenses on bank borrowings SEFFEL 13,775 9,100
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAEMEZL 68 83
Share of results from a joint venture ElE—HAgtE%E (209,412) (138,311)
Share of results from associates EEBEARIESR (313,947) (66,755)
Operating cash flow before movements in EEACRYNLERENE

working capital 104,297 42443
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEUEM /B (305,319) 24,183
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables FER AR 0 R E R MR RRIE (S 00) /R (244,006) 263,472
Decrease/(Increase) in amount due from an intermediate FEZ— PRI AIFUER D/ (€ )

holding company 713 (69)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from a fellow ER—HERZMBARZERD,/ (810

subsidiary 2 1)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables FER R R E tE R,/ (R) 573,709 (54,765)
Increase in amount due to an intermediate JEN — R R R A AR AN

holding company 3 243
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to fellow ENRZNBARZERD) /&0

subsidiaries (1,128) 1,053
Cash generated from operations maMERe 128,271 276,559
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) BR/ (B EEHEH 6,956 (1,255)
Kazakhstani withholding tax paid iR ARG (15,065) =
People’s Republic of China Enterprise Income Tax paid 2 f##E AR LB M EH1EH (6,647) =
The United Kingdom Corporation Tax paid BREMER (15,221) (17,272)

Net cash generated from operating activities RETHHERLTE 98,294 258,032
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

2022 2021
20225 20216
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TR
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE  BERRE (594) (393)
Cash proceeds from disposal of tangible assets HEEWEERSHMEHE 2 -
Interest income received BIERFEMA 5,947 1,601
Dividend received from a joint venture BB-BaEtxRke 113,332 36,051
Dividend received from an associate B - E D ARE 314,938 =
Acquisition of an associate W AN - (3,374,011)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing RERBRE/ (R REFHE
activities 433,625 (3,336,752)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
Dividend paid BERRE - (33,003)
Net proceeds from issue of shares BIIRMABFIREFE 776,342 =
Cash received in inventory lease BUFERERS 350,948 984,197
Cash repayment in inventory lease EEFEHERS (984,197) =
Interest paid on loan from immediate holding company ~ iR B EEEKARERERFIE (56,671) (19,421)
Interest paid on loans from a fellow subsidiary ARE—FRZHBARNERE AT (2,202) (22,584)
Interest paid on bank borrowings RRTEFERTIE (8,978) (10,987)
Interest paid to an intermediate holding company S i e NSFIESY (327) =
Advance of loan from immediate holding company REEZERDAERER - 2,516,175
Repayment of loan from immediate holding company ~ BE B & IERARINER (2,352,503) (96,939)
Advance of loans from a fellow subsidiary RE—RRAZHBARNEREN 1,395,914 =
Repayment of loans to a fellow subsidiary EE-HRZNBLRER (236,530) (667,759)
Advance of bank borrowings RITEFEH 957,752 =
Repayment of bank borrowings BEFITER (387,754) (666,704)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEREaE (1,708) (1,799)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing RETH(A)/ FEReTE
activities (549,914) 1,981,180
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERRESERAROFR
EQUIVALENTS (17,995) (1,097,540)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING B¢ KR ¢%{EER
OF THE YEAR 81,293 1,174,508
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NEERZH, 2 (10,908) 4,325

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF THE YEAR

EXRRERFESERR

52,390 81,293
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GENERAL

CGN Mining Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability. The shares of the Company are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its parent company is B # 2 E AR A7)
(China Uranium Development Company Limited) (“China
Uranium Development”), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of f EixHEERE A
R A7) (CGNPC Uranium Resources Co. Ltd.) (“CGNPC-
URC Development”), which is in turn a subsidiary of # El&
ZE&EE B2 R (China General Nuclear Power Corporation)
(“CGNPC”). CGNPC is the ultimate parent company of the
Company. Both CGNPC-URC Development and CGNPC
were state-owned enterprises established in the PRC.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section to the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to the “Group”) are trading of natural
uranium, property investment and other investments.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VI HRAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

—REHR

PEZEEAERAR(RRF]) R
—FERRASESEMK 2 EHRR
BRRTA] - ARBRMDREBEEHS
RHAARATR (B £ e
HERBAATEMERRARAF
(FE#MEXER])  ZARS K
REBEMAINATF X ATE
i EERARAF ([P EXRME
BRDONZEMBRR - RERT
BHEZEEARLAR ([TEREER
RADWKBAR - PEREER
Al RA AR MR RF] » FEZ
HEHR LT EZEEARH /N
PRI WBEIADRE -

ARBZEMMRER L TR EE M
RN AF R AR ER] —EKE ©

AR REMBRR (R AIAE
B 2EBXBRRAMES W
ERENEMEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a)

Adoption of amended HKFRSs

The amended standards impacting the Group that
have been adopted in the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022:

o Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract (Amendments to HKAS 37);

o Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use (Amendments to HKAS
16);

° Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
(Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, HKFRS
16 and HKAS 41); and

° References to Conceptual Framework
(Amendments to HKFRS 3).

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and position for the
current and prior years and/or the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

2. HRMBEBYBREER
(BRI BHREZER])

(a)

RS B RMBRE
3|

HE2022F12HA318IEF
ENFENBBRERDHEMN
HARSEERZERNKE
FTZER

. BHARAA-EH
ARZAE(EER
HERIEITHZ
i

- wE EBERH
8 — 1EKESE 32 AT
2 HR (BB
HRAIF 1602
i

o BB EER
2018F F2020%F 2
FREHHE (BEYH
HEEREIH - &
B R EERE
9% - BEYHEIHE
CERIE 169 Kk & E
BAERE415 2
gz7) - R

. HBE2 HE 2R 7 1E A
(BBR e ER)
FEIFZEE])

R E e & B R 158
EEAZETEEHANE
BRAFERBEFREZ
BB RERARR K, HZ
ERAMBEREAERE
EXSATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

saREHEME .

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRANBEBIBEHREZER

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) ([BEEHMKEREER])
(Continued) (#&)
(b)  New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued (b) EEMEERERZHET
but are not yet effective RIET BB BEREE
Al

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially AEE W EERRA TS

relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have RN U E

been issued, but are not yet effective and have not BzEBRMERRERZ

been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current ] HEERT BB B R

intention is to apply these changes on the date they EHER - NEE B AT S

become effective. RZEEHENEBER

The following amendments are effective for the period IATMEETR20235F1 A1H

beginning 1 January 2023: Fa B HARR A 2K

. Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments . EiIE R E (BF
to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2); BIERIEISERE

BYBHREERE
BHEF2HZ 5
A7) i

e Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments ° BaT G AEE (B

to HKAS 8); BELTERIESHZ
1&&7)

. Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities . HE—-XZELL
arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments BERRIEFHA
to HKAS 12); and BEEFHE(EES

FFERFE1288.2 15
i) i &

. Sale or Contribution of Assets between an . KREZREBER
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture AlE A Bk X .2
(Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28). HEE M E (BB

BHEERE10%
REBEGFERE

2852 155T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" e VIR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

RNE R BREER
([ERMBHREZER])

(Continued) (#&)
(b)  New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued (b) EEMEERERZHET
but are not yet effective (Continued) REETEBMBERERE
8 (&)
The following amendments are effective for the period A TMERT R 202441 A1 B
beginning 1 January 2024: IREY EAR A K

BEEEERIE 15
BHx 25 (1EaT-#
RESERREBRIFR
%)

o HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements °
(Amendment — Classification of Liabilities as
Current and Non-current);

o HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Staterments
(Amendment — Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants), and

o HK Interpretation 6 (Revised) Presentation
of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause (Amendment to
HKAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants).

BEE I ERE 15
BH#HEx .z 25 (5] -
W Rtz B R
&) i K

BERBEELR (KB
AR 2515
HALE S BSEN
& B E RS 78R
(BB ERIZ IR
BET-HERESERR
BHIFTBURN ER
HZIHFRBRIE) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

saREHEME .

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRANBEBIBEHREZER

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) ([BEEHMKEREER])
(Continued) €=
(b)  New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued (b) EEMEERERZHET
but are not yet effective (Continued) HEBITEBUBREE
Bl ()
In August 2020, the HKICPA issued amendments to BER H+Em’\AEA2020¢

SHﬂE{FﬁE% FHAERIEA
S BR] - RIERIBIFE
Eﬁfgﬁigﬁm@jz#uw
@JE’JEH'J ZIEFT BB -

MBEER A BTIER

HKAS 1, which clarify the criteria used to determine
whether liabilities are classified as current or non-
current. These amendments clarify that current or
non-current classification is based on whether an
entity has a right at the end of the reporting period

i“é‘ BRBRERRESHE
to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve RBLBBEzEL+ @A
months after the reporting period. The amendments EREEEE - ZIEETIT
also clarify that ‘settlement’ includes the transfer of BKEEE | BIFERS B
cash, goods, services, or equity instruments unless the Mo RSN T A
obligation to transfer equity instruments arises from a EORIIEERETIAN
conversion feature classified as an equity instrument EERBERERITA
separately from the liability component of a compound B 8RB 3@ wag
financial instrument. The amendments were originally RIANAGBHDDHE

I8 o ZiE me’AzozzEUﬂ
1A EFRBNEERS
B AR - AW - 782020
F58  ERBHEER
2023F1 A1 HEkZ &4
MEEREHM -

effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022. However, in May 2020, the
effective date was deferred to annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

In response to feedback and enquiries from
stakeholders, in December 2020, the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) issued a Tentative
Agenda Decision, analysing the applicability of the
amendments to three scenarios. However, given the
comments received and concerns raised on some
aspects of the amendments, in April 2021, IFRIC
decided not to finalise the agenda decision and
referred the matter to the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB). In its June 2021 meeting, the
IASB tentatively decided to amend the requirements
of IAS 1 with respect to the classification of liabilities
subject to conditions and disclosure of information
about such conditions and to defer the effective date
of the 2020 amendment by at least one year.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of these
new accounting standards and amendments. Given
that HKFRS is fully converged with International
Financial Reporting Standards, the Group will assess
the impact of the final amendments to IAS 1 on
classification of its liabilities once those are issued
by the IASB. The Group does not believe that the
amendments to IAS 1, in their present form, will have a
significant impact on the classification of its liabilities.

The Group does not expect any other standards issued
by the HKICPA, but not yet effective, to have a material
impact on the Group.

RNERMBREEA
(BRI BHREZER])

(&

(b)

BB RERZHET
BT EBMBERERE
R ()

REEFNZEEENRE
R BEMBERS
£RAIREZ B (FRIC)R
2020F12H B —IBE
EEBRE © DNZIEE]
H=BEENEAYE - A
e ERRENER Y
ZIEFTETAERLDHE
£ ' IFRICHR2021F4 AR
ENEZEZEBRRE &
S ERR ARG
BIE B & (ASB) ° £20214F
6AMEE L - IASBETEE
HEL SRR EAb A NS
RigHEREHEEIER
BEEBBRGKENEENE
s Wi 2020 BT A&
MBMERE D —F -

AEEH A ERFAZFHN
SR RZFENE
RIAMTE - EREEY
15 ¥ o5 2 R B2 0 % B 75 e
SEATR2 - AKHE
HIASBE 5% F1E 7] & °F
HEREH RS 1RMR
REFTHEABEIENY
& - XEERA - RTK
AHBIER G ERIE15EA
ERITEHEREN DR
EEEATE -

AEBEFERFEGEQ
G R M B R R A R (AR
H BT S HAEEE
EEATE 6
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

saREHEME .

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #£2022F 12 A31H I FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION 3. MmREEXE

(a) Statement of compliance (@ AHREH

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
investment properties that are measured at fair values
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currencies

The functional currency of the Company is USD. As
the Company is listed in Hong Kong, the directors of
the Company consider that it is appropriate to present
the consolidated financial statements in Hong Kong
dollars (‘HK$”).

REMBRRIREMA
BEVBRELER  FE
SRTEA (B ST ER)
K (T a I EEM
BHREERDIAREBAT
B2 WERERR - It
oy HMAMBBRRERER
BHEEFXRIMBRA
AlES EMARANER ZH
BARE °

EI‘I_»
i
ol
i

%ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁiﬂ
mE EREWE

J&A LEFE @I TX

FRElE St R FTAREE) -

S 3
bt o>
'hﬁfsk

}

IIE

P EI-L

ARANMEEE KX
TT e HRARBINEB
EH o ARBEZRRNA
B () 275675
BRIVBEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Group. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
gain or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the relevant assets
or liabilities were disposed of.

4. FESTHE

(a)

mEREXE

REMBHRRBEEAEE
M EHRE - KEARA
BMABERS BERRE
BN EREEEMB
WREBEIEE - RIER
SREEBRBTRCEERE
ERMRE  BRIKRER
EBERTE/ME  EHER
T BIENERER -

RERKE L EHE
NAHEE - HhRKEAR
Ml EEhE B HE (0
BR) T AZREEERER
NeMBEFE - HERF
MR RAMIEL AR
AEEEHRRENEH
HipK B AR AERAE—
B o

EAKERKLHE R A
ZAEHIERE o HEKER
BRDZ(ERREZAR
EBEREMREEEZAN
B2 HB5  E(i)NBARK
R En  BE (B
B)MBBEZBEREEL
ZHEHE  c MEAEER
BEDHE  2ARHEM
2EKERERB BRI E
RAEIZ A BEARER
B YN

121



A

A 122 CGN Mining Company Limited Annual Report 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

saREHEME .

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHBER#E
(Continued)
(b) Subsidiaries (b) =G|

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (i) power over the investee, (i) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and (iii)
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the
Company has the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee without holding the majority
of the voting rights. In determining whether de-facto
control exists, the Company considers all relevant facts
and circumstances, including:

° the size of the Company’s voting rights relative
to both the size and dispersion of other parties
who hold voting rights;

° substantive potential voting rights held by the
Company and other parties who hold voting
rights;

° other contractual arrangements; and

° historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment_loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

(o) PANCIE RN 2t
TTIEERIREZRIRES °
fisl R IA T = H AR - &
RARS W E T 2 55l
(VB RENREHR
(HEREREHRZFEHM
WEAAENEN - AR
(iiREEMEIREH R
NAFEERFER - fi

RAIE B R ek - RIE S
FHE B RS -

ARRBAFAERZEK
SENBERT - BEREE
NEEREHRERE
B IBFEEREZ
B REREFEER
ZHE - NRBFEEH
EHBEEERBR 8
1

. ARABWREEHE
HEHREMFEER
ERATZRER
2B =D MIEIL

. ARABEEMTAE
RERALHAFA

ERBERTE
. Hiba =8 &

. BEREALZS
fHE, -

KB R B Z RERK A
BEER (E) IIARR
A2 BRAEK - AR F]
REe W REN KRS EEY
MBARZEREETES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition change
in the associates’ net assets except that losses in
excess of the Group’s interest in the associate are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make good
those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions are eliminated
against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of
the asset transferred, they are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

4. FEEHBEE

(c)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FTESHBE#E
(Continued)
(c)  Associates (Continued) (c) HEQATHE

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in an associate has been
impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment in the same way as other non-
financial assets.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method
from the date when the investment ceases to be an
associate. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial
asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as
its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate at the date the equity method was
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing a part interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate are recognised on
the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest it that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
interests in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable during the year.

Joint arrangements

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where
there is a contractual arrangement that confers joint
control over the relevant activities of the arrangement
to the Group and at least one other party. Joint control
is assessed under the same principles as control over
subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interest in joint arrangements as
joint venture where the Group has rights to only the net
assets of the joint arrangement.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

In assessing the classification of interest in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

° the structure of the joint arrangement;

o the legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

o the contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

° any other facts and circumstances (including
any other contractual arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interest in a joint venture
in the same manner as investments in associates (i.e.
using the equity method-see note 4(c)).

The Company’s interest in a joint venture is stated at
cost less impairment losses, if any. Results of a joint
venture are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

4. FEEHBEXE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so
as to write off their cost or valuation net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The
useful lives are as follows:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term

of the lease or 40 years

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term

of the lease or 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 27%
equipment
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESTBX @
(Continued)
(e)  Property, plant and equipment (Continued) e) Y% BERRE#RE

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but
not held for sale in the ordinary course of business,
use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. Investment property
is measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change therein
recognised in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property, calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is included in profit or loss
in the period in which the property is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets (including property, plant
and equipment) are recognised as deferred income in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
pbasis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable and are recognised as other revenue, rather
than reducing the related expense.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market
rate of interest is treated as a government grant,
measured as the difference between proceeds
received and the fair value of the loan based on
prevailing market interest rates.

4. FEEHBEXE

(9)
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Leases
The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting policy
choices exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise
(i) leases which are short-term leases and/or (i) leases
for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The
Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for
which at the commencement date have a lease term
of less than 12 months. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is initially recognised at cost and
would comprise:

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability (see below for the accounting
policy to account for lease liability);

(i any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received,;

(iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee;
and

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease, unless
those.costs are incurred to produce inventories.
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e VIR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Leases (Continued)
Right-of-use asset (Continued)

The Group measures the right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the
Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not
paid at the commencement date of the lease are
considered to be lease payments:

(i) fixed lease payments less any lease incentives
receivable;
(i variable lease payments that depend on an

index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at commencement date;

4. FEETBEE
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h)

Leases (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

)

(V)

amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

exercise price of a purchase option, if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising
an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group

measures the lease liability by:

(i)

)

increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability;

reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made; and

remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modification, or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Leases (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of
any lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the
probability of a lessee extension or termination option
being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the
lease liability to reflect the payments to make over the
revised term, which are discounted using a revised
discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities is
similarly revised when the variable element of future
lease payments dependent on a rate or index is
revised, except the discount rate remains unchanged.
In both cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the
carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with the revised
carrying amount being amortised over the remaining
(revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the leased assets to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FTESHBE#E
(Continued)
(h)  Leases (Continued) (hy HEHB

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Inventory lease income arises when the natural
uranium leased to customers have been bought back
by the Group in a lower price. It is recognised when
the natural uranium the Group has received the natural
uranium returned by customers.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for
a lease that was not part of the original terms and
conditions of the lease are accounted for as lease
modifications. The Group accounts for a modification
to an operating lease as a new lease from the effective
date of the modification, recognising the remaining
lease payments as income on a either a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the remaining
lease term.

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustment to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Financial instruments
Ui Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component)
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. Trade receivable without
a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

(0

Financial assets (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset.

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Debt instruments

The Company classifies all of its debt
instruments at amortised cost:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEHBR@
(Continued)
(i) Financial instruments (Continued) (i) SRMIAE)
(i Financial assets (Continued) () LHEE (B

Equity instruments #mTA
On initial recognition of an equity investment R U)K R I FEHS
that is not held for trading, the Group could EEBZRARE
irrevocably elect to present subsequent B NEBE A
changes in the investment’s fair value in A 48 [B] 3 32 1= 50 A
other comprehensive income. This election is HEEKEF 27

made on an investment-by-investment basis.
Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair
value. Dividend income are recognised in profit
or loss unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All
other equity instruments are classified as fair
value through profit or loss, whereby changes
in fair value, dividends and interest income are
recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit loss (“ECLs”) on financial assets
measured at amortised cost including trade
and other receivables, amount due from an
intermediate holding company, amount due
from a fellow subsidiary and bank balances.
ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

° 12-months ECLs: these are ECLs that
result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

o Lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that
result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEHBR@
(Continued)
(i) Financial instruments (Continued) (i) SRMIAEE)
(i Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued) (i) TEEEZ REE
1B (E)
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of EHEEBERE
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as EEB 2R nE
the difference between all contractual cash mEr - EEEED
flows that are due to the Group in accordance RIRBEE D BN
with the contract and all the cash flows that the SEZENRER
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then 48 %E B K &8 [H 78 A
discounted at an approximation to the assets’ WE 2 FrBREM
original effective interest rate. ZERBTE o ZT
EZHERBIERE

The Group always recognises lifetime ECLs for
trade receivables. The expected credit losses
on these financial assets are estimated on an
individual basis for customer with significant
balances, estimated based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction
of conditions at the reporting date, including
time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
measures the loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs, unless when there is a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECLs. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECLs should be
recognised is based on significant increase in
the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of
a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating
ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group presumes that the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

4. FEEHBEXE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when:

° significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;
° a breach of contract, such as a default

or being more than 90 days past due;

° the restructuring of a loan or advance
by the Group on terms that the Group
would not consider otherwise;

U it is probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-
impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

4. FEEHBEXE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESTBX @
(Continued)
(i) Financial instruments (Continued) (i) SRMIAE)
(i) Financial liabilities (i)  EHEEE

All financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(i) Financial instruments (Continued)
(Vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration
paid and are recognised initially and measured
at their fair value on the date the financial liability
or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability or
part thereof extinguished and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., FEEHBEESE
(Continued)
@) Inventories 0Q) B

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added taxes or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k)

Revenue recognition (Continueqd)

provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,

revenue is recognised over the period of the contract

by reference to the progress towards complete

satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,

revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the goods or service.

()

(i)

Sales of natural uranium

Customers obtain control of the natural uranium
when the goods are delivered to and have
been accepted. Revenue is thus recognised
upon when the customers accepted the
natural uranium. There is generally only one
performance obligation.

Rental income

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESTBX @
(Continued)
(k)  Revenue recognition (Continued) (k) WARERE)
(i) Interest income (i) FILEMA
Interest income from a financial asset is il & 4507 F1) 25 7 g
recognised when it is probable that the 15 m A & B K 4L

economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right
to receive the dividend is established.

Inventory lease income

Inventory lease income arises when the natural
uranium leased to customers have been
bought back by the Group in a lower price. It is
recognised when the natural uranium the Group
has received the natural uranium returned by
customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

o

Revenue recognition (Continueqd)
Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period. The amount of
current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate
of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that
reflects any uncertainty related to income tax.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #£2022F 12 A31H I FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEHBR@
(Continued)
() Income taxes (Continued) () B8 (&)
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary REBEGRARYBRSE B
differences between the carrying amounts of assets MZBEERABBZERES

and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and
initial recognition of assets and liabilities that are not
part of the business combination which affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised,
provided that the deductible temporary differences
are not arises from initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction other than in a business
combination that affects neither taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the
carrying amount of the asset or liability is realised or
settled and that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period, and reflects any
uncertainty related to income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U

(m)

Income taxes (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be
recovered.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
when they relate to items recognised directly in equity
in which case the taxes are also recognised directly in
equity.

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it/they operate(s)
(the “functional currency”) are recorded at the
rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated
at the rates ruling at the end of reporting period.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #£2022F 12 A31H I FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FTESHBE#E
(Continued)
(m)  Foreign currencies (Continued) (m) SNEE)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the rates approximating to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the
rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
as exchange translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate). Exchange
differences recognised in profit or loss of group entities’
separate financial statements on the translation of
long-term monetary items forming part of the Group’s
net investment in the foreign operation concerned
are reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as exchange translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m)

(n)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the exchange translation reserve.

Employee benefits
() Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

(i Defined contribution retirement plans

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
scheme and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (defined contribution plans) are
recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESTHEEXR#
(Continued)
(0) Impairment of assets (other than financial assets) (o) EBEEBMEERMNRE

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;
° Right-of-use assets;
o interests in associates and a joint venture

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the
extent that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another HKFRS, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase
under that HKFRS.

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from the asset,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or cash generating unit.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. Income earned on
temporary investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #£2022F 12 A31H I FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEGHBFEE
(Continued)
()  Provisions and contingent liabilities () BERIAREE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain EARKE BEREZEH
MBBEERMBEEERT

timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances
and short-term deposits that are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are
used by the Group in the management of its short-term
commitments. For the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows, bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and that form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management are included in cash
and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Related parties

(@)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Company;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Company; or

(iii) is a member of key management

personnel of the Company or the
Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Company are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEGHBFEE
(Continued)
(s)  Related parties (Continued) (s) PBEEBAL(E)
(o)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) fis 55 & T 51 A A 15
following conditions apply: (Continued) % AERBEAE

EERE - (&

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint (ii —HERBR
venture of the other entity (or an F—EEN
associate or joint venture of a member RN
of a group of which the other entity is a AEPE (L
member). S—EBA

SBHXE
A A K B
RAEIHE &
BF) -

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the (i) M A & 8819
same third party. RRA—-%=

THEEDR
=,

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third (iv) —HEEA
entity and the other entity is an associate ¥ =ZH &
of the third entity. BEReeEt

¥ -m%s—
ERAZE
“HEEN
Bt A T]

(v The entity is a post-employment benefit ) ZEBARNX
plan for the benefit of the employees TR e RN
of the Group or an entity related to the S BB
Group. 0 E B E
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(vii) ~ The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Company or to the Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity and include (i)
that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner; (i) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and (iii) dependents of that
person or that person’s spouse or domestic
partner.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

(a) Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

() Deferred taxation on investrment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities from investment properties that were
measured using the fair value model, the
directors of the Company reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded
that the Group’s investment properties in the
PRC were held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantively all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through
sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s
deferred taxation on investment properties,
the directors of the Company determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties measured using the fair
value model recovered entirely through sale
was rebutted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continuea)

(a) Critical judgements in applying accounting

policies (Continued)

)

(i)

Deferred taxation on investrment properties
(Continued)

As a result, the Group continues to recognise
deferred tax liabilities on change in fair value
of investment properties on the basis that the
entire carrying amounts of the properties will be
recovered through use.

Significant influence over associate

As per note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company
considered Fission Uranium Corp. (“Fission”), in
which the Group has 13.75% (2021: 14.34%)
equity interest, is an associate of the Group as
the Group has significant influence over Fission
by virtue of its contractual right to have two out
of seven directors to the board of directors of
Fission.

In addition, the directors of the Company
considered Ortalyk Limited Liability Partnership
(“Ortalyk”), in which the Group has 49% (2021:
49%) equity interest, is an associate of the
Group as the Group has significant influence
over Ortalyk by virtue of its non-controlling
voting power to the board of directors of
Ortalyk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #£2022F 12 A31H I FE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. TES:HHETRMGEETTHA
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION BEEZEZFTERKR®
UNCERTAINTY (continueaq)

(a)  Critical judgements in applying accounting (@) MNETBEFERZEE
policies (Continued) F (&)
(i) Agent versus principal consideration (i) CFEA BIEFAHY
ZEAZE
For the purpose of defining the group act as RATEEERE
principal rather than agent, the directors of EAMIEREAT

Company reviewed the Group’s operation, and
concluded that the Group act as a principal in
accordance to HKFRS 15 on the basis that, (i)
the group entered into a promise, which is a
performance obligation to provide the specified
goods; (i) the group is able to assess whether it
controls each specified good before the good is
transferred to customer.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment of trade and other receivables
and amount due from an intermediate holding
company

The impairment provisions for trade and
other receivables and amount due from an
intermediate holding company are based on
assumptions about ECLs. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, bases on the number of days that
an individual receivable is outstanding as well as
the Group’s historical experience and forward-
looking information at the end of the reporting
period. Changes in these assumptions and
estimates could materially affect the result
of the assessment and it may be necessary
to make additional impairment charge to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. At 31 December
2022 and 2021, no loss allowance recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. TESTHHERMAE A
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION BEZZ2EFERR@®
UNCERTAINTY (Continuea)
(b)  Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continueqd) (b) MAEFTHPERZEZEER
REE)
(i) Impairment of inventories (i) FEAE
The management of the Group reviews the AEBEEER
subsequent sales price at the end of each % ¥k & B K % B
reporting period and makes provision for BE 1% & B I BL UL 1
the inventories. The Group makes provision mEE e NREEIR
for write-down of inventories based on the B &R Al B B OF
assessment of the net realisable value. The net B 57 & MOR 1E
realisable value for inventories was determined BiE FEAER
with reference to the subsequent sales price FEDZ2EZHMU
of similar items. As at 31 December 2022, the HEREEEEM
carrying amount of inventories of the Group BEE - R2022%F
was approximately HK$2,048,471,000 (2021: 12A31H " A&
HK$1,743,152,000). EFENEREELD
#2,048,471,000
B (20214
1,743,152,0007%
ok
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and #H 220224 ;2021
2021, no provision for write-down of inventories F12A831HIEHF
was recognised. B UERATE

Mo -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continuea)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(i)

Fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, investment
properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuation performed by independent
professional valuer. In determining the fair
value, the valuers have based on a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates of
market conditions.

In relying on the valuation report, the directors
of the Company have exercised their judgement
and are satisfied that the assumptions used in
the valuation have reflected the current market
conditions. Changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair values of the
Group’s investment properties being recognised
in profit or loss. The carrying amount of
investment properties measured at fair value
at 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$45,785,000 (2021: HK$53,082,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

FESTHHE R AT
BIREZETERE @)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5.
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continueaq)

(b)  Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (b) MAFTFTHARZEZEER
R#E)
(iv)  Impairment loss on investment in a joint venture v) R—EEEELEZ
KEZHEEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group PR HA K .
reviews the the business, the outlook for the fé{%;{/&%g‘éﬁﬁ%
industry and the market conditions, as the . QX;ZIE';;@J
uranium price and kazakhstani Tenge were in %Z; ﬁ;\‘}/‘%i% .
fluctuation, to determine whether there is any o= 4; ; S
o . FTERI =A™ RA
indication that the investment has suffered an SR — o
impairment loss. If any such indication exists BETRZRORR
' ‘ TZKESHRR

the recoverable amount of the investment is
estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any. The determination
of recoverable amount of investment in a joint
venture involves estimates as to: (1) future
revenue based on forecasted uranium prices;
(2) actual production volume of uranium mines
held by the joint venture; (3) exchange rate
between Tenge, the currency of the Republic
of Kazakhstan (“Kazakhstan”), and USD;
(4) the discount rate to be applied to such
revenue and costs for the purpose of deriving
a recoverable amount. If the recoverable
amount of the investment is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying
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amount of the investment is reduced to its %JZ)E[;EE ;j(z4)§
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is e P

A @ 7
recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Tﬁ%%ﬂi?ﬁ;i
carrying amount of investment in a joint venture & ; BEEE K o Y
is approximately HK$433,995,000 (2021: 1Eé+;?¥n;§£ﬂu;
HK$358,011,000) as at 31 December 2022. No o % %g E P H B
impairment is recognised for current and prior & E/\j é; &éz BE

A~ aX n
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. TES:HHETRMGEETTHA
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION BEEZEZFTERKR®
UNCERTAINTY (continueaq)

(b)  Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continueqd) (b) MAEFFTFHPREZEER
R(E)
() Impairment loss on investments in associates V)  REBERAZRE
ZIRIEETE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group RWERR - \AR
reviews the business, the outlook for the 8 {8 4% N 0 oo B X

industry and the market conditions, as the
uranium price and the Canadian dollar were in
fluctuation, to determine whether there is any
indication that the investment has suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the investment is
estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any. The determination
of recoverable amount of investments in
associates involves estimates as to: (1) the
estimated future cash flows expected to
arise and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value; (2) the resources
of uranium; (3) the uranium price forecasted
by two leading uranium price research and
analysis companies, (4) exchange rate between
Canadian dollar (“CAD”), the currency of
Canada, and Tenge and USD and (5) offtake
right between the Group and Fission, for the
purpose of deriving a recoverable amount. If
the recoverable amount of the investment is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the investment is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For
the year ended 31 December 2022, a
reversal of impairment loss of approximately
HK$38,488,000 (2021: HK$32,831,000) was
recognised in profit or loss and included in
share of results of associates. The carrying
amount of investments in associates are
approximately HK$3,935,248,000 (2021:
HK$3,994,894,000) as at 31 December 2022.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5.
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continueaq)

FESTHHE R AT
BIREZETERE @)

(b)  Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (b) EEFTHBAEZEZEER
R(E)
(i) Fair value measurement and valuation Vi) DR EFEREE
processes EF
Some of the Group’s investment properties are MU BEREL -
measured at fair value for financial reporting rEEZETERE

purposes. The directors of the Company are
responsible to determine the appropriate

MEZRAER
E-ARAEFR

valuation techniques and inputs for fair value EETEHMARE
measurements. Detalils are set out in note 18. FECZEAMER

ERBABIE - F
TBESIRFIRES

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a TR EESARE
liability, the Group uses market-observable ZARER - KE
data to the extent it is available. Where Level EFEANES T

1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
independent professional qualified valuers
to perform the valuation. The directors of
the Company work closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

BEMSHE - i
BEIEGFE EH
ABE AEEE
ZRBYZXREGE
& & {5 Bb & 17 1l
B - ARAEFH
B BB INERfh (EED
ETmAERIER
ERZEETER
BABUE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. TES:HHETRMGEETTHA
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION BEEZEZFTERKR®
UNCERTAINTY (continueaq)

(b)  Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continueqd) (b) MAEFTHPERZEZEER
R(E)
(i) Income taxes i) HTiEH
As at 31 December 2022, the Group has not FA2022F12A31H -
recognised the tax losses of approximately N B i R FERRELIE
HK$24,901,000 (2021: HK$43,978,000) due E5184924,901,000
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Bt (20214 ¢

During the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021, no tax loss was expired. These
losses relate to subsidiaries that have a history
of tax losses and the Group has not accounted
for the relevant deferred tax. The realisability
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future.

The directors of the Company determine the
deferred taxation assets based on the enacted
or substantially enacted tax rates and the best
knowledge of profit projections of the Group
for coming years during which the deferred
taxation assets are expected to be utilised.
The directors of the Company review the
assumptions and profit projections by the end
of the reporting period.

43,978,000/ 7L) * R
B & oK B 78 8] K 2Kk
AR - REE
20224 2021412
AS1RIEFE - #
mRIAEED R -

BN REATEEE
HIF B A RIRVESIE -

RNEEI AR E B
HEAERIEARR © iR
EMIREER AR
MEZERTRRE
BB BHm NS ER
MR E=E0 #E
)Eﬁ °

ARBEFREMR
R KB EEHE M
MBiR - ARASE
=) 5 70 TR B R A R
HEERHE A
R R B B A
BRI RERME
EELEHBEE -
ARBEEHRRK
TRREHZEFR
A& Ra A FECR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief executive officer (“CEQ”),
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
Operating segments identified by the chief operating decision
maker are the same as the reportable segments of the Group.

Accordingly, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
are as follows:

a) natural uranium trading segment engages in trading of
natural uranium;

b) property investment segment engages in leasing; and
) other investments segment engages in investment in a

joint venture and associates.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
above reportable segments.

6.

REBRRERD KD BREFT
HENAEFRTE (ETREE
REE) MENEMEPRARN
SAIRENE R REES - T2
BERREH BRI E D BB
AREER AR E D #BAER

Rk - REBR A RE R &L D E
LU

a) RANHE 5 8B RN i
g5

b) YSIRE D EIEHE

o) ﬁfﬁ&ﬁ“*ﬁm?g&éﬁ(\‘
—AEErERBER
=) o

REEIWARAGEE D HES AEK
bR ERE DB o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuec)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable and operating segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

*%%@Sﬁ%i DT

HZE2022F12831H L EE

Natural

uranium Property Other
trading investment investments Total
RAHE S MHRE Hftiig & #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx TEL THET FTET
Revenue BEE 3,645,362 3,318 - 3,648,680
Segment profit/(loss) 2 8,/ () 101,114 (2196) 523358 622,276
Other operating income H A E WA 22,305
Finance costs MEKA (61,699)
Central administration costs FRITBAA (15,739)
Profit before taxation BRE AR A 567,143

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Natural
uranium
trading

RAHE S
HK$'000
TAT

HZE20215F12A31HIEFE

Other
investments Total
Hip iR & st
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT

Property
investment
MERE
HK$'000
T

Revenue EER 3,856,085 3,445 - 3,859,530
Segment profit/(loss) AEEF,/ (EE) 31,101 (1,012) 205,066 235,155
Other operating income HGEA 9,479
Finance costs BEMA (18,869)
Central administration costs FRITBA AR (29,201)
Profit before taxation BRI A& 196,564
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuec)

Segment revenue and results (Continueqd)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
adopted in accordance with HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.
Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit earned by/(loss
from) each segment without allocation of other operating
income, certain finance costs and central administrative costs.
This is the measure reported to the CEO for the purposes of

resource allocation and performance assessment.

6.

DEER @)
DR LI 4K (4

REDBZ ETBRERBET Y
B EERFE5 [ L EEPT) IR
ey - S ERE R (BHR) 1 & 0§
PR, (B518) » AR D BE
LA - BETREKARH R
TR © WL ThsLE IR D BL R R3R
HEMERERTEREZAE -

Segment assets and liabilities PEHEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities AT 257 F 7] s KA & 55 &
by reportable and operating segments: ZEENBEI
Segment assets DEEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FBTT
Natural uranium trading KRIHE 5 2,387,660 1,845,309
Property investment VISR E 46,566 55,496
Other investments Mg & 4,369,243 4,352,906
6,803,469 6,253,711
Unallocated corporate assets AOBRBEE 62,238 95,864
Total assets BERE 6,865,707 6,349,575
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. THER®
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PTEHEEREEE)
Segment liabilities SEFEE

2021
20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FiBT
Natural uranium trading RNHE 5 3,437,657 4,131,397
Property investment MR E 535 314
Other investments HEhigE - -
3,438,192 4,131,711
Unallocated corporate liabilities IO ARIEE 79,376 62,641
Total liabilities BERE 3,517,568 4,194,352

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and MERSHEERDHEZHEE

allocating resources between segments: RME :

. all assets are allocated to operating segments other . BRIBITHEERRS - AT
than bank balances and cash, income tax recoverable, EFERZK - RLEBIEE
deferred tax assets and other assets for corporate use ENAREARIA® 2 By
(including certain property, plant and equipment, right- BE(BEETYE  BHE
of-use assets and other receivables). L&t FRREEAR

Hip EURIR) b - PRA R
ERDERELEDH

. all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other . bR FEAS — R F'ﬂ [N
than amounts due to an intermediate holding company NRAZRWEB R FHIE - F‘EE
and fellow subsidiaries, income tax payable, deferred INIECT LL%RIE@
tax liabilities and other liabilities for corporate use EAREARIA® 2 Bty
(including certain other payables and lease liabilities). BEEEE THEMENK

HEEEEREBE) I AR

BN EEEDE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. IHER @
Other segment information Hith > E &R
2022 20224

Natural
uranium Property Other

trading investment investments Unallocated Total

RRMES NERE RftRE AR )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR TER TiEgn Tign Tign

Amounts included in the measure of HEABERHIPEER
segment profit or loss or segment  SHB/(GFA) 2FE
assets after charging/(crediting):

Addition to non-current assets (Note a) A B JEREERE (Fiita) 504 - - - 594
Depreciation of property, plant and nE - BELERENE

equipment 166 - - 44 210
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 407 - - 1,236 1,643
Interest expenses on loans from a felow R B —BRZHB AR &5

subsidiary LHERH 9,018 - - - 9,018
Interest expenses on lease liabilities RERREFET 39 - - 29 68
Changes in fair value of investment RENMELBE

properties - 2,903 - - 2,903
Share of results of a joint venture Bl-HAEtEEA - - (209,412) - (209,412)
Share of results of associates (Note b) ~ [E(REE 2N A2 4 (Bizth) - - (313,947) - (313,947)
Amounts regularly provided to EROERSTERME

the CEO but not included in the GREERIBERS

measure of segment profitor loss 2 HEEEZHE :

or segment assets:
Income tax expenses FEH S - - - 52,228 52,228
Interest income FBMA - - - (5,947) (5,947)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oHER @
Other segment information (Continued) Hih 5 BER &
2021 20214

Natural
uranium Property Other
tradng  investment  investments  Unallocated

B%  WRRE  HMRE ADE
HK$'000 ~ HK000  HK$'000  HKE000  HK$'000
TiEn B ThR Thr TiEn

Amounts included in the measure of HEABERHIPEER
segment profit or loss or segment ~ THIB/(GFA) 2FE :
assets after charging/(crediting):

Addition to non-current assets (Note a) A B JEREERE (Fiita) 4,101 = = = 4,101
Depreciation of property, plant and nE - BELERENE

equipment 85 - - 43 128
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 456 - - 1,259 1,715
Interest expenses on loans from a felow R B —BRZHB AR &5

subsidiary LHERH 21,821 - - = 21,821
Interest expenses on lease liabilities RERREFET 47 - = 36 83
Changes in fair value of investment REMELRBE

properties - 1,073 - - 1,073
Share of results of a joint venture BlH-HAEtEEA - = (138,311) = (138,311)
Share of results of associates (Note b)  JE{REE &1 RI%48 (fif5Eh) - - (66,755 = (66,755)

Amounts regularly provided to EROERSTERME
the CEO but not included in the GREERIBERS

measure of segment profitor loss 2 &EHEZFE

or segment assets:
Income tax expenses AR - - = 18,066 18,066
Interest income FEMA - - - (1,654) (1,654)
Note a:  Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred tax Mizka: FERDEETBESRIAREL
assets. RIBEE °

Note b: A reversal of impairment loss of interests in associates of approximately Wb - B QB 2 R S R R (B S 18 B
HK$38,488,000 (2021: HK$32,831,000) is included in the share of [6]4938,488,000/8 7T (20214 :
results of associates. 32,831,000/ 7T) B 51| A FEAG B &

REEEF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuec) 6.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in the HKSAR, PRC,
Kazakhstan, Canada and UK.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the
operations. Information about the Group’s non-current assets
is presented based on the geographical location of the assets.

DEER @)
45

AEBOEBLNRBBRFRIITHR
& P RERAE - NEXR
RE -

BRAKEREIEEFPHEEER
MEMERIBE LTS -
BRAAKEBERBEENERER
BEEMEMNMIES]

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

REIIIBEFHEEE FRBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
20224 20214 20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FExT FEx FExT FEx
Europe (other than UK) B (ZEBIRR SN 802,621 746,255 - =
us ES 402,079 1,243,968 - -
PRC e 1,344,348 614,363 45,806 53,104
Canada Il 584,074 134,700 546,731 551,209
Kazakhstan M pE e HTiE - - 3,822,512 3,801,696
UK o 515,558 550,781 1,789 1,800
HKSAR BARRITHE - 57,473 1,779 3,035
Czech Republic AR - 511,990 - =
3,648,680 3,859,530 4,418,617 4,410,844

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred tax
assets.

M : SEABAETERSBTARELE
RBEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oHER @
Information about major customers BERETEEF2EH
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years LATE55R 8 A F R NG AL
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group is as B HEBTERIBI0%ME S 2 &
follows: B

2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T
Customer A' EPH 1,341,031 610,918
Customer B! BERPZ 584,074 N/A?
i 2
Customer C' ZEFEA 529,653 N/A2
i A2
Customer D! BEFT 515,558 550,781
Customer E' BEPI N/A2 556,912
TE 2
Customer F' EFE N/A2 511,990
TE A2
Customer G BEFE! N/A? 386,392
TiE 2
1 Revenue from natural uranium trading segment L RERAME S HE 2 E%EHE
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total 2 HEEERETRBRANEERFE

revenue of the Group BEETEZ10%
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

REVENUE

Revenue represents amount received and receivable from sale
of natural uranium, net of returns, discounts allowed and sales
related taxes, and rental income (net of direct outgoings: nil)
during the year. Revenue recognised during the year are as
follows:

7.

ERE

LEBREFAIKRER « AFFTH

RABRASHEBE R A2 B W&
U GRIE - RS WA IR E
B &)  RAFEBRZE
MO -

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Sale of goods HEEmMm 3,645,362 3,856,085
Rental income (net of direct AU GOBRE R « £)
outgoings: nil) 3,318 3,445
3,648,680 3,859,530
The revenue from sales of goods were recognised at a point REHEEmNEEBIRETENY
in time and under HKFRS 15. BREERFE 1N K — R B
%Z\J\ o
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 8. HMEEWA

2021

20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHT T

Interest income HEHA 5,947 1,654
Government grants BB & 120 =
Inventory lease income FEREWRA 16,122 7,683
Others Hmh 116 142
22,305 9,479
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. ®EMRAK
2022 2021
2022F 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT
Interest expenses on loan from REEEERARERZFELZ N
immediate holding company 38,611 18,679
Interest expenses on loans from a RE—HRRMNEBARERZFIE
fellow subsidiary S 9,018 21,821
Interest expenses on loan from an RE—FEPEIERARERZFIE
intermediate holding company X H 327 =
Interest expenses on bank borrowings 817 1& ZF 837 H 13,775 9,100
Interest expenses on lease liabilities ~ FEBEFE X H 68 83
61,699 49,683
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 10. FISRixH
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT
Hong Kong Profits Tax HEABFEM
— current year —ARFEE 541 =
— under provision in prior years —BEFERETE - 336
541 336
Other jurisdictions current tax: Hfth w) k[ BN IR -
— UK Corporation tax — R ER 14,157 9,961
- PRC Enterprise Income tax —HREPEMEH 4,724 =
— Kazakhstani withholding tax — KB iER AR IR FT1S R 15,065 =
34,487 10,297
Deferred tax (Note 31) IRAERRIE (F15E31) 17,741 7,769

52,228 18,066
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of qualifying corporation will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Hong Kong
holding company was in profit making position, the profits
of all Group entities in Hong Kong are not selected by the
management for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime and
continue to be taxed at the flat rate of 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiary is 25% for both years. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, the PRC subsidiary was in profit
making position (2021: loss making position).

The subsidiaries operating in the UK are subject to Corporation
Tax Act of UK and the tax rate of the UK subsidiary is 19% for
both years.

Pursuant to the Tax Code (Revised Edition) implemented
since January 2021 in the Kazakhstan (the “New Tax Code
of Kazakhstan”), dividends paid by subsurface users to
foreign shareholders without permanent establishments in
Kazakhstan (the “Foreign Shareholders”) will be exempted
from the Kazakhstani withholding tax if (i) as of the date when
the dividends are paid, such Foreign Shareholder has owned
shares (interest) in the company for more than three years,
and (i) within 12 months prior to the dividend payment date,
subsurface users undertake further processing (after primary
processing) of at least prescribed rate of the total extracted
minerals, by its own production facilities in Kazakhstan or
owned by its affiliated resident entity in Kazakhstan.

10.

REHZE@®

RBZHFEHMEHE - 6E%
TCENE_ABATREINFG
L B8.25% « BB B BB LK
EA TSR ERF16.5% © BE
2022F 12 A31B L F/E + BFE
RARERBFRRE » REBTEE
BRMA BB EEERE
BEURR R FE BB R E 5
Bt WASHEE IR IR16.5% M E| — T
KEF o

RIS EE ([ EFTE
A REEMES - RREMEA
AIRMIEFE 2 MER25% - BE
2022F 12 A31HIEFE - =M
BRRENEFRGE (20214F : &
REEIRRE) ©

REFZEZHBARARERR
EEMBBE - REMEBRRNE
EFE2REGR/19% -

RIBB2021F1 AR EHEHRER
HriE AMBHE T IRBUE (Tha BT
A - HERERNEREREERERIN
PR (MROMNIRIR ) LA SRRA IR B
FHTAN T EREREARBE
AN REIRIRMAER & ((BE
B AR Z B - SRIMNCR Y
B NEREREANRD ()
HB3E - R()ERR - AN
Z BRIV12EAR - TN EIREM
ENEEAFRRA N DRRE LB
RE R RETMI (MNTE)
REEME N TR EEER
RIGERAMERA - ARBBLE
EfE SRR BN i T ERERA
ANEBHBEBENERDER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 10. FIB8ixxH @

The Group has held shareholding in the joint venture for more
than three years and all extracted minerals of the joint venture
are further processed in its own production facilities, the
dividends received by the Group from the joint venture are not
subject to the Kazakhstani withholding tax in accordance with
the provisions of the New Tax Code of Kazakhstan.

Ortalyk has not satisfied the exemption conditions from the
Kazakhstani withholding tax, the dividends received by the
Group from Ortalyk are subject to the Kazakhstani withholding
tax in accordance with the provisions of the New Tax Code of
Kazakhstan.

Pursuant to the EIT Law, the earnings distributed from the
joint venture to the PRC subsidiary is subject to a tax rate that is
the difference between the tax rate under EIT Law and the tax
rate under the New Tax Code of Kazakhstan.

As at the end of the reporting period, the accumulated
unrecognisable taxation for undistributable profits of the joint
venture is HK$46,822,000 (2021: HK$40,478,000).

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands,
the Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands for the both years.

AEERARELENEREB=
FHAZCENEARREE
HEHBAEEEMETRINTRE
B2 Al AEBBBEREDREN
DHARRB B BOERRE - T
BAIGE S AR TRER AT ISR

BARIHAMEERASEHOH#L
R - Eilt - NEEUE RAR]E
DEZERRIG B BOENRE - B
MRS BE S HTE TR IR PTG AR ©

RIBEEMRETUE - R EHIH
BRRAIZARELERMEHN - BiZ
BRIDEPTIS T R NG BT BOET
RZEETHHTBELEMSH -

EECEBEMSH RN
SR A8 RET A R IE
£46,822,000% 7T (20214 -
40,478,000/ 7T) °

REFSEHE OERIER - A&
BN MESEBAMREARSE
EEH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 10. FrE¥iH @
The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the FRFEHRZ A E \,v? BakH
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit fthy 2 TED Ui 2 2 B A A s N AR 40
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: ™
2022
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit before taxation R A% A 567,143 196,564
Tax calculated at rates applicable REBRBE AR BRNENZ
to profits in the respective tax MEFTE 218
jurisdiction concerned 120,053 56,950
Tax effect of share of results of EE—EeabEEE BT E
a joint venture (52,353) (34,578)
Tax effect of share of results of FEMEEE R R B B &
associates (58,938) (12,833)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A1 ST H 2 T IE &
for tax purpose 29,502 4,384
Tax effect of income not taxable for ~ AT I A 2 FiF 22 &
tax purpose (7,983) (11,933)
Deferred tax on undistributed earmnings — &4 &b ¥ & 7 B & F AR IE
of a joint venture | 6,344 6,151
Deferred tax on undistributed earmnings 52/~ & & 7 Bt & F B IR IE £ 1B
of associates 6,971 7,073
Effect of withholding tax on the 7 Be 7N S B G 1 7o AR B 2 A
distributed profits of the Group’s HFTERAGEH 2
Kazakhstan associate 15,065 S
Tax effect of temporary differences RERGRERE BT E
not recognised 1 (35)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRR IEE B 2 T2 2,974 2,914
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses &) 4o BT R FEZFIIEE 1B~ Fif%
previously not recognised 2 (8,682) _
Under provision in prior years BIEFEERBETE = 336
Others Hit (726) (363)
Income tax expenses for the year REEFRERS 52,228 18,066

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 31. BRI IB B H A FE31 ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at
after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration

Carrying amount of inventories sold

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Short-term lease expenses

Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) (Note 14)

Net exchange loss

ARERENEHIR TR IAR

EE
ZERB
EHEFEREE

WE - BERRETE

EREEERE
RHHEER

11.

REEm A

2022
20224

2021
20214
HK$'000
FAT

HK$’000
FH

BIRAN (BRESHME) (HE14)

JHIE R ARR

2,894 2,072
3,500,648 3,771,251
210 128

1,643 1,715
1,334 1,319
20,741 15,561
3,323 3,266

12. DIVIDENDS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no dividend

(2021: HKO.5 cent per share) in respect of the year ended 31

December 2021 has been declared and paid.

Since the Group intends to retain sufficient capital for the
business expansion, the Board did not recommend the
payment of any final dividend for the year 2022 (2021: Nil).

12.

8=\

REE2022F 12318 ILEE -
WS M MREHZE2021612
31HIEFERRE (20214 : 0.5
AL BR)

HRAEEITERE T CESIEE
BERE  WEFeTEZRETM
2022F RERAR B (20214F : #) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR HRRME

EARNINGS PER SHARE

13. BREF
AR AEIETREAR REE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

BT T ISR -

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

2022 2021
2022% 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER AT
Earnings 2R
Earnings for the year attributable to the R EGREREANZ
owners of the Company for the purpose A FIHEA AEIEERRH
of calculating basic earnings per share 514,915 178,498
Number of shares RIAPEE
Weighted average number of ordinary BRI EGRERAN 2
shares for the purpose of calculating basic & &R JIHE L5
earnings per share 7,169,520,454 6,600,682,645

The diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings

per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares

during both years.

STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 14.
EMOLUMENTS)

Salaries, allowances, other benefits

¥ o RRL - HABER RIEA

RREFEADEAFEETREL
BEERE - RERESRNER

BRERRF -

BIRA(BREEEHS)

2022
20224

HK$’000
FTERT

2021
20214
HK$’000
TAT

and bonus 19,747 14,885

Retirement benefit schemes RIREFIET B
contribution 994 676
20,741 15,561
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #£2022F 12 A31H I FE

14. STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 14. EIRA(BIEEEMS)

EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate defined contribution
schemes (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance which
are available to qualified employees. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the subsidiaries
in independently administered funds. Monthly contributions
made by the subsidiaries are calculated based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs or fixed sums as
stipulated under the relevant requirements, as appropriate.
The employees are required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and they can
choose to make additional contributions. The employees are
entitled to 100% of the employer’s Mandatory Contributions
upon their retirement at the age of 65, death or total
incapacity.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in
the PRC and UK, the subsidiaries of the Company in those
countries participate in respective government retirement
benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) whereby the subsidiaries are
required to contribute to the Schemes to fund the retirement
benefits of the eligible employees. Contributions made to the
Schemes are calculated based on certain percentages of the
applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the requirements
in the PRC and UK. The relevant authorities of the PRC and
UK are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable
to the retired employees. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the Schemes is to pay the ongoing required
contributions under the Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution represent gross
contributions by the Group to the Schemes operated by
the relevant authorities of the PRC and UK and the defined
contribution schemes operated in Hong Kong.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$994,000 (2021:
HK$676,000) represents contributions payable to these
schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting
period.

(&)

EEMBARAEEREBIZES
BHIERATE ST EHEBIHEITE R H
RET I ([REeEtEl]) - %5aTEl
ZEEANBARZEENBIE
BESADFARZHE - WBARZE
AR TR B3R FTETRA L@
B A2 & T B 5 L EE K
BOARERABAME)E - EEA
BE A% 2 5%k &= 1,500 TIE
R MEEREELEEIME
Ko EERGEEERIK - FETESR
PR TYERE IR ZEH100% 2 B
SRR o

REFELREHRE
ARBZHENERRLESIER
R EANEE ([ZFE) - &
It ZEWBARARZETEIE
HER - B A BERER ZRIK
A o MR EE L 2 1R
B e B e B AR 151 AT R T B 8 P
RAZFEBDLEE - PEIKE
BERERAERRKERNE
Nz Z2BURIRER - REEFZF
ARz EEERREZSERE
TR PTRBHER -

B8

W

d 2l B

U1l

BAAEFIET & BN A KB F B
BN EEEHE BEE % EE
AR A E & 2 E M AT BIE
2 HFRARER -

B8z 2 425K AK994,000/8 7T
(20214 : 676,000/ 7T) - BIALE
ERAe TR S EIEN 2

K -



15. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine
(2021: seven) directors and the chief executive were as

follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

15.

Fees
re
HK$'000
ThR

BEERERSEHEMA L 2B

&

(@ EERIFETHAEHMSE
BSR4 (20214F ¢
+tRZ)EERTETHAE
ZHEmT

HZE2022F12H31H1LE
E

Other emoluments
Hitie
Salaries,
allowances
and other
benefits

e 2K

Retirement
benefit
schemes
contribution
RHER Total
REMER TR b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
T#x THr FER

Emoluments paid or receivable BEHAWALARA
in respect of director’s other WERREH . EH
services in connection with the EREAtRBEE
management of the affairs of TR e
the Company and its subsidiary
undertakings
Executive directors: HITEZ -
An Junjing’ ZERE - 950 - 950
Xu Junmef® BHER - 720 = 720
Chen Deshac® e’ - 144 - 144
Emoluments paid or recelvablein  —RALHETES (EH
respect of a person's senvicesasa BAAFRENER A
director, whether of the Company ~ ¥%72%) 2 RISCE
or its subsidliary undertakings SOET e
Non-executive directors: FEHTEE -
Sun X #ie’ - - = =
Yin Xiong? B - - - -
Liu Guanhua?* Bt - - - -
Independent non-executive BUHNTEE -
dlrectors:
Qiu Xianhong il 120 - - 120
Lee Kwok Tung Lotis ZEIR 120 - - 120
Gao Pei Ji RIEE 120 - - 120
360 1,814 - 2,174
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 15. EERZSHEMA L 2
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (continued) AL ),
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) BEERTETHRAEME
(Continued) €=
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE2021F12A31BILF
4

Other emoluments
Hinfe
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other schemes

benefits contribution
e 28 NN
REMEF :
HK$'000

St
/BT

Emoluments paid or receivable EEREBRALARANE

in respect of director's other NAEBEBER LR
services in connection with the RS MR
management of the affairs of s
the Company and its subsidiary
undertakings
Executive directors: HiTEZ -
An Junjing’ ZEIE = 950 = 950
Chen Deshac® FRiZ R - 864 - 864

Emoluments paid o receivable n -~ —BATHETEE (&R
respect of aperson's senvicesasa  AAREHENBLARE
director, whether of the Company B2 &%) 2 RECES

or its subsidiary undertakings s e
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
Sun X B - - - -
Yin Xiong? R - - - -
Independent non-executive BUHHTEE -
directors:
Qiu Xianhong s 120 - - 120
Lee Kwok Tung Louis ZEF 120 - - 120
Gao Pei Ji BEE 120 - - 120

360 1,814 S 2,174
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

15. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

1 Mr. An Junjing is also the CEO of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above included those for services
rendered by him as the CEO.

2 During the year end 31 December 2022, no emoluments
were paid or payable to such directors of the Company by
the Group (2021: Nil).

3 Mr. Chen Deshao resigned as director and Ms. Xu Junmei
was appointed as director on 14 March 2022.

4 Mr. Liu Guanhua was appointed as director on 19 July 2022.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
no other directors or chief executive have waived or
agreed to waive any arrangements for remuneration
other than those disclosed in this report.

The directors of the Company did not receive any
emoluments from the Group as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office during the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
retirement benefit schemes contribution for directors is
borne by CGNPC, the ultimate parent of the Company,
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“CGNPC Group”). No apportionment has been made
as the directors of the Company consider that it is
impracticable to apportion this amount between their
services to the Group and their services to CGNPC
Group.

15. EERZSHEMA L 2

AL ),

(a)

ESERFIETBRARME

)

| REBEETARAAERH
78 RERBBEOMS0HE
HETERERHTE RS
BB -

2 HZE2022F12A31HLIEF
B AEBREEEIMHEL
BB EERN M (20214 -

THTT) o

3 JA2022%3H148 - RERL
SBRTEERGEBLLTES
ThRES-

¢ BIEESLENR2022F7 A19H
EZAARES-

RELE20224F K 202112
AS1BIEEEAN « BRAR
ERBEIN  WEAME
EHEFEITRABERE
KRB MEEMEFT WAL
o

REE2022F K 2021F12
AB1HLFER - AATA
EFARWE FE R AREM
BB Bl 7E N BR 7R & B R ol 4
B REBALAREN -

REE2022%F 2021412
AS1HILFE  EFRHIK
BAFT SR T B AR R
CEREGAETEZES
AR REKBEAE (G
BAEE ) FHE - ARAR
REERARERAER
KR A% 5 B R 4 AR 75
DEZEEWAAIT
0 # AR AEE 2 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #, 2202212 A31 A L FEE
15. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 15. EERBEHMA LT ZE
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (continued) cAC )
(b)  Individuals with highest emoluments (b) ESFHMAL

For the year ended 31 December 2021, of the five
individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
one was a director and the CEO of the Company
whose emoluments were included in the disclosures
in note 15(a) above. For the year ended 31 December
2022, all directors emoluments were not within the
five highest rank. The emoluments of the five (2021:
remaining four) individuals were as follows:

HK$’000
FERT

¥ R R EMRERN

Salaries, allowances and other

HE2021F12A318I1EF
B RAEERERR=E M
AT —RBARRRESZR
BFEHITE - EFMEEL
M FE15(a) R EHIFE -
HE2022F12A318I1EF
B FIBEEMNE RS
RARE=FWHEEAN - 7
F(2021F : H#THA) A
THEMANT

2022
20224

2021
20214F
HK$'000
T

benefits 7,546 5,413
Discretionary bonus BIEIEAL 479 1,032
Retirement benefit schemes RINEFFT B

contribution 1,411 292

9,436 6,737
The emoluments were within the following bands: HEMEFEATEERA

Number of

Individuals

AB

Z 1,000,000/ 7T

1,000,001 £ 21,500,000
&I

1,500,001 722,000,000
BIT

2,000,001 7T %&2,500,000
o

2,500,001 7T 23,000,000
ST

3,000,001 723,500,000
BIT

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

2022
20224

2021
20214
Number of
Individuals

A

3 2
1 -
1 1




TEZBERERAR —T--FF% 187

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e e TR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - MENRRKE
Furniture,
fixtures
and office
Leasehold equipment
Buildings  improvements B #E Total
BF HENERE &N @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
T TR T T
COST PR
At 1 January 2021 202141 A1H 238 577 5,553 6,368
Additions B - - 393 393
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 12021123318}
2022F1R1H 238 577 5,946 6,761
Additions AE - - 594 594
Disposals L& - - (1) (M)
Exchange realignment 3T - = (1) (1)
At 31 December 2022 12022612318 238 577 6,528 7,343
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND ZHTERAME
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2021 o021 E1A1H 238 577 4,931 5,746
Provided for the year TEERE - - 128 128
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 72021123318 ]
20221 /1A 238 577 5,059 5,874
Provided for the year TEERE - - 210 210
Disposals L& - - @ (4)
Exchange realignment & JL R = - 1 1
At 31 December 2022 2022124318 238 577 5,266 6,081
CARRYING VALUES FaE
At 31 December 2022 120226124318 - - 1,262 1,262

At 31 December 2021 20215124318 - S 887 887
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

17. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE 17. ERAREEREEASRE
LIABILITIES
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FHEEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
FExT FAET
Properties ES 2,327 3,970
The Group has lease arrangements for offices. The TEERBRAEREHE
lease terms are generally ranged from three to five ZHE - HEHRASN T
years. —ERF-
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group HE2022F12H3181EF
did not enter into any lease agreement. E o AEEWERT TR

(b)

HE W= -

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the HZE2021F12A31HIL4F
Group entered a new lease of offices amounted to B AEEFIHAERA
approximately HK$3,708,000. Z=#73,708,000/ 7T °
Lease liabilities (b) HEAE
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FiBT
Current i) 1,560 1,445
Non-current JEmED 662 2,417

2,222 3,862
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* RE M BEmERMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E
17. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE 17. ERAREEREEASRE
LIABILITIES (continued) €=
(b)  Lease liabilities (Continued) b) HEAEHE
2022 2021
20224 20214
Amounts payable under lease HK$’000 HK$'000
liabilities REHEABERGNESE FET FHET
Within one year —FR 1,560 1,445
After one year but within two years —FRERMERN 662 1,726
After two years but within five years ~ MERERER - 691
2,222 3,862
Less: Amount due for settlement BNt ZEAREEEE
within 12 months el (1,560) (1,445)
Amount due for settlement after R {EAEEIEREE D
12 months ok 662 2,417
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group HE2022F12A3181EF
did not enter into any lease agreement. B ANEBEWETZER
HEWZE -
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the HE2021F12A318 1LF
Group entered into a new lease agreement in respect B AEBFVEB@RAE
of renting office and recognised lease liability of R E ST EREES
approximately HK$3,708,000. &#93,708,000/ 7T, °
()  Amounts recognised in profit or loss (c) REZTEINEEE

2022 2021
2022%F 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAET

Depreciation expense on right-of-use {# FEZEMITE S H

assets 1,643 1,715
Interest expense on lease liabilities ~ A& & EMNF]E S H 68 83
Expense relating to short-term leases & Hif &7 1,334 1,319
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

17. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE 17. ERAREEREEASRE
LIABILITIES (continued) €=
(d)  Others (dy EHith
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the total HZE2022F12831HLEF
cash outflow for leases amount to approximately E - HEMBReRHRE
HK$3,042,000 (2021: HK$3,114,000). #17$3,042,0007% 7T (2021

£ : 3,114,000/ 7T) °

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. ®REWHE
HK$’000
FExT
FAIR VALUE NAE
At 1 January 2021 20211 A1H 52,623
Net decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss DREZRER Z AL EFH D (1,073)
Exchange realignment b 34 R B 1,532
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 F2021F12 A31H K202241 A1H 53,082
Net decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss DRAIBRER Z AL EFH (2,903)
Exchange realignment bE X (4,394)
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12 A31H 45,785
The carrying value of investment properties shown above are FHiEEmEZIREMETILRF
situated in the PRC and held under medium-term lease. CIRIBPHEERE -
All of the Group’s property interests to earn rentals or for AEEMBFE ARG IES
capital appreciation purposes are measured using the RIBERGEZ MERSZANRRE

fair value model and are classified and accounted for as BAFE  UHBERARIERE
investment properties. e
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties held by
Beijing Sino-Kazakh as at 31 December 2022 and 2021
have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
on that date by an independent qualified professional valuer
not connected with the Group, Avista Valuation Advisory
Limited, who has among its staff members of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued. The valuation was
arrived at on an open market value basis by using the income
approach of capitalising the net rental income receivable from
the existing tenancies and the reversionary income potentials.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used
in the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the properties,
the highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

The Group’s investment properties that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are
HK$45,785,000 (2021: HK$53,082,000). They are grouped
into fair value hierarchy Level 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs fair value measurements is observable.

There were no transfers between levels in fair value hierarchy
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

18.

REWME =

1 R AP IS S HA 20224 22021412
A31BEFRHEARERREMEN N
RETDHEREAEEEREZ B
AERBEGEMEDT LN
BRARFTETAEMED - L
BT EEABRARTSSEIAS
BHEMEees  HELHAE
BV 2 R E R 2 (S EE
B - HESKEARMEREE - &
BREREHETHE - BRERNML
REBRAFHENHSRAFERE
BIEETR S U AMERK o

PSR — 2 R P R A
B o BEHBYET DRETE
W% BRI FIE RIS
A -

REBZIREMEU S EREZ
NF1E45,785,000/8 7T (20214
53,082,000 0) 5T 2 + JHIEAR
BEABRNEESERAREE=
o

HZE2022F 2021512 A318 1
FE WEAARESHHIE ZBEH
EReEs -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18. REWR &=

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements of ERREMES AR EHNE

investment properties: BHL
Valuation Sile]gliifez=Tas
technique Key input unobservable inputs
HER FEBAE TABR s EBEER

All Investment Income approach Income approach takes into account Term yield and reversion

properties net rental income of the properties yield are at 6% (2021: 6%)

derived from the existing leases and/

or achievable in the existing market
with due allowance for the reversionary
income potential of the leases,
which have been then capitalised
to determine the market value at an
appropriate capitalisation rate.

FrBREE WA H&z)\;‘zm@ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ%%ufﬁﬁa‘ﬁfﬁﬁ A e R B B e R
BRSBTS EARE 2SR B6% (20214 : 6%)
)\/%&%;ﬁ - BEMEEHEEZERKRAE
ﬁf’ﬁiﬁé‘aﬁfﬁ% B EEHEETUER
EAERE—EEE ML RBEME -

The fair value measurement of the investment properties RABRALEEZREMEARE
determined by using income approach is negatively correlated FrEHERREERER KSR
to the term vield and reversion yield. A slight increase in term Z88# - BAkEERERRE
yield and reversion yield used would result in a significant KRS RSEEMEARBETE
decrease in fair value measurement of the properties, and vice BERD  RZIA ©

versa.

The net decrease in fair value of approximately HK$2,903,000 B ZE2022F12A31HILFE -
(2021: Net decrease in fair value of approximately HK$1,073,000) NAER L FEEL2,908,000%
was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 JL(20214F : RRAERI FEL

December 2022. 1,073,000/ 70) Bz TR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

19. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 19. R—EEE ¥R
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Cost of unlisted interest in a joint R—EELEMAEELE R
venture AN 793,730 793,730
Share of post-acquisition results and  fE{GUNIER ZE R A2 ER
other comprehensive expenses, (RE AR 2)
net of dividends received (359,735) (435,719)
433,995 358,011
Details of the joint venture as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 BEDEN2022F 202112 A
are as follows: 31TEREEEAT ¢
Place of
incorporations Percentage of
establishment ownership held
and operation Class of by the Group
Name of entity Form of entity &M,/ shares held AEBfE Principal activities
ERaR ERFS REXHY Fiis R85 BEEEAL  FEEEIH
Semizbay-U Limited liabilty ~ Kazakhstan Ordinary shares ~ 49% Extraction, preliminary
partnership processing and sale
of uranium oxide on

Semizbay and Irkol

fields
EIVNG] BREASY  WEREE gl 49% B SN RS
Semizbay K Irkol& 3

igflasi:
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

19. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 19. R—REEaEtX o En

(#)
Summarised financial information of material joint EAEGELENKERNBE
ventures
The summarised financial information in respect of the joint HAEBBEERTEZE6ERE
venture that is material to the Group and is accounted for using (A EZAR) WIS E R 28,
equity method set out below: AR -
Semizbay-U FioNa]
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTET FHET
Current assets MENEE 627,162 537,304
Non-current assets ERBNEE 465,806 398,722
Current liabilities mEBE 104,085 126,599
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 103,178 78,792
The above amounts of assets and LB ERAELBEEIE
liabilities include the following: T
Cash and cash equivalents BehReEEER 316,737 234,494
Current financial liabilities nBERAE(TRERNER
(excluding trade and other Ko E b B A5 3008 K B )
payables and provisions) - S
Non-current financial liabilities FnBErmas
(excluding trade and other (T BEEMERR R EMER

payables and provisions) FIE R ) = =
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint
ventures (Continueq)

Semizbay-U (Continued)

19. R—REEeE ¥R

(&)
BERAELRUMBERRERE (B)

H2E] ()

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET AT

Revenue L 946,297 743,938

Profit for the year IRE A 427,372 283,700
Other comprehensive expenses AEEHMEEREZ

for the year (41,013) (19,865)
Total comprehensive income AFEEEHEK B

for the year 386,359 263,835

Note:  Dividend of approximately HK$113,332,000 from joint venture has
been received during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$36,051,000).

The above profit for the year include the following:

e : REZE2022F12A8318ILF
E - BEHRBMERBEAEERCED
113,332,000 T (20214 :
36,051,000/ 7T) 2 &8 °

AR E R A BT

2022 2021

20225 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000

TERT FHET

Depreciation and amortisation HTE Mg 97,895 87,942
Interest income B 12,981 919
Interest expense FEXWH 198 1,639
Income tax expense Fris iz 106,139 72,342
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

19. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint
ventures (Continueq)

Semizbay-U (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in the joint venture is set

out as below:

19. R—REEeE ¥R

(&)
BERAELRUMBERRERE (B)

H2E] ()

BRREERRZ M AN
EHRMEMERNT

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx T

Net assets of Semizbay-U HHAREBEEFE 885,705 730,635

Proportion of the Group’s ownership A& B A T4

interest in Semizbay-U Rz el 49% 49%
Carrying amount of the Group’s REERH R BRI R

interest in Semizbay-U ARMEE 433,995 358,011

No capital commitment and contingent liabilities incurred
related to the Group’s interest in a joint venture.

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Listed associate (Notes a, b, c¢)

AEER—HEEERNERLE
BARAHERIARAE -

20. REtE QR 2ER

EhmEE AT (FffFa b c)

2022 2021

2022F 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEx T

Cost of listed interest in an associate 72— _E Bt A Bl 2 AR 453,924 453,924

Accumulated impairment REHRE (60,018) (98,506)

Accumulated loss on dilution REtEEEEE (99,115) (96,599)
Share of post-acquisition profitand (G UR BB & T &%

other comprehensive income Hh 2w

(Note a) (FfFa) 230,311 274,798

Share of other reserve JEEE b EE 21,629 17,588

546,731 551,209
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20. REtENTI 2R &
Listed associate (Notes a, b, c) (Continued) riBE AT (MZa b c) (&

2022 2021
20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000
FH THR

Market value of the interest in R TSR R]
the listed associate w2 TE 445,178 461,863

Unlisted associate FLEHEE AT
2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of unlisted interest in an associate A —fEIE L& A alEm 2 KA 8,374,012 3,374,012
Share of post-acquisition profit and  fE(L U S & F & HAh 2 UkEs
other comprehensive income, HIBR B WF B
net of dividends received 12,960 57,118
Undistributed profits on the acquisition R UgEE B BRH) K 2K % K IR T
date deferred income tax PSRt 1,545 12,555
3,388,517 3,443,685
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Total of carrying amount ARMEAA(E 3,935,248 3,994,894
Details of the recoverable amount of the interest in the listed PR2022%F K 202112 A31 HAIR
associate as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows: e RRERN A RO SRR
BT

2022 2021
20225 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAET

Recoverable amount Al El & RE 546,731 551,209
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Details of the associates as at 31 December 2022 and 2021

are as follows:

Name of entity

BERER

Form of entity
{57

Place of
incorporations
establishment
and operation
AL
REB

20. REEENTZ2ER®

MR2022F 2021512 A31H » %
BN RIFEBOT

Percentage of
ownership held
by the Group
(Note b)
AEERE
EREEIL
(MfzEb)

Class of
shares held

Fir i B 40 28 R

Principal activities

IRRBED

Note a: As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the management of the

Group reviewed the interest in Fission for impairment assessment
and determined the recoverable amount based on a value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projection over the life of exploration
and evaluation assets with reference to a valuation performed by an
independent qualified professional valuers, Asia-Pacific Consulting
and Appraisal Limited. The key inputs are the uranium prices and the
resources of uranium.

During the year, as a result of recovery of uranium price, a reversal
of impairment loss of approximately HK$38,488,000 (2021:
HK$32,831,000) was recognised and included in the share of results
of associates for the current year.

The carrying amounts of Fission as at 31 December 2022 and 2021
represent the recoverable amount and the recoverable amount is its
value in use, which is higher than the fair value less costs of disposal.
As the shares of Fission are listed on Toronto Stock Exchange in the
Canada, its fair value-less costs of disposal can be determined based
on the quoted market. price of the shares as the management of the
Group considers that the cost of disposal is insignificant.

Fission Uranium Corp. Corporation Canada Common shares  13.75% (Note ¢) Acquisition and

(“Fission”) (31 December development of
2021: 14.34%) exploration and
evaluation assets

Fission Uranium Corp. 14 JIIEYN LR 13.75% (M itc) WERAERR
([FissionA 1) (2021512831 HHEE

B : 14.34%)

Mining Company “Ortalyk” Limited liability ~ Kazakhstan Ordinary shares ~ 49% Extraction, preliminary
Limited Liability Partnership  partnership processing and sale
(“Ortalyk”) of uranium products

and resources on
Central Mynkuduk
field and Zhalpak field

RREERBEARAULE BREMAY RERIA i 49% R FMIRHE
(TR Central Mynkuduk &

Zhalpakl& 5/ ikE
BA

Mizra :  M20224 k20216128318 -
REEEEEEMFissionA A Z
EmAE T2EBIAEKE
¥ M EATEBAERAR
FrgEf T E - SRAME kT
BEFHRSRENZFEREE
TEFAECHAKBSE - X
T AR BB RIER ©

FRN - ARMBEBFA « AR B
SRR B 518 B (2] 4938,488,000/%8
7 (20214F : 32,831,000/87T) °
Hit ARARFE R A AR

R2022F 2021412 A31H
FissionfREIBE AR S5
AlEeEAREFEABESRA
AEREERAE o HRFissionA
FARORINEXZHREEZLRRS
Frbm s HEARERHEKAK
AERHTIBREETE - AKX
EEERERABHERAL TE
* o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The Group is able to exercise significant influence over Fission because
it has the power to appoint two (2021: two) out of seven (2021:
eight) directors of Fission under the terms stated in the subscription
agreement entered into by the Company and Fission on 11 January
2016.

During the year, Fission entered into agreements with certain
underwriters in April 2022 pursuant to which the underwriters
has agreed to purchase, on a bought deal basis, approximately
10,899,300 ordinary shares of Fission in aggregate.

Fission also engaged into a credit agreement with a company (“Lender”)
for the purpose of funding the development of the Patterson Lake
South uranium project and general working capital. In connection with
the facility, Fission issued approximately 16,627,059 ordinary shares
of Fission upon exercise of purchase warrants and interest payment to
the Lender in accordance with the terms and conditions of the credit
facility agreement.

In addition, Fission issued 121,792 (2021: 118,000) ordinary shares of
Fission under a directors remuneration plan and 1,239,463 ordinary
shares of Fission upon exercise of share options granted to the
directors, employees, officers and consultants of Fission under the
share option schemes of Fission.

As a result, the Group’s interest in Fission reduced in aggregate
by 0.59% (2021: 2.4%) from 14.34% as at 31 December 2021 to
18.75% as at 31 December 2022. The effect on the deemed disposal
of partial interest in Fission is approximately HK$2,520,000 (2021:
HK$32,156,000).

The Group has entered an offtake agreement with Fission on 11
January 2016, which offered the Group shall purchase, pay for and
take delivery from Fission, a quantity of uranium equal to certain
percentage annual production and shall have the right in its sole
discretion to purchase, and receive delivery from Fission up to an
additional quantity of 15% of annual production.

If, for a period of twenty-four consecutive months (“Reference
Period”), the shareholding percentage drops and continuously remains
below the shareholding percentage of 17% but remains above 10%
inclusive, beginning in the third delivery year after the Reference
Period, the Group shall lose its right to acquire the additional quantity
of 15% and in that same year its right to the base quantity shall be
reduced to reflect its actual pro rata shareholding percentage at the
end of the Reference Period.

If, for a Reference Period, the shareholding percentage drops and
continuously remain below 10%, beginning in the third delivery year
after a Reference Period, the Group shall lose its right to any base
quantity.

20. REEENTZ2ER®

HiEED

FizEc -

74 E 48 ¥ Fission A R A I E K
T2 BRIREA QR HEFissionA
AR201651 A11 AL 2R
BEER  AEEAREATH
+%(2021F : \B)FHMA
(20214F : MB)ES -

MAFE  FissionA Al7A2022
FARHEETBRHEMILIHE
Bt BEMERERE2EEH
HEERBEA£410,899,3000%
FissionA )& 3@ A% -

Fission A&l R — A &) (B
AN —0h =B - AR
Patterson Lake South##f%1E B
R—REEESHETHRE - A
&M= FissionA R ERITHER
FE R 8 174916,627,059/%
FissionA a1 & @ik - WiRREE
& B R R RERA
ZRFE -

ESI - FissionZ B4R 15 2 = 37 B
FHEIRH B E17121,7928% (2021
1 118,000R) FiERKR KX E IR
EFissionA AR IE &R T
FissionAGIEE * B8 * &R E
BABRBEOERERTEM
T 2171,239,4630% L @A °

B - NEBRFission? A
MR B2021FE12A8318H
14.34% L E2022412 B 31
H#13.756% + & £M20.59%
(20214 : 2.4%) - BiEHE
RFission AR E D T2
#9/42,520,000% 7 (20214 :
32,156,000/&7T) °

NEBMK2016F1A11H A
Fission A BIFT M EKIBHE - R
REBER A TER B MFission
ARRE  TNRIMEEREF
EE-—TAESLAHMRESDE
BB Fission A FIIREE R X+
HERFEE15%BINREN
B o

i EE =+ mEA SR (1235
HOR - BEABSLTRIRE
BRI 7% BB - BINER
10% (BEZEDL) - K2EH
BRE=ZEXNFERG  AEH
BRERE15% I BB R
RN E R A E A E
B ARBRNSERREERE
el o

MRS E A - IRE LI TR
BERMNM0%  REEHEE=
RN EERE - AEEKERE
XS = RUERAEHE o
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. REERNTR 2R E
The market value of the Group’s interest in Fission disclosed i R B AN &£ B A Fission A B
above is based on the quoted market price available on the H=WMEIRBEZMEB SIS
Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol “FCU”, which is FARSEIFCUl T e B (BB E
level 1 input in terms of HKFRS 13. B BREENFE1RMENE—

AR A\ BIE) MEE

Summarised financial information of material associates BEABE QAR ZHBERNRE
The summarised financial information in respect of the BAEBEEAFEZHBL N A
associates that are material to the Group and are accounted (A EZAR) MBI E R 2 8
for using equity method set out below: FIgnR
@) Fission @) FissionZs &]
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current assets MENEE 235,873 333,588
Non-current assets EMBNEE 3,183,812 3,015,866
Current liabilities nBBE 8,180 10,081
Non-current liabilities MBI AE 305,930 299,689

2022 2021
20225 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAET

Revenue L - =

Loss and other comprehensive KEFEGE
expenses for the year HthxmAX (52,583) (42,180)

Other reserve for the year REZEMGEE 118,476 31,716
65,893 (10,464)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates

(Continued)

@)

Fission (Continued)

20.

REtE N T 2R
EAKE AR HEEREE (8)

(@) Fissionz> 7] (4&)

The above loss for the year includes the following: FlRAFEBERET

3l :

2022 2021

20225 20214

HK$’000 HK$’'000

TERT FHET

Depreciation and amortisation YrEe o 484 693

Interest income A EHA 5,506 1,981

Interest expense FEZH 110 41

Income tax expense FriSHisz i - =

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in
Fission is set out as below:

F it Fission’A &) 2 # z Bt
BERBEEREENY
RIAE -

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET T

Net assets of Fission Fission A AR & &= FE 3,105,575 3,039,684
Carrying amount of the Group’s NS @l FissionA R Az

interest in Fission ZHRAE 546,731 551,209
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. REtENTI 2R &
Summarised financial information of material associates EABEQRRZHEEREME (&)
(Continued)

b) Ortalyk b) BNE]

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET T

Current assets MENEE 1,005,510 959,913

Non-current assets ERBNEE 6,063,139 6,283,651

Current liabilities nBBE 80,461 152,177

Non-current liabilities MBI AE 72,848 63,458

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET T

Revenue ] 1,602,744 595,016
Profit and other comprehensive G A1 Fll & E Ath 2 FI 52

expenses for the year 582,666 288,182

Other (expenses)/reserve FREM X))
for the year (52,523) 172,116
530,143 460,298
Note:  Dividend of approximately HK$314,938,000 from Ortalyk has Mzt : EHZE2022F12A31HILEE -
been received during the year ended 31 December 2022 ERBKREBRAANKED

(2021: Nil. 314,938,000/ 7T (20214F : £E) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates

(Continued)

b) Ortalyk (Continued)

The above profit for the year includes the following:

20. RBEDT2ER @

BEABENRZMBENRE (B)

b)) — BEREE)

FRERENBETS

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTExT FHET

Depreciation and amortisation e R EEE 108,719 38,892
Interest income FEMA 33,700 1,350
Interest expense FBEZW 6,914 =
Income tax expense TSR 235,291 78,562

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial

information to the carrying amount of the interest in

Ortalyk is set out as below:

Nab 19 NCIR: IR
AR 2 EREEN SR

e

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEx FAT

Net assets of Ortalyk RABEEFRE 6,915,340 7,027,929
Proportion of the Group’s REER R R BB

ownership interest in Ortalyk 49% 49%

Carrying amount of the Group’s ~ AEBER B A RHERS
interest in Ortalyk B RREE 3,388,517 3,443,685

No capital commitment and contingent liabilities

incurred related to the Group’s interests in associates.

ARER BN E S R BIROHE
AEEREREE
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21. INVENTORIES 21. 78
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT
Uranium i 2,048,471 1,743,152
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there RELZE2022% 2021F12A31H
was no reversal of impairment of inventories. The net realisable LEFE  SERRTFERERE -
value of the inventories have been determined with reference FEMAERFERSERUAER
to the subsequent sales price of similar items. BEREBMERE -
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22, FEWBRF K HMbEWFIE
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FATT
Trade receivables (Note a) FEULBR X (Ff5Ea) 335,621 92,160
Prepayments, deposits and other BRRIE -« R REMEKEIE
receivables (Note b) (Fff 5% b) 8,142 7,597
343,763 99,757
Analysed into DT E
Current portion mEhEr 343,396 99,390
Non-current portion IERBNE S 367 367
343,763 99,757
The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances. At R E BT Bh 27 e A (T
31 December 2022 and 2021, there was no loss allowance T o 20224 2021412 31

provided. B - ANEBEWRFHEEBEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22,
(Continued)

Note a: Trade receivables of HK$277,148,000 (2021: HK$91,940,000)
represents amount due from immediate holding company, China
Uranium Development.

Note b: Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
approximately HK$197,000 (2021: HK$1,000) are interest receivables
due from CGNPC Huasheng, a fellow subsidiary of the Company.

FEW BRI H A B WX IE

(&

Mitfa:  FEUBRFR277,148,000/8 7T (2021
F : 91,940,000/ 7)) AEWE
PEAE A AP B S ZE SR A FUE o

Mizko :  FEMFE - ke REMERGRIE
BIERAARQER RHE R FF
BEAZE R #197,000/%8 7T (2021
£ 1,000/ 7T) B FEURFE. o

Prepayments, deposits and FEARE - BER 2022 2021
other receivables Hith e FRIE 20224 20214F
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FExT FAET

Analysed into DA
Current portion mENEL D 7,775 7,230
Non-current portion FEMBNEL 367 367
8,142 7,597

The Group normally grants to its trade customer credit periods
for natural uranium segment within 15 days to 120 days after
delivery dates for both years 2022 and 2021.

The following is an ageing analysis of the trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date, which approximates
the respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of the
reporting period.

Within 30 days 30HA

20224 20214 » REERE
HRRAMDBRTFEHESIELAR
EHEREFHEN 158 E1208 8
=88 -
REREER - U 5B EERR
HHIEEMBEEARAZEE - EIK
BRIRERER D ITIN T o

2022 2021
20225 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAET

335,621 92,160
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The Group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. The ECLs on trade
receivables are estimated using an individual basis by
reference to past default experience and creditworthiness of
the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial
position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date.

For other receivables, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs, unless when there is a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECLs. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECLs should be recognised is based on significant increase
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the current reporting
period.

The Group’s trade and other receivables that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. BRI R HEMmEWKFIE
(Continued) €=

AEEFENRIRRERBES
REMEREREEE - BEERZ
BEMEEERIE2EEEABE
BRTHEREBARBEE AR
FATSARI B DA 18 5% R (B Bl B4
it WEREBANFERSE - &
ANEEFBRITRANEREEBIA
KRS B IR AIRRIAR R 75 )
BRHE T IARE -

REMBYRIEAMS - NEEGFE
1218 A FRHIE R EREENER
B RIFEERR B & RFERIA
REERN  AAREERREH
BEHEEER - FAEEEERE
HFRHREEREE - DERB BRHE
RELRZONMEHERES
BEIR -

RE RS BREAESERTRE
AR B o

REBENEEEEERNEEEIA
Sz BHEEHE 2 FEUUAR 3 % HoAth FE
WHIBIT -

Presented in: 2022 2021 2022 2021
FIRA 20225 20214 2022%F 20214

HK$000  HK$'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
TR TAT AR®TR ARETT

Trade and other receivables  FEUKBE 7 &2 4t
JEWGRIE 3,978 100 1,297 2,983
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AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) AN
INTERMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY

The amount due from an intermediate holding company
represents the rental receivable from CGNPC-URC
Development of which the maximum outstanding amount
during the year ended 31 December 2022 is approximately
HK$1,679,000 (2021: HK$2,392,000).

The amount due to an intermediate holding company
represents unsettled amount of management service provided
by and the expenses paid by CGNPC-URC Development on
behalf of the Group.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free, and repayable on
demand.

The Group’s amount due from/(to) an intermediate holding
company that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out
below:

Presented in:

SRR

Amount due from an intermediate

23.

& W — ) P IR A R B SRIR

FEdR () —E R AR
NCIE S

FEY — P AR A AR IB RN FE IR
WA EZmEERES  HP - B
Z2022F12A31HIEFERS K
EiE £ %491,679,000/% 7T (2021
4 : 2,392,000/87T) °

J& A5t — R rp PRI AR X R SRR B R &
V%ﬂi%%")ﬁﬁﬁ’%lkf B E 2 AR
BRAXNEREREER

RBTHEEIR - Tt R RARER

1E\E<'°

ALE Y () —RhEER A
AFREN RS EER 2R
SNz SR THESRFIMT -

2022
20224
RMB’000
AR¥T T

2021
20214
RMB’000
AREBTT

holding company 1,500 1,955
Amount due to an intermediate FERT— R EER A BRI
holding company 913 913
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24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) FELLOW 24. W () BRKEAF
SUBSIDIARIES FIE
The amounts due from/(to) fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, FEU (1) R R I B A R I8 T
interest-free and repayable on demand. IR - TETERBEREKER o
The Group’s amounts due from/(to) fellow subsidiaries that are REBEY () R RHBREIK
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies HARBESE TR 2 aEEME LN
of the relevant group entities are set out below: ZEEETHESFHIAT

Presented in: 2022 2021
BRA 20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT

Amount due from a fellow subsidiary — FEUR— R XM E A RZIA 16 16
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ARIGE S ENGIE ¢l 420 1,789
25. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25, SRITEEREBES
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
Bank deposits: RITIFR
Cash at bank and on hand WITHEGF MRS 52,390 81,293

Analysis of bank balances and cash at IRERIFITHEFERIBE DT ¢
the end of the year:

Cash at bank and on hand (Note a)  #R1T#EFRIES (Hiira) 1,236 925
Cash placed at CGNPC Huasheng TR HUAH EIZZERR K& EXET
and CGN Finance (Note b) #iRE (FizEb) 51,154 80,368

52,390 81,293




FEZEERRAR —E-FFH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

25. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued)

Note a: Cash at bank carries interest at prevailing market rates for both years.

Note b:  The balance is unsecured, interest bearing at rates ranging from 3.95%
t0 5.92% (2021: 0.48%) per annum and recoverable on demand.

On 14 June 2019, the Company entered into the new Financial Service
Framework Agreements with CGNPC Huasheng and CGN Finance for
a terms of three years commencing from 1 January 2020 and ended
on 31 December 2022 (the “Agreements”).

On 16 June 2022, the Company renewed the Agreements with
CGNPC Huasheng and CGN Finance for a terms of three years
commencing from 1 January 2023 and ending on 31 December 2025.

Under the Agreements, the directors of the Company consider that
these deposits made to CGNPC Huasheng and CGN Finance is
qualified as cash and cash equivalent as the Group can withdraw the
deposits by giving notice to meet its short term cash commitments
and without suffering any penalty.

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

Presented in: 2022 2021
FImA 2022 20214F

HK$'000 HK$'000
570

Bank balances and cash ~ SR{T&EF MRS 22,541 22,407

20226
RMB’000
ARET T

25 BITEERBES#E

FizEa :

fzp

R B R (T I I T )
FEHEFE o

RETREER  BREMNENT
3.95%%5.92% (20214 : 0.48%)
SHEYRFEEEATKE -

M2019F6 5148 » NATEAE
IZEE B RN R A B 7 5T ST B 75 PR
EIER W - 820201 A1
1R E2022F12A31A 1L - AEA=
F - maaRE(ZEHE]D) -

202296 168 * NARIEFPE
REBRPEGZVBEEITZSH
% B2023F1A1HHARE2025
F12A31H1E - BE=F -

REZS = ARREERR
FE AL E L5 BT B AR AL
EEFUREHEHREAEZEAT
SEXEMEE  FERPEXE
BEFERMBOEREEBRER
ReMREEHERR -

AEEAEBEEEEREEEIN
She BEFHE 2 RITRF KRS

T

2022

6,964

2021 2022 2021

20214F 20224 20214
RMB'000  USD’000  USD'000
ARETT S TET

789 2,085 38
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. EMNERFRHEMENKIE
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHIT
Trade payables (Note a) FERFARER (FisEa) 655,139 91,815
Accrued expenses and other payables JE&tF Sz & E b FEAH ZOE (M3t b)
(Note b) 388,689 1,011,553
1,043,828 1,103,368
Note a: Trade payables of HK$10,875,000 (2021: HK$78,110,000) and Mizka: FEBRF10,875,000% T
HK$243,828,000 (2021: HK$13,414,000) represented amount due to (20214 : 78,110,000/ 7T) &
a joint venture of the Company, namely, Semizbay-U and an associate 243,828,000/8 7t (20214 -
of the Company, namely Ortalyk. 13,414,000%7T) BEN A AR —

RMEZEHARRARF—MH
PR N AR AAHIFIR

Note b: Included in other payables, approximately HK$7,067,000 (2021: Mzt : HthEMNKBEREEMS AR
HK$252,000) is interest payable due to CGNPC Huasheng, a fellow —HRRMNE AR T EZER
subsidiary of the Company and approximately HK$350,948,000 (2021: 497,067,000 7T (20214 :
HK$984,197,000) is the cash received in inventory lease which details 252,000/ 7T) MEMFIE - RE
are set out in note 4(k)(v). WiF &8 &3R8 £ 49350,948,000/8

7t (20214F:984,197,000/8 7T)
e N EZINYE
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables presented RMERR - RIBRZEAHRZEN 2
based on the invoice date at the end of the Reporting Period: FERTBRFZ BRER DT T
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET BT

Within 30 days 30HA 655,139 91,815

The average credit period on purchases of goods was within R2022F K 20214F » IREERZ

15 days to 120 days after the delivery date for both years FHEERY AR BEEN T15

2022 and 2021. The Group has financial risk management HZE120H - AEEE B BE

policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled within REIZBR - EIRFTE N 5RIE

the credit time frame. MMEEHNEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

27. LOANS FROM A FELLOW SUBSIDIARY

Loans repayable on 7 November
2025, unsecured and interest
bearing ranging from 4.59%

27. RE—HEERMBATZ
B

2022
20224

2021
20214
HK$'000
FAT

HK$’000
TET

MR2025F11 A7 BEE -

IR AR FFEN T 4.59% &
5.27% (2021 4F : 3.2%)

0 5.27% (2021: 3.2%) per annum ATEZEN 1,395,914 236,530

Analysed into DB
Current portion mEE D - 236,530
Non-current portion JEmENE S 1,395,914 =
1,395,914 236,530

The effective interest rate of the loans from a fellow subsidiary is

4.88% (2021: 3.35%) per annum.

The repayment schedule of the above loans based on the
agreed terms of repayment granted by a fellow subsidiary is as

follows:

RKE—ERRMBARZERN
BERFEFE 54.88% (20214
3.35%) o

RIE R ZHB AR THHE
BERGR  BRERENGBIH
FIgnT

2022
20224

2021
20214
HK$'000
FH&T

HK$°000
FTExT

On demand or within one year BRERFIR—FNR - 236,530
After one year but within two years —F AR BEDRRF - -
After two years but within five years ~ W& AREBLREF 1,395,914 =

1,395,914 236,530
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

28. LOAN FROM IMMEDIATE HOLDING 28. REEEEZERATGIZER

COMPANY

2022 2021
20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT b7

MR2023F12 A14BEE - £IK
A 2 IZLIBOR+1% (2021 £F
LIBOR+1.5%) st B 2 B

Loan repayable on 14 December
20283, unsecured and interest
LIBOR+1% (2021: LIBOR+1.5%)

per annum 47,694 2,400,197
Analysed into DB
Current portion mEE D 47,694 2,400,197

The effective interest rate of the loan from immediate holding
company is 5.75% (2021: 1.65%) per annum.

The Group has adopted Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
IBOR ‘phase 2’ (Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16). Applying the practical expedient
introduced by the amendments, when the benchmarks
affecting the Group’s loans are replaced, the adjustments to
the contractual cash flows will be reflected as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate, if any. Therefore, the replacement
of the loans’ benchmark interest rate will not result in an
immediate gain or loss recorded in profit or loss, which may
have been required if the practical expedient was not available
or adopted.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group does not expect there is
modification of the loan interest rate.

REEEZERARCERNDER
K E5.75% (20214 1.65%)

AEEDRAMRERENE - ]RIT
RZEHFEE R (FEMHKR
EHEREON - BB GETERIEI9
S BRAMBHRELENETHR - &
BB R S AR R BB R A
WEEF1652EF]) - RAZ
FERIIREMAITTRREE - 8
FEAEBERNEERFRAEH
BRRSRENFHERRRSHE
BRA R TR o Fit - ERERE
EFETSERARFNIERIEFIR
mEEIR - M iEBEARRERR
BEREETE  RIRTEARNERED
SIS EE -

20229124318 » NEEERT
ZESRME G -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

LOAN FROM IMMEDIATE HOLDING 28.

COMPANY (Continued)

The repayment schedule of the above loan based on the
agreed terms of repayment granted by immediate holding

company is as follows:

REEEZERQBZER
(&)

IR E SRR B RN AR H 1
' HIstE - BREHEEROT

2021

20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FiBTT

Within one year —FNR 47,694 2,400,197
BANK BORROWINGS 29. RITER

Bank loans — unsecured and IRITE R — EIEH

2022
20224

2021
20214
HK$'000
T

HK$’000
TR

guaranteed REER
Analysed into DT
Current portion mEhEr s 957,752 =
Non-current portion IEmEN IS - 387,754
957,752 387,754

The above balance was borrowed by CGN Global, a subsidiary
of the Company, under two credit facilities with amounts of
USD50,000,000 and USD150,000,000 respectively.

Two loans are borrowed by a subsidiary of the Company,
and bears interest rates at London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) LIBOR+1.2% and Secured Overnight Financing
Rate + 0.8% per annum (2021: one loan at LIBOR+1.2% per
annum) and it is guaranteed by the Company.

FRBERARRMBARTE
HEBHEEARBA  EERE
¥ 5 B 450,000,000% T &
150,000,0003E 7T °

ZEMEERBAARZHB AR
BA - FREAMBIBITRZERE
(TLIBORJ)LIBOR+1.2% R &R =
REVEFIE+0.8% (20214F : —%
B FHEAELBOR+1.2%) -
WHARDEIREER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

29. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 29. $RITER®E)

The Group has adopted Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
IBOR ‘phase 2’ (Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16). Applying the practical expedient
introduced by the amendments, when the benchmarks
affecting the Group’s loans are replaced, the adjustments to
the contractual cash flows will be reflected as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate, if any. Therefore, the replacement
of the loans’ benchmark interest rate will not result in an
immediate gain or loss recorded in profit or loss, which may
have been required if the practical expedient was not available
or adopted.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group does not expect there is
modification of the loan interest rate.

The repayment schedule of the above borrowings based
on the agreed terms of repayment granted by bank are as
follows:

AEBEDRAMRELERE —RTT
RIS [5E R (BAEMBR
EHAEON - BAGTERIEI9
¥ BEMBHREEAETR - F
RS RE LR FARERB MG
HELERNE165 2 ER]) - BAZ
FHERIIRHMAITTRES - 8
FENEEE R AR -
BRRERENABRKRRSHE
WA RE TR - Ft - BHRERE
BRI S EHAEFRBSERF
MMETR - M iE BRI KRB RA
EREETE - RIRTREIRIN RSP
SRS -

M2022F12831H » REEFE
ZEFRFERT GBI -

REBRITRLOBEERGER - L

SIS B RIBIT :

2022 2021
20225 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAET

On demand or within one year BERFIN1FA
More than one year, but not 1824

exceeding two years

957,752 S

- 387,754

957,752 387,754
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* e P BHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. A
Number of
CLETCT Amount
R EE +%
HK$’000
TR
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each SFREEC.01EB Tz EBR
Authorised: VETE
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 20211 18 ~ 20214F
2021, 1 January 2022 and 31 12H318 ~ 20221 A1H
December 2022 K2022F12 A31H 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRERE -
At 1 January 2021, 31 December MR2021%F1 18 ~ 2021412
2021 and 1 January 2022 A318 &2022%F1H1H 6,600,682,645 66,007
Issue of new shares under RIBRRE W REITHRG
subscription agreement (Note a) (Fffita) 240,700,000 2,407
Issue of new shares under RIRBE R F TR
subscription agreement (Note b) (Fff ) 759,300,000 7,593
At 31 December 2022 2022412 A31H 7,600,682,645 76,007

All the ordinary shares issued during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 rank pari passu with the then
existing shares in all respects.

Note a: On 28 March 2022, the Company completed a subscription
agreement with third parties (the “Subscribers”), pursuant to which
the Subscribers has conditionally agreed to subscribe for and
the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue a total
of 240,700,000 ordinary shares (at par value of HK$0.01) at the
subscription price of HK$0.80 per share. Those subscription shares
issued by the Company rank pari passu in all respects with the issued
ordinary shares of the Company on the date of issue.

Note b:  On 30 June 2022, the Company completed a subscription agreement
with a third party (the “Subscriber A”), pursuant to which the Subscriber
A has conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the Company has
conditionally agreed to allot and issue a total of 759,300,000 ordinary
shares (at par value of HK$0.01) at the subscription price of HK$0.80
per share. Those subscription shares issued by the Company rank pari
passu in all respects with the issued ordinary shares of the Company
on the date of issue.

The Company replenishes its capital after the acquisition of 49% interest in
Ortalyk on 30 July 2021 for its natural uranium trading business as well as for
future acquisition of competitive overseas uranium resource projects as part of
the Group’s development strategy.

The gross proceeds from the above subscriptions are HK$800 million and the
net proceeds from the Subscriptions, after deducting the relevant expenses,
are HK$776 million. The Company intends to utilise the net proceeds as general
working capital and for acquisition of uranium resources project.

REE2022F £ 2021412 A31H
IFFEFBEEITH L AR E
BEERGHREFEZA RBHAL

ffsta : R202243H28H * AQGEHEE =

7 (TREAD TR — D RE R -
Bt RBACHKERERER
AAREBRHREEZERETE
#£240,700,0008% S A E{H0.017%
TTHE B - REEE AER0.807%
TC o AR AT ZERERD R
RAFREITE B BT TR
B ZERRSER

MisEb : M202246H30R » AR EIE—F
F=H ([REAAD TR —HRE
Wik - UL - REAAC B IKHR
BERERADFRIDAEGRERE
K 2174 $£759,300,0008% S5
BO.0TATTHE MR - REEAS
B20.807 7T ° ARRIBEITHZER
BIRMEADRINBEITE AT
R B FTA T ESE R RS
ANAFR20216F7 308 KRB R A F149%H
BRIERFBRER  ARETRABE S
15 RAARRUEE B3R FE K8 NAERIE
BEAREERRBEN =S -

LRRBERMSIIARSEET - RRBE
SEABFREFECHBERRXR A
7.76{28 T - ANABHBAMISIORFEE
R—REEES RPEEHMERIRE ©
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION 31. EEBIE

The analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows: 5_% HR BEE/ (A ZHHE

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

Deferred tax assets HIEFIAE E 9 5,161
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIBAE (57,281) (50,066)

AT AR B FE R
TEEEHBEE, (AE)ARA
CETR

The followings are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and
prior years:

Change in fair
value of land
and buildings ~ Undistributable  Undistributable

Accumulated ~ and investment profits of a profits of an
Taxlosses tax depreciation properties  joint venture associate Total
THREFIR
REME.  -BRELE  -RBEL
WakE AR DMERD  AIEER  ZRAREA it
HKS 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
ThnL Thr ThrL Tin Tin T
A1 January 2021 RAONETA1R - 26) 8800) (15,142 - 23968
(Chargeccredited to proft orloss RBEIR)/5TA 5,151 % 28 6,151) E] (7,769
Pre-aoquistion unclstouted proft ERE A
ona newly acquired associate FAORER - - - - (12559) (12559
Exchange reaignment K - - (259) (358) - (619
At 31 Deoember 2021 and 1 January 2022 SN021E12R318 R
piail 5,161 10 (8787) 21.851) (19628 (44.905)
(Cherged)crcfted o proft orloss RER(HR)/4TA B.151) fl 7% (6:344) 6971) [17741)
Bxchange realignment Ei#E - - 745 4629 - 5374
At 31 December 2022 2022 12331R - 9 (7.316) (23,366) (26,599) (5721

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$24,901,000 (2021:
HK$43,978,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the tax losses of approximately HK$24,901,000 (2021:
HK$43,978,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included.in unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$
Nil (2021: HK$43,978,000). that will expire after five years from
the year of assessment to which they relate to. No tax loss was
expired during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

RIFEHER - ANEE ] HIKH
KRRz RKBAHEEED
£24,901,0008 7T (20214 -
43,978,00087T) - R KK
FEOBI R 2R & Fm - B R
#324,901,000/ 7T (20214
43,978,000/ 70) 2 T IBEEHER
FEERIBEE - AERFIBEE
AT (20214 ¢ 43,978,000
J0) R B E AR 2 AP R R R At
RAFRER - B E20224F 2021
F12A31BLEFE - BEHIBEE
BEEm °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

32. ARNFFBARREK

2022 2021
20226 20214
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt THT TET
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment W% - BEREHE 131 151
Right-of-use assets FREEE 1,648 2,884
Interests in subsidiaries REB R Rz 2,172,699 2,110,658
Interests in associates REE R T 2R 453,924 453,924
Deferred tax assets EREFEHEE 9 5,161
Other receivables Hib s 367 367
2,628,778 2,573,145
Current assets RENEE
Trade and other receivables FENRR R S E A FE I K08 288,429 103,794
Loan to a subsidiary B —FRB AR ER 873,458 2,344,361
Dividend receivable JEMRR S - 62,041
Income tax recoverable e A SR - 6,956
Bank balances and cash ROTEFERRSE 23,720 24,000
1,185,607 2,541,152
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables ERRZ R E MM KR 259,560 113,579
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,248 1,227
Amounts due to subsidiaries LN a - 1,088
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary [N —ERZMBARHE b 590 1,252
Amount due to an intermediate [ — R R R A RI50A
holding company a 97 -
Loan from immediate holding company REEBERARIZER 47,694 2,400,197
Loan from a subsidiary rE—HEHELRZER 190,597 76,000
Income tax payable JERET{SH 4,101 3,560
503,887 2,596,903
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE,/ (B8 FE 681,720 (55,751)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERTHERE 3,310,498 2,517,394
Non-current liabilities £ N=X i
Lease liabilities MEAE 414 1,662
Net assets HERE 3,310,084 2,515,732
Capital and reserves BRAK
Share capital N 76,007 66,007
Reserves B G 3,234,077 2,449,725
Total equity A% 3,310,084 2,515,732

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

An Junjing ZE ¥
Director Z%

RESEHAE NIRRT

Xu Junmei REH
Director 2%
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 32.
THE COMPANY (Continueq)

Note a:  Amounts due to subsidiaries and an intermediate holding company are Miska : FEFTHIE QB R —EHREER A S
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. REAREER - R ERBEREKE

AN AIBMBEARRE @)

2 .

Note b:  The amount due to a fellow subsidiary and details are set out in note MisEb © BN —MER RH B A B KA G
24, RRMTEE24 o

Note c:  Movements in the reserves during the years are as follows: Mizkc : FRREBESHOT

Share
Share options Other Retained
premium reserve reserve  earnings Total
Hitfkts REEF a5
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TELT  TERT TR TER TAR

ROEE BRERE

At 1 January 2021 720211518 1,734,144 154 7 729042 2,463,347
Profit for the year AEEHA - - - 19,381 19,381
Dividend recognised as distribution R AR Z IS

(Note 12) (fH3E12) - - - (33,003  (33,003)
At 31 December 2021 72021124318

and 1 January 2022 &2022F171H 1,734,144 154 7 715420 2,449,725
Profit for the year KEEEH - - - 18,010 18,010
Issue of shares BT 790,000 = = - 790,000
Share issue expenses BRI EIRZ (23,658) - - - (23,658)
At 31 December 2022 72022124318 2,500,486 154 7 733430 3,234,077
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

33. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

33.

Details of the subsidiaries held by the Company as at 31

December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

HELAZE

Place of
Class of incorporation/
shares held establishment

L/
ERRER R 2#%

Place of
operations

E3 ik

Direct subsidiaries:

ERNELT

Beiing Sino-Kazakn* Contriouted Capital ~~ PRC PRC

p Lol EfER i i

CGNM UK Ltd. Ordinary shares United Kingdom UK

LRk (UK) B
B

CGN Global Uranium Limited ~ Ordinary shares UK UK

PEVERMERHEARAT AR A8 i
# Wholly-owned foreign enterprise with limited liability.

Particulars of issued
share capital/paid up
registered capital
BgfiRE/
HREMBARE

B B 2 B 51 3R

A EFR20224F 202112 A31
BEEZMBARSOT :

Attributable equity
interest of the Group  Principal activities

AEEEEEE  TEER
222 201
ANNE  ANE

RMBB?23,770,000 100% 100%  Investment project

[2021:RMB823,770,000) REEE

AE 823,770,007 (2021 :

NE823,77000070)

100,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Trading of natural uranium
GBP 1 each and 130,521,354 AHES

ordinary shares of USD 1 eac
(2021: 100,000 orclinary
shares of GBP1 each and

h

130,521,354 ordinary shares

0f USD1 each)
100,000 £ &K

SHREEIRER130521,354

BRAEIETE:
100,000 EBRERAE!
#11130521,354 REER
BhaEiEn)

11,000,000 (2021:3,000,000)
ordinary shares of USD 1 each
11,000,000% (2021 -
3,000000%) £&%
= EEE

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
as at the end of the reporting period or at any time during the

reporting period.

p
100% 100%  Trading of natural uranium
KRR
o HINEBEEREELE -

PR B D A NG AR RN RS
HA (R (T B ] B TR (AR BV (B 75

f -
=i
A 4
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated

financial statements, the Group had the following

material transactions with related parties during the

year:

Sales of natural uranium resources to
China Uranium Development

Purchases of natural uranium resources
from Semizbay-U, including taxes

Purchases of natural uranium resources
from Ortalyk, including taxes

Management fee charged by CGNPC-
URC Development

Interest income from CGNPC Huasheng

Interest income from CGN Finance

Rental income from CGNPC-URC
Development

Dividend income received from
Semizbay-U

Dividend income received from Ortalyk

Interest expenses to CGNPC Huasheng

Interest expense to China Uranium
Development

AP EHERRAE
ARHER

BHATBE
AAHER (25)

BRRARE
ARHER (BH)

PREZHIFERAR
MERE

WERe BREE B AOR S A

YRR RS T M B A

W B ERE
ZBEWA

WRERGH 2 RS M

LEEINS) LI UN

TR ERER MBI

NFHEHEER ZHEXH

34. BAEBALRS

U

(il

)

v

(vl

(a)

B AR A B RS TR P L
i W E S - AEE
F P 5B B A £ 8 B A 1
THEARS :

2022 2021
20225 202145

HK$'000 HK$'000
A7 AT

1,341,031 610,918
455,276 351,907
829,528 268,278

5,293 6,410
1,527 1,401
56 132
3,318 3,445
113,332 36,051
314,938 =
9,018 21,860
38,511 18,679
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(a) (Continued)

34. BBALRZ @)

@ &

2022
2022

Notes

it

HK$'000
TER

2021
20214
HK$'000
T

Information system services fee paid
to CGN Power Company Limited
(“CGN Power”)

Information system services fee paid to
CGN Finance

Accounting services fee paid to CGN
Power

Administrative service fee paid to
CGNPC-URC Development

Purchases of natural uranium resources
from Swakop Uranium (Pty) Ltd,
including taxes (“Swakop”)

AP EEZE RN BRAF
(FEZEN]) XHHER
FoRIEER x)

e B
ENEGREER (i

R EZENTNM
SHREER (il

A B BRI
REER

& Swakop Uranium (Pty) Ltd
(TSwakop)) BERAHE R
(%) (xi)

= 92
827 S
162 940
546 535

- 69,412

Notes:

)

On 14 June 2019, the Group has entered into a framework
agreement with CGNPC-URC for the sales of natural uranium
resources for the years ended 31 December 2020 to 2022
at prevailing market rates. Details are set out in the circular of
the Company dated 9 September 2019.

On 25 November 2019, the Group entered into a sale
agreement with China Uranium Development for the sales of
natural uranium resources for the year 2020 to 2022.

On 16 June 2022, the Group has entered into a new sales
framework agreement with CGNPC-URC Development for
the sales of natural uranium resources for another term of
three years from 1 January 2023. Details are set out in the
circular of the Company dated 19 August 2022.

B -

R2019566 4148 » R&E
B EZHEERRE
20204 £20224 12 A
STALFERBRTMEY
ERRIE RN AT L AESR
s o FBERRAAFA
HA2019F9A9BE A
K o

M2019%F11 A25H @ &
EEERBEMEFRME
ZE2020FE E2022F 5
KA EIRM T L HE 1%
A

H2022F6A16H » A&
B E R R
ERARMEIRMA] M 8H
EIEREMZE - 8202341
A1B#s - BEH=F -
HBEHERALRBBA
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii

()

On 8 April 2021, the Group entered into a purchase
agreement with Semibay-U for the purchases of natural
uranium resources for the year 2021 with other certain taxes
in relation thereon borne by the Group.

On 17 March 2022, the Group entered into a purchase
agreement with Semizbay-U for the purchases of natural
uranium resources for the year 2022 with other certain taxes
in relation thereon borne by the Group.

On 29 November 2021, the Group entered into a purchase
agreement with Ortalyk for the purchases of natural uranium
resources for the year 2021 with other certain taxes in
relation thereon borne by the Group.

On 4 March 2022, the Group entered into a purchase
agreement with Ortalyk for the purchases of natural uranium
resources for the year 2022 with other certain taxes in
relation thereon borne by the Group

The Group entered into a service agreement with CGNPC-
URC Development for the administrative services provided by
CGNPC-URC Development.

The Group entered into a framework agreement with CGNPC
Huasheng to deposit amounts with CGNPC Huasheng and
generate interests from such deposits.

The Group entered into a framework agreement with
CGN Finance to deposit amounts with CGN Finance and
generated interests from such deposits.

The Group entered into a rental agreement with CGNPC-
URC Development to lease out the investment properties to
generate rental income.

The Group entered into a loan agreement CGNPC Huasheng
to withdraw amounts with CGNPC Huasheng and incurred
interest expense for those loans.

The Group entered into a loan agreement with China Uranium
Development to withdraw amounts with China Uranium
Development and incurred interest expense for those loans.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, CGN Power,
a fellow subsidiary of the Group provided the information
system to the Group charged for the services fee. There was
No transaction during the 2022.

34. BBALRZ @)

(a)

&

MRt : (B

(i

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii

(i)
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e VIR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(xi) During the year ended 31 December 2022, CGN Finance,
a fellow subsidiary of the Group provided the information
system to the Group charged for the service fee.

(xii) During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
CGN Power, a fellow subsidiary of the Group provided the
accounting services to the Group charged for the services
fee.

(xiii) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
entered into a purchase agreement with a fellow subsidiary
of the Group, Swakop, for the purchases of natural uranium
resources with other taxes in relation thereon borne by the
Group. There was no transaction during the 2022.

All transactions were conducted with terms mutually
agreed with the counter parties.

Details of connected transactions of the Company
are disclosed in the “Directors’ Report” section to the
annual report.

The Group entered into a facility letter with CGNPC
Huasheng (as lender), pursuant to which the Company
can borrow from CGNPC Huasheng for operation
capital within of total borrowing amounting to
USD480,000,000 (2021: USD500,000,000) from time
to time within 3 years from the first withdrawal. As
at 31 December 2022, there was unused borrowing
facilities amounting to USD300,000,000 (2021:
USD350,000,000).

34. BBALRZ @)

(a)

(&)
s« (&
(xi) HZE2022F12A31H 1

FE  AKERRKMNEBEA
B ERA R AR E R
HERRS - WRERTS
M-

(xii) HE2022F k2021612
A31BLLFE ' A&ER
EMBERAPEZENR
AEBREEHRE - X
IER RIS B -

(xiii) HZE2021F12A3181E
FE - AEREAKER
Z i B A BlSwakop#] AL
BEREUBERAHE
R T AR R MY E A
TE B A SR BAIE o 122022
FAWFBEITRS °

FRERSRBEZ ST
FRERAT hETT ©

ARRAERZHBNREF
WEESHE]PHE -

REBEPEZER(EA
BRANTLERBE -
Bt RARBEBE KRR
FABEN=ZFR - £
& 5 ¥8480,000,000F 7T
(20214F : 500,000,000
)R - A RERAF EX
EREAESHARKEEE
SEE - P2022F12A°
31H ' RBABHABEE
300,000,0002 7T (2021
4F : 350,000,000%7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

34. BBALRZ @)

(@) (Continued) (a) (&

The Group entered into a facility letter with China
Uranium Development Company Limited (as lender),
pursuant to which the Company can borrow from
China Uranium Development Company Limited for
operation capital within of total borrowing amounting
to USD650,000,000 from time to time within 3 years
from the first withdrawal. As at 31 December 2022,
there was unused borrowing facilities amounting to
USD643,850,000.

The Group entered into a facility letter with CGNPC-
URC Development (as lender), pursuant to which the
Company can borrow from CGNPC-URC Development
for operation capital within of total borrowing
amounting to RMB50,000,000 from time to time within
3 years from the first withdrawal. As at 31 December
2022, there was unused borrowing facilities amounting
to RMB50,000,000.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors of the Company during
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 is as
follows:

AEBHEFRMEERE
RAR(WEBERA)FINLE
FBE B ARAR
BXERERHN=ZFA -
£ 42 & 5058650,000,0003
JLA 0 Al B ) AR g 2
BRERARBAELESH
RiEEESBEHE - 12022
F128381H - ABABK
Bl 3%634,850,0003E T °

REBEPEZHBELRE
(ERBERN)FTLEF W
E OB ARRBEBKX
RAAENZ=ZFR > £4
&5 A R#50,000,000
JCIA B REE[A) AP ORE A% S
EEREBAESANKE
B - 120226124
31H - RBABHKRMEE
AR #50,000,0007T °

FTEEBEAS ZHM

KRB E2022F K2021F12
A31HIEFEARRRES
ZBEmT

2022 2021

2022F 20214

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FEx T

Short-term benefits kg HtE A 2,174 2,174

Post-employment benefits BEER 12 A A = =

2,174 2,174
The remuneration of directors of the Company and RRAREZERFETHA
key executives was determined by the remuneration BZHeHFMEZESK
committee having regard to the performance of EREMALT KB RT

individuals and market trends.

LBBEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ GARBRRN

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,Z22022F 12 A31 B L FE

NOTES SUPPORTING STATEMENT OF 35. BERERMT
CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: BMEEBEEAGEEER

Loans from

immediate Loans
Interest holding  from a fellow Bank Lease Inventory
payable company subadwary horrowings liabiities  lease payables

ER-RTREE &
FEHIS N Rt HERE EARERE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
Thn T BT TAL T TEL

At 1 January 2022 102251 A1R 19,906 2,400,197 236,630 387,754 3,862 984,197

Changes from financing cash ~~ RERER£REE:

flows:
Interest paid on loans froma. ARG —FARZ

fellow subsiclary MELAFEHERFE 2.202) = = = - -
Interest paid on loan from FREERARAR

immediate holding company ~~ EFERFIE (56,671) = - - - -
Interest paid to an infermediate X F—RRERRAE

holding Company ME (327) - - - - =
Repayment of iventory lease ~ (EEERTERE

payables - - S S = (633,249)
Interest paid on bank borrowings S5 TERD[AIE (8978 = e e = -
Advance o loans fromafelow ~ RE—BRZHBEEH 2

subsidliary S = 1395,914 = - -
Repayment of loan to immediate  EEBZERATMNE R

holding company - (2,362,503) - - - -
Repayment of bank borowings BRI - - - (387,754) = =
Repayment of oans toafelow ~ EE-HAZHELAER

subsidiary - - (236,530) - - -
Advance of bank borowings T RE - - - 957,752 5 5
Repayment of lease liablities ~ BEFEEE - - - - (1,708) =
Totel changes from financing ~~ KEBE IR ETEEE

actitis 68179  [R32503 1150384 569,998 1708 (633249
Other changes: A
Finance costs MERR 61,631 - - - 68 -

As at 31 December 2022 20224124318 13,359 47,694 1,395,914 957,752 2,222 350,048
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

35. NOTES SUPPORTING STATEMENT OF 35. BERERMT @
CASH FLOWS (continued)

Loans from Loans from
immediate afellow Bank Lease Inventory
Interest payable - holding company subsicliary horrowings liabilties  lease payables

AV
RIS Bt HERR EAFEEE
HKS 000 HK8 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 00 HK$ 000 HK8 000
TAL o o Th (o e

At 1 January 2021 R0 E1A18 4,259 S 904,289 1,054,458 1,866 S

Changes from financing cash ~~ REBERLRED:

flows:
Advance of inventory lease ERGERENRS

payables - - - - - 984,197
Interest paid onloans foma~~ RE-TERZHBEATEH

fellow subsiclary ERHE (22,584) - - - - -
Interest paidonloanfoman ~~ RABZZRAAEHEH

immediate holding company %8 (19421) = = = - -
Interest paid on bank borrowings S TERD[HFIE (10,987) = = = - -
Advance of loan from immediate RE ERIERAFEHESR

holding company 19,039 2,497,136 - - - -
Repayment of loan to an [ERERERAANER

immediate holding company - (96,939 S S S S
Repayment of loanstoaelow ~ (EE-ERZHBATEH

subsidary - - (667,759) - - -
Advance of bank borowings SE{TERE - - - (666,704) = =
Repayment of lease iabiities ~ EEMEEME - - - - (1,795) -
Total changes fom financing~~ REBEZHRLR

activities D) (33,959) 2,400,197 (667,759 (666,704) (1,795) 964,197
Other changes: e
Finance costs BERK 49,600 - - - 8 -
New lease recognised for the year ER%FTHTHE - - - - 3708 5

As at 31 December 2021 Ho021512A31R 19,906 2,400,197 236,630 387,754 3,862 984,197
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37.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the borrowing
of HK$957,752,000 (2021: HK$387,754,000) as set out
in note 29 has incurred interest payable of approximately
HK$61,631,000 (2021: HK$49,600,000).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$3,318,000 (2021: HK$3,445,000). The Group’s
investment properties held for rental purposes and are
expected to generate rental yields on approximately 6% (2021:
6%) on an ongoing basis.

The Group leases out investment property under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one
to three years. None of the leases includes variable lease
payments.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in place at the reporting date will be
receivable by the Group in future periods as follows:

—FR

Within one year

36.

37.

FEFRERS

REE2022F12A31B ILFE -
B FE29FTEIE 7957,752,000/8 7T
(20214F:387,754,000% 7T) B E L
FEF 2.8 F 961,631,000 87T
(20214F: 49,600,000/87T) °

RERERE
REBERHAA

FABRBRZWERSKAAE
3,318,000 #7T(20214F:3,445,000
BIL) c AKBZREMERE
HERGMBHRFEELLN6%
(20215 : 6%) WS =X -

AEERBEELHEEHHREY
¥ -HENERAE A 2=
F o HEMTBEAIEHENRK -

RiRE BB T A HG S HER
AR E NG B AEER A
SREARIZ 20 T URER

2022
20224

2021
20214
HK$'000
T

HK$’000
TR

3,198 3,495
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38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 38. REHEITHNEMEER
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY tREENE

Categories of financial instruments SR T AEMER

2022 2021
20225 20214

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAT

Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost BBER AT EZ S REE
(including bank balances and cash)  (B#FRITEFTNIAS)

— Trade and other receivables — FE UG BR FR K EAth FE U FR 339,988 96,586
- Amount due from an intermediate  — &I —fE o AR A F]
holding company 1,679 2,392
— Amount due from a fellow — FEN— R &Y B A B 50E
subsidiary 18 20
- Bank balances and cash —RITEFRRE 52,390 81,293
394,075 180,291
Financial liabilities cRaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost E%%&K%EZ%@QE
— Trade and other payables — ERBRR R E AL 5K 1,043,828 1,103,368
— Loans from a fellow subsidiary — ke —HRERWEBAT ZE%&( 1,395,914 236,530
— Loan from immediate holding —REEEZERAGZER
company 47,694 2,400,197
— Bank borrowings —iRITIBER 957,752 387,754
— Amount due to an intermediate — N — R EER A RIFIE
holding company 1,120 1,117
— Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  — FE{~ [ /B A 58 1,060 2,188

3,447,368 4,131,154
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments

in the normal course of the Group’s business are credit risk,

liquidity risk, interest rate risk and currency risk.

(@

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverability of
each individual trade debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECLs. The Group determines
the ECLs for customer with significant balances
by using an individual basis, estimated based on
historical credit loss experience, as well as the general
economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group has a low historical
credit loss experience there was no significant and
adverse changes in the general economic conditions
of the industry in what the debtors operate, thus the
management considered the credit risk is not material.

39.

B EREE
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AEEEREDER X
[ B B R R A W 0 38 B (B
HZIER - o - AEE
EREBRSHERKRF
& 18 Bl /& W iR 5K 2 AT U @]
1 AR E SR
L R SURIERE -

REWESRME @ A&E
ERAEEMHREZER
FORH B IEARE
BEHREEBRFERIRE
B AEEHAENGR
BEFRAERNERGEE - X
BEHEABETEEBRER
REBHAREITENER
REGHETEREREE
Bepltms - ARADH
EERRAEEAELEER
BERE AREBAL
EMITEZEREERR
WEEBATHES - Hilt
EEERREEARAE
P

229



A

A 230 CGN Mining Company Limited Annual Report 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

saREHEME .

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 39. HIRAMERE

(@)  Credit risk (Continued) (@) FEERRGE)

For other receivables, amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries included in bank balances and amount
due from an intermediate holding company, the internal
credit rating was ranked as “performing” as set out on
page 232. Based on the strong financial position and
good history of repayment of the fellow subsidiaries
and intermediate holding company, the Group has
assessed that the ECLs for these receivables and
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries and intermediate
holding company are not material under 12-month
ECLs. Thus, no loss allowance provision was
recognised during the respective period.

The credit risk on liquid funds other than those
placed with fellow subsidiaries is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis throughout the reporting period. To assess
whether there is a significant increase in credit risk
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

° internal credit rating;

o external credit rating;

PEMERFRENS - &
Yo IR 24 B B X A RO IR B
?‘E%Eﬁi*T&FHQ*F'EJEP
e 42 A RIE - AEE
,\aTr?&%%ﬁfﬁﬁ‘ﬂ (%A
F232HME) - ERRAR
(R NCIDS Gl T E2 N
HY 58 S B 5K 00 e R 4F IR
R - ARELFER
Rz L AR E W
[F 2P B 2 ) B — P P
ERABRIEE12(E A K
BEHEEEETYTIEE
Ko Bt - REHRREAR
EIEREREE

T BUA [R) 2 Bt /8 22 R A S
ZRBEZZEERRAE
R REARRZHTHER
BREENARBITAESE
REFZIRIT ©

AEBAEVIREREER
EEREAOMAEEM - IRET
HEENREBEARSHEE
GREERBRMIFERE
meFEEERRELR
EEME - AKBERS
AU EEZEELONE
PR R R EED
BRBHEITLLER - RRZE
EEEBSEMNAEME
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 39. HIRAMERE

(@)  Credit risk (Continued) (@) FEERRGE)

° actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant change
to the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;
and

o significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the borrower,
including changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the Group and changes in the
operating results of the borrower.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has tasked
its management to develop and maintain the Group’s
credit risk grading to categories exposures according
to their degree of risk of default. The credit rating
information is drawn from publicly available financial
information and the Group’s own trading records
to rate its major customers and other debtors.
The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of its
counterparties are continuously monitored and the
aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread
amongst approved counterparties.

. EBRR - IR
AMEERE TR
ERFFAHEKRDT
MECTEREHE
RAME R B BE
MEBENELEEARE
£ &
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 39. HIRAMERE

(@)  Credit risk (Continued) (@ =ERK#E
The Group’s exposure to credit risk (Continued) FEFEGREERRE (B
The Group’s current credit risk grading framework REEE R EE R BT
comprises the following categories: %M[?EE?E AR5

Basis for

Category Description recognising ECLs

AERMEE
oYl i BENEE

Performing For financial assets where there has low risk of default or 12-month ECLs
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit impaired
(refer to as Stage 1)

RYF BELRBRBNAEREEERRREENEMEIFEERE 12EAEHEE
HEREEBHE R R

Doubtful For financial assets where there has been a significant Lifetime ECLs — not
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not credit impaired
credit impaired (refer to as Stage 2)

A&t BVIRERRIEERRERERENMHEERENSRIEE FHEREEEE -
(2HE_RER) BEERE

Default Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or Lifetime ECLs -
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated credit impaired
future cash flows of that asset have occurred (refer to as
Stage 3)

ERN EEARFEEMHEENGFRRR S REEE TN ER T HIEMEEER -
TREENFEREEREBRHE=RR) HIREERIE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off

financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery
s ERRRARBABARENNBERE - AMASEKERIEN  FIEC B

HEWTE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 39. HIRAMERE

(a)

Credit risk (Continued) (a)
The Group’s exposure to credit risk (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group’s
financial assets, as well as the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades.

Internal 12-month or
31 December 2022 credit rating lifetime ECLs

2022 12H31H AEBEETR 12 A2 N EHEERSE

Trade receivables Note Lifetime ECLs (simplified
approach)
e BR TR Bisr FHEBEEEE @{RZE)
Deposits and other Performing 12-month ECLs
receivables
2e MEAMEYGIE Rif 12{8 A EHEEEE
Amount due from an Performing 12-month ECLs

intermediate holding

company

YR —RREERAR  RY 12 ARHEEER
TR

Amount due from a fellow Performing 12-month ECLs
subsidiary

FR—FEREHNERR R 12 AFRBEEER
I

Bank balances and cash  Performing 12-month ECLs

BIEFEAE Rif 128 A RREEEE

FERR(E)
AL B E i 115 B R (AR

TRAMINE T AEES
MEENEEER UK
AEBEEERRFRER
MERAEERBRAA

Gross Net
carrying carrying
amount amount
RREAE RREFRE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR

335,621 335,621
4,367 4,367
1,679 1,679

18 18
52,390 52,390

233
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #,£2022F 12 A31H ILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 39. HIRAMERE

(@)  Credit risk (Continued) (@ EERRGE
The Group’s exposure to credit risk (Continued) REEERGELEERRE (&

Gross Net
Internal 12-month or carrying carrying
31 December 2021 credit rating lifetime ECLs amount amount

2021E12H31H R EEFTR 12f8 sk AT iz B EiE REEE REFE
HK$'000 HK$’000
TAT FAT

Trade receivables Note Lifetime ECLs (simplified 92,160 92,160
approach)
e BR R i 2 HEAEEER
(1E77%)
Deposits and other Performing 12-month ECLs 4,426 4,426
receivables
BREREMBEUGRIE  RIF 12{@ AFEEE E &R
Amount due from an Performing 12-month ECLs 2,392 2,392
intermediate holding
company
e —FRIP AR AR Rif 12{E AFE B E &R
IR
Amount due from a fellow  Performing 12-month ECLs 20 20
subsidiary
[ —BRIZMBAT RiF 1218 AR EE B &R
PIA
Bank balances and cash  Performing 12-month ECLs 81,293 81,293
RITETFRRE Raf 128 AFE B EE1E
Note:  For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified MisE : BEWERmE - AEE
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at ERAEBBREER
lifetime ECLs. Except for debtors with significant outstanding FORMAELHEFESD
balances or credit-impaired, the Group determines the M B E B E M EE
expected credit losses on these items individually. No loss BB RABEAKRETR
allowance has been made on trade receivables as the B EERENERI
amount involved is insignificant. AEEETIEEE B

HEEBE - AR e
HYTER - @I EHE
WBR KA S R o
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
The Group’s exposure to credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in China (2021: China),
which accounted for 83% (2021: 100%) of the total
trade receivable as at 31 December 2022.

Besides, the Group has concentration of credit risk as
83% (2021: 99.8%) and 43% (2021: 100%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively
within natural uranium trading segment.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of loans from a fellow subsidiary
and loans from an immediate holding company and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities and lease liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based
on undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities and
lease liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The maturity
dates for non-derivative financial liabilities are based
on the agreed repayment dates. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent
that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of
the reporting period.

39.
(a)

(b)

MEREREE &

FERR(E)
AL B E i 115 B R (AR

REERMESNEER

g i = A E (2021
¢ CHE) - (h2022F12 A
31HZ FEWRBR R AE5E83%
(20214F: 100%) °

AN - 2 6 [ E W AR R B
EH83% (20214F: 99.8%)&
43% (20214 100%) 5 A
ERAEBRAHE 5 E
BAMBHEAEPRAKX
EFPHFIE  tmEERE
f)@fﬂ M71<EF' E’J |IE!/R °©

RBETERE

REERDECERE -
AEBEELERS LA
CEERBAERNEERE
RBRFTERZIKF » AR
AEBZEERRERS
MERB 2  BTEE
#ama—ﬁmgwgﬂ
TZT AR REBERER
NAZEFRNERBERL

HERE T E R

o

TRFADINARE W EE
R NEEFTESH
BEREEREHRTHNE
WEMBE - ZREBEAEH
ANFOKRERHPLAE
MEEREEREPHR
MEREREREER
%'z CHEITESRMABEHRT
FEA Ty AR BB RT
m%%%ﬁozi A
E&Z’Siiﬁ.iﬂlhi 737\13
WEHRKR  REMNBERA
FENIE - RISEREIR & FE
SR REREE
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 39. HIRAMERE

(b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) b) FBESRAMRGE

Repayable on More than More than Total
demand or 1 year but 2yearshut  undiscounted Carrying
within 1 year  less than2years less than 5 years cash flows amount

i3 E] BR-F BERE EZ e

M-FARE  BONRE BOREF i | FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS'000
Th AR Thn Thn Thn

At 31 December 2022 H202E12R318
Non-derbatv nancia ibies Hii:oHER
Trade and other payeles ENERREfERE 1,043,028 - - 1,043,828 1,43828
Loans from a felow subsidary RE-BRENELT ER 61,891 - 1305914 1,457,805 1,305,914
Loans from immedfate holding company REERERAT 87 50,346 - - 50,346 47,604
Bank borowings BikR 998,439 - - 998,439 957,752
Amount dueto an intemediate holding company R~ ERAAIEE 1120 - - 1,120 1,120
Amounts due to felow subsidiares ERRZNBAFNE 1,060 - - 1,060 1,060
2,156,084 - 1,395,914 3,552,598 3,447,308
Leases [abilties e 1,708 673 - 2,381 2292
Repayable on More than More than Total
demandor  1yearbutless 2 yearshoutless unciscounted Camying
within 1 year than 2 years than 5 years cash flows amount
FEXE -5 s
i3 L]
HK$ 000 HKS 000
Tin S
At 31 December 2021 2021 12331A
Non-derivative financial iabities HiASHER
Trade end oner payables RS RN 3B 1,103,368 - - 1,103,368 1,103,368
Loans from a felow subsidary TE-HRZMELTZER 2890 = = 256,950 25530
Loans from immedfate holding company REERERATZER 2428580 s = 2498580 2400197
Bank borowings BifEs 537 390,746 - 396,073 397,754
Amount due to an infermeciate holding company  [Ef—Bm AR A FEE 1,117 5 - 117 17
Amourts due tofelow subsidaries EfiEZHEA0E 2188 - - 2188 2188
371753 300,746 - 4168276 4,131,154

Leases labilties g8k 1,761 1,761 703 420 3862
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

()

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Fair value

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values due
to their immediate or short-term maturities.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate loans from a fellow subsidiary. The
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
mainly in relation to its variable-rate bank borrowings,
bank balances, loans from a fellow subsidiary and
loans from an immediate holding company included
in bank balances and cash. The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider other necessary actions when significant
interest rate exposure is anticipated.

39. MR REREE

(b)

(c)

REESAR ()

ArfE
ARTEERS - KB
PR EE R & BB R 5 R
ZEMAERSBAMY

FEHESEANAERES
Ik 77 e 7 H BN B s P 22 HA
MEE -

FRE R

AEEHEARERE — M
BESGI=PNSIRSSS-§4:0
RAENEER - KNEE
THRERTEFLRRER
FrefEe ¥ BRITER -
RITH/EFRKXE —RR X
MEBAR<EREREE
BERABZERE LR
ERENEXER - XEE
ERIRZFUESPLEE
R BEEESEEMNE
R - WHRERKLEE
AR 2 [ i By 25 8 PR B EL
fAHITE)
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 39. HIRAMERE

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) FIREREE)
Sensitivity analysis HREE AT

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments including variable-rate
borrowings, bank balances, loans from a fellow
subsidiary and loan from immediate holding company
at the end of the reporting period. The analysis
is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
(2021: 50 basis points) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2021: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2022 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$10,003,000 (2021:
HK$12,348,000).

AT 2 B E DT TR 3B
REREBRIETETA (R
BEZEER  RITEHF -
KE—HRZMBARZ
BERRREEEERADR
ZER) ZHMEERME
TE o MBZESMERR
RERRZAREESH
TARZFRMAEE -
50fEZ 2, (20214F « 501E%E
o) 2EMsR L BAEE
BB ABBAERARIEA
BRERFEHR  REREE
ERFErAEEE AR
BB FTIERTE o

fMF = LA TB%50EE
25 (20214 : 5OMEEE) -
AT A EMA & EEZET
T BIREERREE
2022 12A31HILFE 2
BR i 1 8 F & 38 o0,
#710,003,000/% 7t (2021
4 12,348,000/87T) °
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from rental income and purchases
by the Group in currencies other than the entities’
functional currencies. Approximately 100% (2021:
100%) of the Group’s rental income are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of
the group’s entity. In addition, certain portion of
trade and other receivables, amount due from an
intermediate holding company, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables, amounts due to an
intermediate holding company and fellow subsidiaries
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised monetary assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the

entity to which they relate.

Presented in: 2022 2021
= 20225 20214
USD'000  USD’'000

TET

Assets BE 293,320 21
Liabilities BE (383,975) =

39. HIRAMERE

(d)

B EER

AEEAHRXHEER
% - AERKREEHEK
ARAEENZEEREAK
e EM ANz EH#
TR - NEBEAK100%
(20214F : 100%) KT & Uk
ANEBER 2R
LASN 2 EHEDIME o Lo -
AT ERERREM
FEUERIE  EUR —
ERARRE - RITE
FREL - EBNERERHE
th JE < TR IE A B B — RS
SR /NI DN E )=
NRIKEA - THABEZE
IR E M LASN 7 B 4

st
H o
>

TRERAEERREH
AACHEREEEELA
EARERMEBEEE
MMz B EEEL 2R

LA
o0
ZN

[

2022 2021 2022 2021
20225 20214 20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000  HK$000  HK$000
ARBTRT AR®ETT THET T
14,571 17,578 23,144 22,507
(2,715) (4,748) 4,177) (903)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

7R 5% 838 By 3 4 S0 S 4 e
KR - R EEEBER
SMNERKR - URBFER
EELHERINERR
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 39. HIRAMERE

(d)  Currency risk (Continued) (d E¥ERGE)
Sensitivity analysis HREE AT

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency risk of
RMB, USD and HK$.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% and 0.5% increase or decrease in HK$ against
the RMB and USD respectively for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021. 5% and 0.5% are
the sensitivity rates used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represent management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period for
a 5% or 0.5% (2021: 5% or 0.5%) change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates
an increase in post-tax profit where the respective
functional currency strengthen 5% or 0.5% (2021: 5%
or 0.5%) against the relevant currency. For a 5% or
0.5% (2021: 5% or 0.5%) weakening of the respective
functional currency against the relevant currency, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit.

AEBEI2HHARYE
ERETEERR o

TR AEBE E£2022
FN2021F12A318 15
EHELTOREARBRK
ELAHERIZE5%&0.5%
ZHRRE o LEURE L &
(5%%0.5%) BlaE£BER
A B 5t SMNE BB 1 R B 3R
ERRACHRE KX
EIEERLINEE R A] s E
£ BEEBATETE -

BRED N ERIE S ARG
BZNEFEEBEE R
R ERRINEE R~
5%8%0.5% (20214 : 5%
500.5%) #BEH 2 A E R

JEMEEM L BRE
FH{E5%5%0.5% (20214 :
5%73%0.5%) Fr 8 B Br Hi &
A2 TR o MABFER D)
BEEH B EBEZESY
800.5% (20214 : 5%k
0.5%) * HEEEFEK
Rz EHTE -

Presented in: 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
SRR 20225 20216 20225 202146 20225 20214
USD'000  USD'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  HK$000  HK$000

S T AR¥TRT AR®ETE Tax FAT

5% 5% 5% 5% 0.5% 0.5%

Profit or loss w Ak EE (3,326) (1) 464 (485) 79 (90)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is SEEZ A N ELH

unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Z B B A 4 I R
- MERES ALK
REBIMNE R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £2022F 12 A31H It F[E

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes loans from a fellow subsidiary and loans from
immediate holding company, bank borrowings, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As a part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital, and take appropriate actions to
adjust the Group’s capital structure.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as equity as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position plus net debt.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were as
follows:

40.

EXmpEE

AEEEBLEN - HRERAEE
ETEBEFECEETY  WE
BT 5 TR RS - AR
A RBAE R - AL ERERR
AT o

AEEZEAGEBERFRER
ERE—HRANBRAERR
KEEEZERARZERKLRT
&5 - IR MREFERE
ARARBHEE AEIE#EE (B
BREBETRARGER) - AAF)
XTI ENEE o (ERRE
H—IR - KRREFREEERK
AR BAERENEEORR - Wit
HREEETHRBAREERS
&

BEANHEMARME—  AEE
NEARB B RERER - X
LR B ERIABABETE - F8
BEREERERRE MRS FER
BatE - EABBEIRG A MHARN
RADIR SN EFRERTE

20224 2021412 A31 B A
REELEEAT

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FAIT

Net debt FAE 2,348,970 2,943,188
Total equity e GEE 3,348,139 2,155,223
Gearing ratio BARAEHE 70.16% 136.56%

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the directors on 23 March 2023.

41.

RER R

NATEEN2023FE3 A23A#E#
T 5 T B B T R K o
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Particulars of Major Properties as at 31 December 2022

R2022FE12A3MANEEYEFSE ¢

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT BERE 2
Location NE Type of properties Lease term
LR SR
Rooms 2906-2910 & 2912, 29/F, FEdE R Office premises Medium-term lease
Block A, Shi Ao International Centre, #Ak5 & WAE FHIEE
No. 101 Shaoyaoju Beili, SEA=S14: 0L
Chaoyang District, B8 BB AR AR

Beijing, PRC 29122906-2910 %2912 %
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Definitions

In this annual report (excluding the “Independent Auditor’'s Report”), unless the context otherwise requires, the
following expressions shall have the following meanings:

RAFEREHREAN (TNREELZHERE])

“associates”
R EIN

“Af[icles of Association”
[EF2408]

“Aud\it Committee”
[BzEEg]

“Beijing Sino-Kazakh”

(15 5 AP 15 g |

“Board”

[EFg]

“CAD” or “CA$”
[hn7e) sk [CAS)

“Canada”

BIEYN
“Central Mynkuduk Deposit”
[

“CGN” or “CGNPC”

[PEZI R EREENF

“CGN Finance”

[P B 75

“CGN Global”

[ EZBEREE AT

“CGN Group”
[ EZEE ]

“CGNM UK”
[CGNM UK]

CBRXBEREMEIN ATAERAEBNTEE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules.
BEA ETRRIPE 7 208 -

the articles of association of the Company.
RAREBERAL -

the audit comm|ttee of the Board.
EFEeEREZET -

Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium Resources Investment Company
Limited* (b7 5 ## & JRIZRE B R A7), a limited liability company
incorporated in the PRC and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

it,?qﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ?xé*ﬁﬂﬁ A RPBEMA I EREEAR
RAEARRZEMBR

the board of Directors of the Company.

AABEEE -

Canadian dollars, the lawful currency of Canada.

MEATT  MERXEEEH -

Canada, a country in the northern part of North America.

MEXR - H—ECRIEZMIE BB -

the central plot of Mynkuduk deposit in South-Kazakhstan region
Kazakhstan, which is owned and operated by Ortalyk.

(VN r@%ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%@%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬂEB’JFﬂE&ﬁfﬁﬂ%mﬂPH%ﬁﬂiﬁa M
BRARHEBRER

China General Nuclear Power Corporation* (1 B &% & B AR A 7)),
a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and the sole
shareholder of CGNPC-URC.

HPEEZEBERAR  RABIKY 2BRETAR - APEZH
HEERIZMERE o

CGN Finance Co., Ltd* (F EZBIEERFELAF]), a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and a subsidiary of
CGNPC.

PEZUBEREMAAR  RABIKY 2BREEAT - BHEZ
SEHRNRZHB AT

CGN Global Uranium Ltd, a company incorporated and registered
in England and Wales with limited liability and a subsidiary of the
Company.

FhE B E MEEE AR A A" (CGN Global Uranium Ltd) @ —f
*%%E%T%F’%&@Eﬁiiﬁ&%‘fﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ’&ET CBRARRRICHBA
e

CGNPC and its subsidiaries.
FEZEEARRENBAR]

CGNM UK Limited, a company incorporated in the United Kingdom,
with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
CGNM UK Limited * REBFMK IO EREELE] @ WRARAF
NEEMBAF -
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“CGNPC Huasheng”

[P BT AR

“CGNPC-URC”

[ EZ R R

“CGNPC-URC Group”
[P EZmEEREE

“China Uranium Development”

PRI ER]

“Company”, “CGN Mining” or “we”

RN

1 TP ERE SR 3k 3

“Controlling Shareholder”
(R AR 3R

“Corporate Governance Code”

(ARl

“Czech Republic”

[ 52 HME ]

“Director(s)”

[E=%]

“ED(s)”

[ITES]

“Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee”

L
-

[ 8 |

HEkERZES

CGNPC Huasheng Investment Limited (FEZIEXKIEEBR AT, a
company incorporated in Hong Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CGNPC.

PEZERREARAR  REBIMKIZ A RPEZEE
RAEIZEEWBRA -

CGNPC Uranium Resources Co., Ltd.* (1 EizshZ %R AR A F),
a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and the sole
shareholder of the China Uranium Development.
PEZMEZRRBBAR  RABIKZZBERETLAT - AP R
KRR IME—RE -

CGNPC-URC and its subsidiaries (other than member of the Group).
hEZMEEREERAEEXSINNEML TEBAF -

China Uranium Development Company Limited (FF ¥ EER
‘A d]), a company incorporated in Hong Kong and the Controlling
Shareholder of the Company.

MEMEERARAT  REBNILZ AT - NRAZEREIR

CGN Mining Company Limited, a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange.

FREZIEE AR A R)* (CGN Minig Company Limited) * REZEE
MRz BREMERR] - ERGOIEEZFIER £ ©

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules.

BB MR T 2% -

Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.
iR RIM S R E R EVR SRR o

the Czech Republic, an inland country in Central Europe.

R AME - R PEH—ERERRK -

the director(s) of the Company.
RARESE -

executive Directors of the Company.
ARNRPTES -

the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee of the Board.
EFXERR HEREREEE -
European Union, a political and economic union of 27 member states

that are located primarily in Europe.
REEEBARBUME27ENK B B ARBUS R AS R R



“Fission”

[Fission’A &1

“Fourteenth Five-year Plan”
[+HE]

“Group”

[(REE] %[5 E]

“HK$H or “HKD”
&7t

“HKASs”
[BASTER]

“HKFRSs”
(BB BHE 2R

“HKICPA”
[BAGMAE]

“Hong Kong” and “HKSAR”
(BB EBRRITHR]

“INED(s)”
B IEITESE]

\:

“Irkol Mine”

[FHE ]

“Kazakhstan”

[ & 5o 738 |

“Kazatomprom”

[MGRT]

“Wh
[kwh]

‘b
Mol

FEZEERRAR —TFFH

Definitions

Fission Uranium Corp., a Canadian-based resource company of
which ordinary shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange
under the symbol “FCU”, the OTCQX market place in the US under
the symbol “FCUUF” and on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange under the
symbol “2FU” a company owned as to 13.75% by the Company as
at 31 December 2022.

Fission Uranium Corp. * —RUAIIEXAEM 2 ERAF » B EE
EARIRFCUIRZmZR ST+ LARSRFCUUFI R ZEBIOTCQXR
S5 RARSE2FUIRNER R BRE SR G L o A AR2022
F12 A31 B B FissionA 713.75%HE

The fourteenth five-year plan for the national economic and social
development of the PRC, which covers 2021 to 2025.
FEBERQBENMT S HRNE TOERSF - HE2021E20255F -

the Company and its subsidiaries.

AARMEMBAR -

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong.

B BEIEEER -

the Hong Kong Accounting Standards issued by HKICPA.
HEBGTMAGRM 2 BB G LD -

the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by HKICPA.
HERSIMASRMH 2 EEMBHREER -

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
RN

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s
Republic of China.
hEARAMBEEERHITTHR °

independent non-executive Directors of the Company.
RRRVBIIENITES ©

the Irkol mine located in the Kyzylorzhinsk area, 20 kilometres from
the town of Chiili, Kazakhstan with limited liability, which is owned and
operated by Semizbay-U.

FEZAIELL - (IR E 52 BT ChiliE20 A B B2 2 Kyzylorzhinski &
ZIrkolfEILl - BF AR RERE -

The Republic of Kazakhstan.
ME B So HiT A SRR o

Joint Stock Company “National Atomic Company “Kazatomprom”, a
joint stock company established according to the laws of Kazakhstan
with limited liability, which holds 51% equity interest of Semizbay-U
and Ortalyk.

FEA E e BB B R R T 8E A A1* (Joint Stock Company National
Atomic Company “Kazatomprom”) » —Z iR 15 5 B 7o HT R VA2 AL
HERAR - FEWARFMEAFS1%iER

kilowatt hour.
FEL/NBE @

pound.

5
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“Listing Rules”

[ ET#R A 5
“Mauritius”

[E 8 sk 5
“Model Code”

[1ZR2E<F Al 5
“MWe”

MWe] 5
“NED(s)”

[FEENITESE] 15

“Nomination Committee”

feBZEe] B

“New Financial Services Framework
Agreement”

(#8115 AR IAE R e Ec

“New Sales Framework Agreement”

[Tl SRR = it
“Ortalyk”

[BAF] 15
“PLS Project”

[PLSIEH | i3
“PRC” or “China”

[ B 15

“Remuneration Committee”
[FEE =] Eici

“Reporting Period”
[R5 HA ]

“RMB”
TAR®] 18

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. ‘ )
BEMERBRXGMBERARRESR ETRA -

the Republic of Mauritius, ig an island nation in the Indian Ocean.
EESRETHEMNE - BEEFSE -

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers set out in Ap\pendix 10 of thq Listing Rules. \
FHRAIM AT E T AR ERETRE SR HNEESTE

megawalts of electricity.
JKEES

non-executive Directors of the Company.

RABPERITES -

the nomination committee of the Board.
EEQRAEEE -

the financial services framework agreement dated 16 June 2022
entered into among the Company, CGN Finance and CGNPC
Huasheng.

RNRTE - PERI G ERERR BB A2022F6 H16H 2 8175
BRAGHE 2R 17555

the framework agreement dated 16 June 2022 entered into between
the Company and CGNPC-URC in relation to the sale of natural
uranium by the Group to CGNPC-URC Group.
NAREREZMEZRLT A H/A2022F6 A16H 2 ER 1 -
AEBAREERP EZMERREEHERALM -

Mining Company “ORTALYK” LLP, a limited liability partnership
established in Kazakhstan, with the Company holding 49% of its
equity interest through its wholly-owned subsidiary and recognised as
an associate of the Company.

BRSERREARAIKEZE (Mining Company “ORTALYK”
LLP) - RRMRERANAKI 2 EREEAR MR - REARFMER
A AREBBEEM B A ERE H49% e -

Patterson Lake South project, Fission’s primary and wholly-owned
asset.
Patterson Lake SouthZB B * AFission ARz X BN EHEBE °

The People’s Republic of China.
i ARHAE o

the remuneration committee of the Board.
ExgFMEEE -

From 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.
202241 A1H£2022512 31 B[ -

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC.

ARE  hBZEEEE -



“Semizbay Mine”

Eagdl

“Semizbay-U”

EipNcil

“share(s)”
(A 15 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ 3R ]

“Sprott”

[Sprott]

“Stock Exchange”

K

“subsidiary(s)”
AR

“Swakop”
iR EYNCIE
“Tenge”
[E27 ]

“y
[tuJ

“UBOB”

U0,

UK
[52E ]

WS’
[3<E ]

FEZEERRAR —TFFH

Definitions

the Semizbay mine located in the Valihanov District of Akmoltnsk
Oblast in Kazakhstan, which is owned and operated by Semizbay-U.

FOKZZEFARIL - (A EETE ETEAKmoltnsk Oblast 2 Valihanovi&

HH A RER REIRE

Semizbay-U Limited Liability Partnership, a limited liability partnership
established in Kazakhstan, with the Company holding 49% of its
equity interest through its wholly-owned subsidiary and recognised as
a joint venture of the Company.

BRI FEF AR A Z D% Semizbay-U Limited Liability Partnership) -
RRERAER I BRETAREE  REARRSERE AR
AR EME A R E H49% R

ordinary share(s) in the Company with a nominal value of HK$0.01
each.
AARFREME.OVEILZ il

holder(s) of the share(s).
IFEB A °

The Sprott Asset Management LP, a global leader in precious metals
and real assets investments. . ) \ -
SprottE EERE7E  RETBREMEERERBZIRELE -

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
BEBMERZMABRAR -

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules.
BEELEmRAMETZEE -

Swakop Uranium (PTY) Ltd., a company incorporated in Namibia and
a subsidiary of CGNPC-URC.

PEZHSEMBARAR . —HRAREEFMK I ARIRPE
RHEBERHNTFRA -

Tenge, the lawful currency of Kazakhstan.

BX  RMERAENEEER -

tons of elemental Uranium.

IWE <5 &8 o

Triuranium octoxide, a compound of uranium present as an olive
green to black, odorless solid, which is one of the more popular forms
of yellowcake and is transported between mills and refineries in such
form.

NE(c =gk —BHOAY  SHBGEEE - WKHER - K
é;‘iﬁﬁk‘@ﬁ‘qaﬁﬁ%ﬁz— W PARZ T S AE TR R R R 2 [RGB
gl °©

the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland.
ATFNENALE RS & -

the United States of America.
EFERERE -
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Definitions

B

“USD” or “US$”

[E7T)akIUSS) |
“UxC”

[UxC] 15
“Zhalpak Deposit”

ERd |

*

For identification purpose only

[Ea=774

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the US.
En o XBZEEE -

UxC, LLC, one of the leading providers of uranium prices and an
independent third party. )
UxC LLC * BiBRHREREE 2 — YABYE= -

the uranium deposit located in Sozak district, Kazakhstan, which is
owned and operated by Ortalyk. N
IRMRERIME R R E A HE - ARATHEERER -
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